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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

10th Floor

Cosco Tower

Grand Millennium Plaza
183 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

P.O. Box 10008
Willow House
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Grand Cayman
KY1-1001
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
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Grand Cayman
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WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY
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ERBTEE X
ik

B RE 1835

BT AC T JE

N ]

10748
HERETMMER

P.O. Box 10008
Willow House
Cricket Square
Grand Cayman
KY1-1001
Cayman Islands

FEARET

A BLERAT A FRA A
SCABERAT AR A PR ) & s AT
HRERSRAT A A A

o B AR SR AT (HE) IR A PR A &

ROBFELTEEBDE

LR P A BRA )
e

B 5 K R 18355
A 544

FMERERONOBFETRE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited (
P.O. Box 10008

Willow House

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman
KY1-1001
Cayman Islands

iR £ 18 5%

0064

Ak
www.getnice.com.hk

(3 8 0 2 A A

Annual Report 2019 &

= e



4

ITREHREEREEESRREIN

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

OVERVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s revenue

amounted to approximately HK$561.9 million, representing a
decrease of 3.9% as compared with approximately HK$584.8
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
slight decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in brokerage commission with less turnover during the year.
On the other hand, the interest income from margin financing
business, money lending business, debt securities held by the
Group and also property rental income recorded increment as

compared with the last financial year.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$195.1 million (2018: HK$297.1 million).
The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue, increase in finance costs, the loss on redemptions
of convertible bonds issued by Get Nice Financial Group
Limited (“GNFG”), a non-wholly owned listed subsidiary of
the Company and recognition of impairment loss on loans to
securities margin clients and loans and advances during the
current year. The Group recorded imputed interest expenses
arising from convertible bonds issued by GNFG in September
2017 of HK$96.7 million during the current year (2018:
HK$57.7 million). Loss on redemptions of HK$38.9 million
(2018: HK$Nil) were recorded upon redemptions of convertible
bonds issued by GNFG of total principal amounts of HK$262.5
million during the year. The Group recorded impairment losses
on loans to securities margin clients and loans and advances of
HK$20.1 million (2018: HK$Nil) and HK$16.5 million (2018:

HK$1.1 million), respectively in current financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK2.02 cents (2018:
HK3.34 cents) as a result of decrease in profit during the year.
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ITEHREEREEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market Review

During the current financial year, the Hong Kong stock market
experienced a roller coaster ride. The market had a bullish
beginning of the year 2018; Hang Seng Index once soared to
a record high of 33,484 points on 29 January 2018 and then
closed at 30,093 points on 31 March 2018. Starting with the
second quarter of 2018, United States demonstrated positive
impact leading the recovery of global economy. China also
recorded stable GDP growth. However, the rally came fast and
left fast, the stock market lost its momentum turning into the
third quarter of 2018.

During the period from the third quarter of 2018 to the first
quarter of 2019, tensions around unfair trade practices and
intellectual property theft were dominating market highlights.
Substantial escalation of trade-restrictive measures between
the United States and China was leading to economic losses
for these two economies and increasing trade costs and market
uncertainties globally. The US-China trade war further
undermined stock prices in China and Hong Kong market and
also weighed on the Chinese currency. The renminbi recorded
unusual depreciations in response to trade-related news.
Meanwhile, a renewed US dollar rally drew investors from the
Southeast Asia market including Hong Kong. Depreciation of
the renminbi further pushed a downside momentum to the
Hong Kong stock market. On the other hand, concerns over
decelerating economic activity in China added to investors’
pessimism. As a result of the Chinese government’s efforts to
curb shadow banking activities, credit to the real economy had
begun to decline and equity markets to slip during the current
period. Indicators of economic activity of China also generally
disappointed the market. Reflecting to the global economic
and political issues, the monthly turnover of Hong Kong stock

market continued a decline trend during the current year.

In light of the global economic headwinds, the Hang Seng Index
closed at 29,051 point at the end of March 2019 compared
with 30,093 point at the end of March 2018. The average daily
turnover on the Main Board and GEM during the year ended 31
March 2019 was approximately HK$96.4 billion, a decrease of
9.2% as compared with approximately HK$106.2 billion for the

prior financial year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In respect of the local money lending market, more restrictions
and compliance requirements imposed on banks would offer
more business opportunities to nonbank money lenders as they
could provide more flexible lending services to both retail and

corporate clients.

Regarding the local property market, buying sentiment was
impacted by the declining stock market and rising interest
rates. With real interest rates turning positive, potential buyers
estimated their affordability more carefully and became more
conservative. Local Best Lending Rates increased since September
2018 further dampened the market sentiment, yet the overall
residential prices stably increased during the year. On the other
hand, more investors focused on redevelopment potential, such
as data centres or commercial buildings, which were driving
investment transactions of industrial market. Meanwhile,
resilience continued to define the property market in United
Kingdom even as the political and global trading environment
remained challenging. Subsiding Brexit uncertainty fostered a

recovery in investor and consumer confidence.

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$15.2 million (2018:
HK$64.9 million). The operating result of the broking business
decreased by 76.6% as a result of the decrease in our broking
turnover and number of sizeable corporate finance transactions
during current year and also the one-off gains on disposal of
two subsidiaries engaged in broking business of HK$20 million
recorded in prior year. The decrease in broking turnover was
affected by the volatile local stock market and negative global
investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking for the year
decreased by 41.8% to approximately HK$56.6 million (2018:
HK$97.2 million) as compared with last financial year, of which
approximately HK$12.7 million (2018: HK$26.1 million) was
contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof of funds
business. The decrease in these fee incomes was due to the
decrease in number of deals as a result of the less active capital

market during the current year.
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ITEHREEREEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s major
revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total interest
income from securities margin financing went up by 1.6% to
approximately HK$340.3 million (2018: HK$334.8 million)
with the increase in average level of securities margin lending
during the year. Total outstanding loan of securities margin
financing as at 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$3,732.6 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$4,091.5
million). Impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
HK$20.1 million was charged during the current year (2018:
HKS$Nil). The Group will continue to maintain a balance on
yield relative to risk and cautious approach to the credit control

of its margin financing business.

Money lending

The money lending vehicle is engaged in provision of consumer
and mortgage loans. The money lending business continued to
show good performance during the period. The aggregated loan
amount increased to HK$1,086.2 million at 31 March 2019
from HK$696.7 million at 31 March 2018, with interest income
for the year increased to HK$102.3 million (2018: HK$102.0
million). Money lending business recorded profit before tax of
HK$85.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$99.3 million). Impairment loss on loans and advances of
HKS$16.5 million was charged during the current year (2018:
HKS$1.1 million). Building on the Group’s expertise and
relationships with high net worth customers, the Group remains
positive about the money lending business and will continue to

target high net worth customers with short-term financial needs.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. Assets allocations are based on
expected return rates and available funding capital. For the year
under review, this division reported a profit of HK$59.2 million
(2018: HK$29.8 million), mainly attributable to interest income
from two unlisted debt securities of HK$35.4 million (2018:
HK$34.9 million); interest income from listed debt securities
of HK$12.5 million (2018: HK$6.6 million); fair value gains
on investment properties of HK$10.7 million (2018: HK$40.6
million); rental income of HK$12.6 million (2018: HK$8
million); realised gains on equity securities of HK$2.5 million
(2018: realised losses of HK$1.5 million); and the unrealised
losses on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$11 million (2018: HK$58.5 million) due to the drop
of share prices of certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong
among the portfolio held of HK$126.9 million as at 31 March
2019 (as at 31 March 2018: HK$191.9 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group newly
acquired two investment properties in Hong Kong at total
considerations of HK$40 million. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group held a portfolio of investment properties with total fair
values of HK$881.9 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$788.1
million), comprised mainly the commercial buildings in Hung

Hom (under renovation) and London.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held an investment portfolio
consisted of equity securities, debt securities, unlisted
convertibles notes and investment funds with total fair values of
HK$815.1 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$894.3 million).
The decrease in total fair values of the investment portfolio was
mainly attributable to the partial redemption of an unlisted
redeemable bond of HK$150 million (2018: HK$Nil) during the
year while the Group held larger portfolio of listed debt securities
of HK$246.1 million as at 31 March 2019 (as at 31 March
2018: HK$123.3 million). The portfolio of equity securities
mainly comprised listed companies in Hong Kong and unlisted
shares of a company established in United Kingdom engaged in
business of properties development while the portfolio of debt
securities mainly comprises listed bonds, unlisted redeemable
bond and unlisted convertible notes issued by certain listed

companies in Hong Kong and overseas.
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ITEHREEREEBRRETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2019, it completed 5
financial advisory transactions (2018: 6). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$1.5 million for the year
(2018: HK$1.4 million).

Outlook

Looking ahead, the global economic backdrop remains clouded
with uncertainties. Since the United States and China are
the most central players in the highly integrated global trade
network, escalating US-China commercial tensions represent a
significant risk to global financial markets. The aggressive US
trade policy remains being a liability to the market as rising
trade barriers is a particular issue for those markets that are most
dependent on global trade and investment, including Hong
Kong. Most of the Asian economies are in stronger positions
than years ago but given the integration in the global supply
chain, they are still vulnerable to the trade tension between
United State and China.

In the future, the business environment of the Group will
continue to be competitive but optimistic. The development
of the Greater Bay Area and China’s Belt & Road initiative are
expected to create opportunities for Hong Kong in the coming
decades. On the other hand, the increasing compliance-related
and system-related costs in meeting the regulatory requirements
may impact the cost efficiency and earnings growth of the

Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In respect of the investment activities of the Group, management
will keep seeking quality and upscale investment properties in
both Asia and Europe, and also investment in securities with
good potential, to enhance its investment portfolio and continue
to provide a source of steady rental income and investment gains

in the future.

Dealing with the future challenges, the management of the
Group would review and adjust business strategies on regular
basis with a prudent and balanced risk management approach.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the business development and overall performance of
the Group in the future. The Group is endeavoring to render
comprehensive services to our affluent and high-net-worth clients
in order to maintain our clients’ confidence and loyalty. Given
our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients base,
strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the Group
is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in the

years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and value

for all shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$5,465.1 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HKS$5,415.9 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$49.2 million or 0.9% over that of last financial year end.
The non-controlling interests decreased from approximately
HK$1,265.7 million at 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$1,167.8 million at 31 March 2019. These movements
were mainly attributable to the reclassification of the equity
component of convertible bonds issued by GNFG from potential
non-controlling interests to retained earnings upon redemptions

of convertible bonds of principal amount of HK$262.5 million.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to HK$4,986.5 million (2018: HK$5,723.2 million), and its
liquidity as represented by current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 3.97 times (2018: 8.17 times). The decrease in
net current assets and current ratio were mainly attributable
to the reclassification of the liability component of convertible
bonds issued by GNFG of HK$233.5 million (2018: HK$350.8
million) from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as
the convertible bonds will be mature within one year from 31
March 2019. Moreover, an investment in redeemable bond of
HK$305.4 million (2018: HK$449.7 million) was reclassified
from current assets to non-current assets as the maturity date
of the redeemable notes was extended from December 2018 to
December 2020. Also, the Group’s bank balances and cash on
hand decreased to HK$505.9 million (2018: HK$749.4 million).
The decrease in bank balances and cash on hand was mainly
due to the redemptions of convertible bonds issued by GNFG
of HK$262.5 million and the increase in loans and advances of
approximately HK$389.5 million, net of decrease in accounts

receivable of approximately HK$410.6 million.

The Group had bank borrowings of HK$50 million as at 31
March 2019 (2018: HK$60 million) and its unutilised banking
facilities as at the end of the year were approximately HK$1,033
million (2018: HK$650 million), which were mainly secured by
charges over the Group’s clients’ pledged securities, a property
owned by a subsidiary of the Group and corporate guarantees
issued by GNFG and the Company. The liability component
of convertible bonds issued by GNFG amounted to HK$233.5
million as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$350.8 million). The
decrease in the liability component of convertible bonds issued
by GNFG was mainly due to the redemptions of convertible
bonds during the year. The Group’s gearing ratio (total
borrowing over equity attributable to owners of the Company) as
at 31 March 2019 was 0.06 (2018: 0.09).

The number of issued shares of Company amounted
to 9,662,705,938 shares as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
9,662,705,938 shares).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Except for an investment in unlisted equity, an investment
property located in United Kingdom and its related rental
income which were denominated in British Pound, the business
activities of the Group were not exposed to material fluctuations
in exchange rates as the majority of the transactions were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The Directors considered
that a reasonably possible annual change of 5% in the exchange
rate between Hong Kong dollars and British Pound would
not have material impact on the Group’s results and therefore
hedging through the use of derivative instruments was considered

unnecessary.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of

the year.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2019, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$105.5 million (2018: HK$105.9
million) were pledged for a banking facility granted to the
Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entity completed during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 78 (2018: 81) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$23.4 million (2018: HK$21.2
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and

performance bonus to its staff.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK 1 cent per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK 2 cents per share for this

financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 10 September
2019 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on

the register of members of the Company on 3 September 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2019 ; 16 August 2019 —
Annual General Meeting 21 August 2019,

both dates inclusive

For entitlement to final : 2 September 2019 —
dividend 3 September 2019,
both dates inclusive
(Record date being
3 September 2019)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2019
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on
21 August 2019, Wednesday and/or entitlement to the final
dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.

on the following dates:

Last date of lodegment of

Events transfer documents

For attendance to 2019
Annual General Meeting

15 August 2019, Thursday

For entitlement to final

dividend

30 August 2019, Friday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 64, is the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company and founder of the Group.
He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and
the future direction of the Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible
for overseeing the money lending and credit operation, property
development and investment of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses
over 24 years of experience in the securities and real estate
industries in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He is also the chairman of
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
was spun off for separate listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 April 2016.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 73, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group. Mr. Cham
is also responsible for overseeing the money lending business,
property development and investment the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 50 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors — continued

Mr. KAM Leung Ming, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 April 2017. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and a master’s degree in corporate governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. He has over 22 years of experience in auditing,
professional accounting and worked for several Hong Kong
listed companies of various industries and served senior roles
in financial management and secretarial functions. Mr. Kam
was the Company Secretary of the Company for the period
from 28 April 2011 to 7 April 2016. Prior to the appointment
as executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company, Mr. Kam was an executive
director and company secretary of GNFG (Stock Code: 1469)
for the period from 8 April 2016 (date of listing of GNFG’s
shares) to 28 April 2017. Mr. Kam was an independent
non-executive director of Casablanca Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2223) from 1 April 2016 to 26 May 2017. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Ever Harvest Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549) and Genes Tech Group
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8257). All of the
above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Kam
was appointed as the committee member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee (Baoshan
District) in December 2016.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2005. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been involved
in the investment and financial industries for over 40 years and
has extensive experience in bullion, foreign exchange, securities,
futures and asset management business. He has held various
senior positions with prominent banks, international financial
institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man
is currently a chief executive officer of Global Mastermind
Securities Limited which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Global
Mastermind Holdings Limited (stock code: 8063). He was also
an independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind
Capital Limited (stock code: 905) from 26 September 2014 to
18 April 2017 and currently is an independent non-executive
director of TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock code: 8017). All
of the above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors — continued

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 23 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. Mr. Sun was an independent non-executive director
of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (former stock code:
909) from 9 November 2006 to 4 April 2019, a company whose
shares were listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong but was delisted on 8 March 2019. He is currently a

director of Saigon Commercial Bank of Vietnam.

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
September 2014. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for over 25 years. He is the managing director of
Fortune Take International Limited, a company engaging in
providing financial consultancy services. Mr. Siu was the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America and responsible for business
development and credit risk management. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Siu is currently an independent
non-executive director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2326) and Sage International Group
Limited (stock code: 8082). All of the above companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2019.

This Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with
the view of being a transparent and responsible organization
which is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
The Directors believe that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the

COHﬁanCC Of our investors.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange), titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “Code”), save for the deviation from

Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained as follow:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election. The
Company has deviated from the Code provision A.4.1. The
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term. Instead they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years. This is
in accordance with the provision of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles”). As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this

Code provision.

The Directors believe that, despite the absence of specified
term of independent non-executive Directors, the Directors
remain committed to representing the long-term interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE - continued
Code A.2.1

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive should be clearly established

and set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the CEO are
performed by the same individual, which is a non-compliance
to the Code provision A.2.1 of the Code. However, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operations of the Board, which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals and meets regularly to discuss issues relating
to the operations of the Company. The Board has full confidence
in Mr. Hung Hon Man and believes that having Mr. Hung
performing the roles of the chairman of the Board and the CEO

is beneficial to the Company as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the Chief
Executive Officer and the senior management. In addition,
the Board has also established three Board Committees and
has delegated various responsibilities to them as set out in
their terms of reference. The Board has the full support of the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Details of
the delegation by the Board will be discussed in the paragraphs

below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises of six Directors, more than
one-third of these Directors are non-executive and independent
of the management. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, three of them are executives,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Deputy Chairman
and Mr. Kam Leung Ming and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam,
Alick (Member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee), Mr. Man Kong Yui (Member of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee)and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee).

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors” of this annual report. As
at the date of this report, the Board members have no financial,

business, family or other relationships with each other.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company secks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY - continued
The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy

on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and rtailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment. This is to ensure the new employee
possesses an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and has full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requircments.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts,
etc. were provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man L S A

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony R A

Mr. Kam Leung Ming HoWses
Independent non-Executive Directors BYFBITES
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry o i e A

Mr. Man Kong Yui SC 85 A

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick iR 5 il e A

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board to
make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD PRACTICES - continued
All Directors were provided with monthly updates by the

Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge

their duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, six Board meetings
were held. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications. Details of the attendance

of the Directors in the meetings are as follows:

Board
=g
Executive Directors UrES
Mr. Hung Hon Man WEEA 6/6
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony BRZEEE 6/6
Mr. Kam Leung Ming HRmEL 6/6
Independent non-Executive Directors BI¥H{TES
Mr. Man Kong Yui RIS R4 6/6
Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick FEEEE 6/6
M. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry RrBEE 6/6

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into service contracts with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2002 and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’

prior notice in writing to the other.

Other Directors did not entered into any service contract with
the Company and there are no fixed or proposed length of
service with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement

by the rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-election at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, and Mr. Man Kong Yui will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2019.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are complementary, but importantly, they are distinct

and separate with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and

helps foster better relationships between Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Hung Hon Man
also took the post of the CEO of the Company who was
responsible for developing strategies for the Board’s approval,
executing the strategies agreed by the Board and leads the

management of the Group’s operation.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the CEO are
performed by the same individual, which is a non-compliance
to the Code Provision A.2.1. Details were discussed under the
heading “Corporate Governance Code Compliance” of this

report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board at all times
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters

required.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the three independent non-executive Directors are
independent in character and judgement and they also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the CEO and senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Pursuant to the levels of authority
approved by the Board, the senior management executes
day-to-day operations unless the subject matter exceeds the
authority granted by the Board or relates to any matters
specifically reserved to the Board, they would seek approval from
the Board.

The Board has established a (i) Nomination Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable candidates for
directorship after consideration of the nominees’ independence
and quality in order to ensure the fairness and transparency of all
nominations; and (iii) to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. In identifying suitable director
candidates and making such recommendations to the Board,
the nomination committee would also take into account various
aspects of a candidate, including but not limited to, his/her
education background, professional experience, experience with
the relevant industry and past directorships. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry

(Chairman of Nomination Committee).

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There

were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors;

(if) recommended the re-election of retiring Directors at the

Company’s annual general meeting; and
(iii) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the

effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Policy — continued

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such
as the reputation integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set

out in the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee). The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year. There were three meetings
held during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior

management of the Group;

(ii) approved the basic salary increment of Directors and staff of

the Group; and

(iii) approved the granting of share options to three grantees
on 16 January 2019 under the Company’s share option

scheme.

EEERERESEET
LEEE-&

RAEB K~

A R0 AR BN T 2
[ 3 9~ R R R R BR - A
J2 0 T M) 2R i > 3 A 0 2 L
KB © WA > — R IIZ LB T %
R AR EAR IR AR - A E - UL R
GIGE RS F4 B3 Ve B b
PUATH S 2 RN LAUE— 15 LR
S T 2 8 2 e )

FMEES
FMZEENEEBESNAR A 2 E
5 R AU BN B 2 B N BOR & 2 R
mEEgRAER AN ITEE LR
BN BHMGE (BEEYH G - 8
R < B ) AT o DA B It R o A
Z AR B AL B BB A RO AR AT B AR [
feftdak UAHERMEEFHESSZ
B -

HMEZRGBRMh =SB R ES
AR > 20 F 20 o B R SR 2R ~ ST A
Humicd FMERFER) - HiMER
BHFERVBT REH  FMNEREN
BE-Z-NE=A=Z+—HILEERY
BT =W E k-

FMERARBE-B—AESA=T Wil

H k4R R EfT 2 B8 TAERSIMF )

(i) Tl o NS S i
P

(i) HEEFLAAEHE TZ2EREGE
W &

(i) AR MR R =% — T
T PARMENSAREAR
T

Annual Report 2019 F3& 29



30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors and has authority to
raise questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the
auditors; overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems and to
review the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements. The Audit Committee has access to and maintains
an independent communication with the external auditor and

management.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee — continued

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka
Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the day-to-day
management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry,
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The principal work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year is as follows:

(i) reviewed interim and annual consolidated financial

statements and announcements of the Company;

(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and

connected transactions of the Group;

(iii) reviewed and discussed with management regarding risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;
(iv) reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

(v) reviewed and monitored of the continuous professional

development of Directors; and

(vi) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were
two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee, on named
basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out in the
section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this report
above. There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the

external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the shareholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2019. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019 on a going concern basis.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued
Directors’ responsibility — continued

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(¢) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31 March 2019, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.

Independent auditor’s responsibility
The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified

Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on
pages 88 to 94.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Mazars CPA Limited, the

Company’s external auditor, provided the following services to

MB®E &
BYRHAHS
BE-Z-F=A=+—HIFER
AR T Z AU BT oA R ()

the Group: il = 755 BT 7 PR ) 1) A 42 B B 436 DAL RS
2019 2018

—E-hEF —E— N\

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

Audit services AR 2,800 2,700
Taxation services B R B 23 22
Total HEr 2,823 2,722

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has set up
its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes
identifying ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that
could affect the achievement of objectives; (ii) analyzing the
likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio
accordingly; and (iii) considering the risk responses and ensure
effective communication to the Board/senior management
and ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register
was maintained as a tool for documenting risks and actions to

manage each risk on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.

The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems was conducted and

considers them effective and adequate.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDER INFORMATION

The Group acknowledge its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of insider

information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the

company website;

e the access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis such that employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs
and only designated persons are authorised to speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external

parties such as the media, analysts or investors.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Leung Ming is the company secretary of the Company
and a full time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Kam confirmed that
he has complied with all the required qualifications, experience

and training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Sharcholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees attend and answer questions raised at the general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at

the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharcholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company by mail at the Company’s principal office address
in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist (s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Sharcholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the Board and communications relating to ordinary

business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at sharcholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no significant

change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL &
GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”) is issued by Get Nice Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. We are pleased to present our annual update
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“Reporting Period”) on
sustainability performance, accomplishments and challenges over

the past few years.

The Board is committed to making a healthy and positive impact
on the environment and on society. To accomplish this, the
Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the Group’s
risks relating to environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
areas, consequently ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG
risk management and internal control systems are in place. The
Board has formulated a clear vision and a strategic plan to follow

and monitor these impacts in our daily operations.

In accordance with the various environmental and social issues
outlined on the Listing Rules “ESG Reporting Guide”, we will
discuss the areas that are considered to be material and relevant
to the Group. Priorities are set based on the view of management
and the concerns of our stakeholders. We engage with key
stakeholders, including but not limited to our customers, service
providers, shareholders, and our employees in daily operations
through meetings and interviews to understand their specific

views on the relevance and materiality of various ESG aspects.

ABOUT GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Company is an investment holding company with our

principal businesses divided into four areas:

Money lending

2. Property development, holding and investment in financial
instruments

3. Real estate brokering service

4. Provision of financial services, including securities and
futures’ dealing and broking, options broking, securities

margin financing and corporate finance services.

BRA®RE

ABRGE g KR (R g X
EIRmE ) BT EBRARA R (AL
A L) KRR A F T8 o BAM RO B B AR
MREE—F - AF=A=+—HILFE
([ 3k 35 393 1) 9 A 48 Jog i vl 5 A MR R B~ A
SR DL B 3 25 B T T G BB B

FEREFHEONERREMLE - HEABER
B R g A AT N R E AN 4 B R
S A RAENA (TR - g RG] #
W AR B 1 L B o A T EE PR A R R AT 2K
WO BRBE ~ AL B IR e B A B oA R B 4
il BE o 2 O A P R I TR A B
# > DUGEE B B A BAM H W R i
£33 2 N

MRYE LT AIA TER I ~ 48 A IR 1R
51 1Ty e G 2% REER BT A AL Bl o FRAM A
Fo i A A5E P B L BELAS B [ A B ) SR I
18 S0 UK 2 AR A ST 11 B B R R 1 2 Y
R T A o A 8 A & v L R R
i (BHEEARRR B HEERNES -~ Ik
B AULRER - IR B L) W - DL T RS
BRI BRI ~ AL & KR R A0 A B A
HEMENABEE -

BREFEZERBRA A
RN RBEERA > EEEG Y R
K

. A

2. WEBEREA > UABEREH T
B

3. HbEEACHARES

4, REEBME > UEEEANEESE
R READ IR B - WIHE RS AL RS~ 7B 5 R
A E M AR IR -

Annual Report 2019 F#




R - HEREBHRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL &
GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT A3 EEHE

The information in this ESG report covers the operations of the ARTREE ~ A E RO IR R T R 2
following major business units during the year ended 31 March TEBREBEMRBE_ZT—NLFE=H
2019: =t —HIRFEENEE

GET NICE HOLDINGS, SUBSIDIARIES & ITS PROPERTIES
RIFER MEBLATREME

. Get Nice Financial Group Limited (“GNFG”)
HiremERARAR ((HFem])
*  Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”)
HirEFEARAF (TH 85 ])
*  Get Nice Futures Company Limited (“GNFCL”)
HUyMEARAF (&FHE])
e Get Nice Finance Company Limited (“GNFin”)
Included in this ESG Report b 0 B 5 A IR A D (&6 8 5 1)
AR~ AL RERIRE O Get Nice Real Estate Limited (“GNREL”)
HIFEEARAR (THHFEZE]
*  Get Nice Property Management Company Limited (“GNPMCL”)
MY REHEARAA ([HirEE])
J Get Nice Centre (A commercial building in Hong Kong)
R L (U — P E AR T
®*  Winton House (A commercial building in the United Kingdom)
Winton House (3% B — & 7% £ # 5°)

The Group operates the leasing of certain properties at different A AL H] NS ] Hb [ S8 S ) SRS o B
locations. Among those, Get Nice Centre, a commercial building R EBEANCIE TR —EEERE —
in Hong Kong, as well as a commercial building in the United LU R0 N SRR — i ZE R o AR
Kingdom are included in the scope of this Report. As of the end 31{ GEA TS AR BN IS Y T — JLAR
of Reporting Period, Get Nice Centre is still under renovation JE® T o

and will be completed at the end of 2019.
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SCOPE OF THIS REPORT - continued

Location/Country

3, BR

Hong Kong
A i

The United Kingdom
b [

RIE-HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL &
GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HEE—E
Property Address Status
L/E 3. 3414 AR

Get Nice Centre
HU L

270-275 Chatham Road North,
Hung Hom, Kowloon

JLBEAL Y IF i 75 L 2702755

Winton House

9-13 (0dd) St. Andrew Street and 65 Shoe
Lane, London EC4A 3AF

Under Renovation
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Leased
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The preparation and presentation of the information in this
Report are in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
The Group has prepared this ESG Report to meet the “Comply
or Explain” provisions, of which mandatory Key Performance
Indicators (“KPI(s)”) and some recommended KPIs are disclosed.
As such, the Group has been able to produce a balanced report,

focusing on our key material issues.

According to the guideline, the following principles are

underpinned:

1. Materiality: Environmental, social, and governance issues
that have major impacts on investors and other stakeholders

must be set out in this ESG Report.

2. Quantitative: KPIs must be measurable and applicable
to valid comparisons under appropriate conditions. They
must also be able to describe the purpose and impacts of

quantitative information.

3. Balance: This ESG Report must provide an unbiased
picture of the ESG performance of the Group. It should
avoid selecting, omitting, or presenting formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the

reader.

4. Consistency: This ESG Report should be consistent and
disclose statistical methodologies to allow meaningful
comparisons of related data over time. Any changes to the

methods used must be specified in the ESG Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with stakeholders is a significant part of the business
strategy; it is essential for us to understand their concerns
and priorities regarding our daily operations. The Group
communicates with the stakeholders, including but not limited
to our customers, shareholders and investors, suppliers and

employees in an open and proactive way.

GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Result of Key Stakeholders Assessment during the Reporting Period

BEHRZRARGHETEER

Key Stakeholder Key Issues Concerned Major Communication Channels
REEHnE B BRERRE EREBERE
Customers —  Product responsibility —  Company website

—  The environment and natural |-  Meeting

resources

9 — EmMELE N b

- BREARAER - gk
Employees —  Health & Safety —  Employee activities

— Remuneration and welfare |- Interview / Meeting

benefits

& - REARLE - REWESH

— M R A A - BHg#®
Shareholders & Investors —  Compliance operation —  Shareholders’ general meeting

—  Integrity —  Annual and interim Report
SR R B — L PN

- s — RS
Suppliers —  Anti-corruption —  Company website

—  Fair cooperation —  Site visit
PR - KA — AR

— ATHT — R

The Group takes active measures to promote stakeholder
relations and communications. Beside regularly issuing
annual and interim reports, circulars, and announcements to
stakeholders, the Group often arranges stakeholder meetings
to provide opportunities to maintain communication with
the Board of Directors. In addition, the Group also gives
stakeholders such opportunities in daily operations through
meetings and interviews, distribution of questionnaires,

especially with regard to the establishment of ESG criteria.
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FEEDBACK

The Group discloses business information regularly to investors

and the public through our website: www.getnice.com.hk. We

also welcome investors and shareholders to write to the Group or

send their inquiries to investor@getnice.com.hk and share their

views with the Board.

A.

ENVIRONMENT

Global climate change has, and will continue one of the
most pressing global environmental issues. The year-to-year
increase in emission of greenhouse gases (“GHGs”) is
closely related to the recent extreme weathers, including
heavy rains, flooding, droughts, heat wave, etc. Apart from
being an active participant in the community, the Group
acknowledges that it is a member of the ‘global village’.
Therefore, we seek to utilize our resources more efficiently
and reduce our GHG in order to ensure a safer, greener
future for the next generations. Sustainable development is
one of the key elements in our vision and the Group makes
an active effort to reduce its influence on the environment

through the following measures.

1) Emissions
As our Group is principally engaged in property
investment and the provision of financial services, we
do not produce significant emission discharges into
water, land and air, such as nitrogen oxides, sulphur
oxides and other respiratory suspended particles, nor
do we produce a significant volume of hazardous waste

from our businesses.

Our environmental impacts stem primarily from
energy use and GHG emissions associated with
the operation of offices, its use of vehicles, paper
usage and production of non-hazardous waste. Our
environmental strategy is primarily focused on
reducing energy use and GHG emissions, purchasing
sustainably certified paper and disposing of our key

waste streams in a responsible manner.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A. RIE—&
1) Emissions — continued 1) HWm—&

(a)

Greenhouse Gases Emissions
Our major sources of air and GHG emissions are

mostly from electricity used in daily operations

(a) = S Pk
FRAM A JBE SR B i 2 SR P ik
FERABFESEMNE D

and fuel consumption from 6 vehicles owned by B A 5 B R 22 P B A /S 2
the Group for business travel, as well as one yacht B DA K F B ST T T

for the purpose of business engagement with

clients.

The total GHG generated by the Group during
the Reporting Period was approximately 486
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, with an
intensity of approximately 6 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent per employee, comprising
the totality of our electricity consumptions, fuel

consumption and disposal of paper waste.

PR — M RE R HRRLFE ] o

T 0] A SR BT R Y
2 R A Fr486M — R
fbiEE > BHELELE T6
W AR R R B PR
fir G &R - BARLRE R I B AR
B o

Total Green House Gas Emissions during the Reporting Period
BEBANBERRASRE

Estimated Emission ~ Estimated Emission  Intensity (Emission/  Intensity (Emission/

(In tonnes of (In tonnes of Employee) Employee)

Scope of GHG Emission Emission Source C0,) 20182019 CO,¢) 2017-2018 2018-2019 2017-2018
CHE:26 fhetHnE il il

(=g ®ER) (M-E{LHEE) (SEAI4RE) (BRAIHRE)

It it ZE-tE ZE-N\E ZE-tE

BERBARER BHRR E2E-AE E2R-0\% E2E-0E E2E-0\F

Scope 1

6El

Direct Emission Consumption of Fuel by the Group’s 143.26 15237 1.84

vehicles & yacht

HHH 52 B R AR

Scope 2

L)

Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 334.17 350.66 428 433

kBt BAED

Scope 3

L]

Other Indirect Emission Disposal of paper waste

S RAKE

Total

at
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

1)

2)

Emissions — continued

(b) Waste Management
The Group takes pride in its waste management
and is committed to the proper handling and
disposal of all wastes from our business activities.
Due to the nature of our business, the Group did
not generate a significant amount of hazardous
waste during the Reporting Period. Most of the
non-hazardous waste generated was paper, with
a weight of approximately 1.9 tonnes (2018:
2 tonnes) , equivalent to approximately 0.024

tonnes (2018: 0.03 tonnes) per employee.

(c) Compliance
The Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water or land, and the generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the

Reporting Period.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to properly and efficiently
conserving resources. To fulfill our environmental
commitment, we implement multiple measures in
enhancing energy efficiency, minimising the use
of paper, reducing water consumption and driving
behavioural changes in employees. Through active
monitoring and managing the use of resources, we aim
to reduce our operating costs as well as our carbon
footprints. Given the Group is principally engaged
in investment and financial services, we do not use a
significant amount of packaging materials for finished
products. Nevertheless, for other resources consumed
from our business activities, the Group is committed
to the proper use of all resources. Details of energy and
water consumptions will be discussed in the following

sections.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

2) Use of Resources — continued

RIE - HERERRE
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A RE-&
2) BEREA-E&

Resources Consumption during the Reporting Period

BERANERER
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
Total Consumption Total Consumption Employee) Employee)
Resources Unit 2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2019 2017-2018
BE 2K
AiRg RERR (BERIXRE) (BERIXRE)
—B-N\F ZB-tfF —8-0\F ZB-tF
&R Efi EZB-NE ECR-NE ECR-pE ECR-NE
Electricity kWh 423,000.00 443,869.00 5,423.07 5,479.86
HE K&
Fuel I 52,000.00 55,300.00 667.00 680.00
ikt i
(a) Energy (a) AEVR
Due to the nature of our business in the financial FA SRR B R

sector, we do not use a significant amount of
electricity. Our electricity consumption came
chiefly from office operations. We acknowledge
reducing energy consumption can significantly
reduce carbon footprint; thus, we have adopted
various initiatives in our operation. During
the Reporting Period, the total electricity
consumption was approximately 423,000 kWh
(2018: 444,000 kWh) with an intensity of
approximately 5,423 kWh (2018: 5,479 kWh)
per employee; the total fuel consumption,
comprised of gasoline and diesel oil, was
approximately 52,000 litres (2018: 55,300 litres)
with an intensity of approximately 667 litres
(2018: 680 litres) per employee.

AR A K EHE - AW
FITE R BUR WA = o
AP 60 s [ A B UEFE BB A0
KR BEAR IR AL BF o R G 25
R ER AN S [R]85 o o
N > HEFE R & 4 £5423,000%
(S F — VAE D 444,000%
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

2)

Use of Resources — continued

(@)

Energy — continued

Case Study: Property Renovation Embeds
Environmental & Social Strategies at the Design
Stage

The Group incorporates green building principles
in the renovation of its property in Hong
Kong. We acknowledge that certain areas of the
building will consume a considerable amount of
electricity due to lighting and air-conditioning.
In order to reduce consumption of resources and
carbon footprint in the future, at the preliminary
stage, we have already applied green design
by separating these area into different zones.
Through establishing isolated controls on lighting
and air conditioning in these zones, we are able to
control the use of electricity — areas that are not
in use can be “off-electricity” temporarily. With
this application, we are able to further reduce

electricity consumption and carbon footprint.

In addition, we applied the following
environmental and social mitigation measures
at the construction sites during the renovation

period:

3 Provision of wheel-washing facilities, regular
watering to suppress dust from unpaved
areas, excavation, fill materials handling,
and active cuts and activities where dust

emissions may be generated

e Use of quiet plants, on-site movable noise
barriers, limits on the amount of plant and
equipment operating concurrently for noisy

construction activities

. Installation of T5 lighting, LED bulbs, and

highly efficient air conditioning equipment

e Arrangement registered safety officers and

safety supervisors according to laws
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

2)

3)

Use of Resources — continued

(a) Energy — continued
Case Study: Property Removation Embeds
Environmental ¢& Social Strategies at the Design
Stage — continued
e Conducting of occupational health, safety
checks and reviews at the construction site

regularly
e Adherence to relevant laws and regulations

Water

The sustainable and responsible use of water
resources is a global issue. We are aware that
shortages, excessive demand and negligent usage
of water could pose serious problems. Once again,
due to the nature of our business, we do not
use nor discharge a significant amount of water.
However, in order to raise awareness on water
conservation, the Group promotes water-saving
practices in the workplace. For instance, we offer
tips to conserve water and share with employees
internally to raise water-saving awareness and

encourage them how to reduce consumptions.

Reduction Strategy

The Group recognizes the importance of saving
energy, reducing waste, and maintaining a green office.
The following measures have been adopted in line with
our commitment to the protection of the environment
in our daily operation. We also educate our employees

on how to follow the measures effectively.

(a) Reduce Greenhouse Gases Emissions

We implemented a number of measures to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions in order to alleviate
our impact to the environment. For example, we
now encourage employees to maximize use of
electronic communication equipment and carry
out general discussions and communications
through long-distance telephone calls, video
conferencing, or other online communication
tools in order to reduce or replace non-essential
business trips and avoid emitting pollutants from

transportation.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A RIE-&
3) Reduction Strategy — continued 3) EIRRm-&
(b) Reduce Paper Waste (b) WA AR

Given the nature of our business, we use paper
for a variety of business activities such as
brochures, customer mailings and statements,
as well as daily operations within our offices.
In order to minimize the impact of our paper
usage, we seek to source sustainable paper from
the independently certified “Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification”, which
produces paper using eucalyptus pulp. Since all
eucalyptus pulp comes from sustainable forests,
we believe implementing and continuing this
practice enables us to support the sustainable

development of the forest.

We also seek to use paper efficiently in our
operations. We offer and encourage paperless
billing options for customers by granting
incentive rebates. As at 31 March 2019,
approximately 75% (2018: 70%) of the GNS’s
new customers were receiving electronic
statements. an increase of 5% in comparison to
the previous financial year. 47% (2018: 45%)
of existing customers were receiving electronic
statements, an increase of 2% from 2018. We
proactively encourage the Group’s sharecholders
to receive financial reports or circulars through
the Stock Exchange and Group websites, thereby
reducing our paper usage. On average, the
number of printed copies for each distribution of
financial reports or circulars was approximately
390 (2018: 400), a reduction of 2.5% compared

to last year.
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Receiving Electronic Statements during the Reporting Period
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New Customers MEF

Existing Customers
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

3) Reduction Strategy — continued

(b)

Reduce Paper Waste — continued

We have also adopted smart printing methods
by modifying the format of account application
forms and client agreements to reduce paper
usage in GNS and GNFCL. We advocate for the
reusing and recycling of paper by placing paper
trays in designated office locations to collect
recyclable papers and envelopes. We encourage
employees to reuse paper and print on both
sides. On the other hand, we are in pursuit of a
paperless office by encouraging electronic means
for communication, such as the intranet, email

and other internal circular systems.

Reduce Electricity Consumption

In order to reduce our electricity consumption,
we have adopted various initiatives in our daily
operations. We frequently remind employees to
turn off electrical appliances when not in use,
and purchase energy-efficient office equipment,
often taking energy labels on said equipment
into account, using models with higher energy
efficiency. We have also switched to LED lighting
systems and increased natural lighting. We set
the air conditioner in any office to a temperature
of no lower than 22 Cin summer and no lower
than 24 T in winter. All of the aforementioned
measures have contributed to a significant

reduction in energy consumption.

Recycle Waste

Apart from reducing our consumption of energy,
the Group also adopts waste recycling initiatives
in its operations. Our waste production is
relatively insignificant, and in line with our
responsibilities, the Group focuses on the
recycling of its waste. For instance, waste paper is
collected by reputable recycling companies, waste
newspapers are delivered to recycling companies
on weekly basis, and used printer cartridges and
toners are recycled. In addition, we also establish
recycling stations in our offices to collect waste

for recycling.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

4)

The Environment and Natural Resources

Evidently, with respect to our business nature
and activities, the impact of the Group on the
environment and natural resources is not significant.
Our consumption of energy mainly stemmed from
the use of electricity, water and papers in office areas.
During the Reporting Period, we have stipulated a
number of measures to reduce the use of resources and
disposal of waste. With regard to the raw materials
used in our products, our product designers seek to use
environmentally friendly materials to reduce damage to
the environment throughout the product lifecycle. Our
selection of suppliers and service providers also adopt
various green initiatives, of which include a sense of
responsibility for environmental protection, delivery
time constitute part of the criteria, in addition to the
quality of goods and services. With the aim of further
reducing our paper consumption, where conditions
appropriate, the Group’s store its documents, records

and archives in electronic files instead of paper.

We ensure that our employees and stakeholders
are aware of our green policy on environmental
protection through email and internal bulletin boards.
In addition, we remind our employees to minimize
the waste generated from work and seek to raise an
environmental conscience within them. We also
encourage them to make full use of electronic means to
communicate with customers and suppliers in hopes of

further reducing the paper consumption of the Group.

We will continue to assess the environmental risks
of our business, review the environmental practices
and ensure the compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.
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B. SOCIAL

1.

Employment and Labour Practices

We are firmly committed to building a strong team of
employees who contribute our business mission and
objectives. Human resource policies and management
approaches across our business units are reviewed
regularly to ensure that they comply with requirements
of local laws and regulations, as well as support

business growth and employee development.

As the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had
78 full-time employees. In order to cooperate with the
continuously growing scale of our business, we seek
to hire talents from different countries with financial
experience or educational backgrounds to join our

local team.
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W Male
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M Female

Lotk

4%

Percentage of Employees by Age
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1.

Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(@)

Diverse and Fair Recruitment

We uphold equal employment opportunities
for all employees in relation to all human
resources matters including but not limited
to recruitment, training, promotion, transfer
and benefits, regardless of gender, religiosity,
pregnancy, family status, marital status, race and
disability. In selecting suitable applicants for
a job, all prospects are treated fairly. Selection
criteria are built on their qualifications, abilities
and experience. Our employee handbook is
available both in print and online in order to help
employees familiarise themselves with the Group’s

policies and requirements.

We seck candidates representing a wide range
of backgrounds and experiences for positions at
all levels. In the Reporting Period, the Group
delivers internship and work opportunities for
students in local and foreign academic institute
and universities. Through participating in
skill-building workshops and meeting with our
senior leaders who represent their backgrounds
and experiences, we provide opportunities for
students to learn about careers in the financial

sector.

Promotion and Remuneration

The Group is constantly improving its
employment mechanisms. We review our
employees’ remuneration on an annual basis
through performance assessment. Starting salary
may vary in different positions according to skill,
knowledge and marketing range. We adhere to
the principle of fairness in providing promotion
opportunities for outstanding employees. We also
particularly encourage female participation in top
management and at managerial and operational

levels.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(c)

Supporting Health and Wellness

We are continually expanding our programs
and benefits to support employee health and
well-being. During the Reporting Period, we
provided our employees with medical benefits
which cover in various areas, from general
outpatient services to physiotherapy, Chinese
herbal treatment, bone-setting treatment and a

multitude of other inpatient services.

We recognise that maintaining a positive
work-life balance is essential to the health and
well-being of our employees and their families.
The Group acknowledges the need for the
practice of breastfeeding among female employees
with young children, therefore we provide private
and hygienic rooms to mothers to fulfill such
requirements during office hours. In addition,
we offer flexible work hours to support parents
and others who need alternative time schedules,
in addition to marriage leave and compassionate
leave for employees in need. On the other hand,
we encourage continual learning by providing
examination leave to employees who need to take

examinations relating to our business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group invited
the Health Department to give a health seminar

in July 2018 to raise awareness regarding the

implementation of healthy practices.

Photo 1
1

BIE M BRELHRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL &
GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. & -

=
mE

1. BREZEIESR-&

(©)

HEE) B T B O R
TMFFEmE R TH
O f B Y w3 e AR A o
N BAM A B TN
2 8] 55 % 10 B AR A > H
B4 W 2 w2 B - ) PR
B PR BRITU R R 2 H
L AE Be iR 55 o

A B R MR R AT 0 TAEA
W ERE TRERE S
O fE R 1 R 6 o A 42 ) S HF
B TR AR R R
AT > R I R A 2 I L 4
W5 2 I AL N K i AR Y S TH]
SR BT Jt A7 7 e 2 IR T 1 oy 2L
THE o BAh s T B AR R
e NG B o e K i
Ml M AAETER L
fh 15 R & B4 > 55—
T % 5% B 7 A8 1 > FRAM IR
P AL R - %l s A R
W L B A 2L AH B B
EENIN= P

e it YA > A R T K e AR A
FEN_F— /NEL H B
FRBEE & LR R B T
e A 1 T Y R e

A health seminar organized by the Health Department in July 2018 (Photo 1 & 2)
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1.

Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(d) An Inclusive Culture

In addition to our support of the health
and wellness of our employees, we strive to
promote an inclusive and supportive culture
where our employees are treated with dignity
and respect. We achieve this by strengthening
the communication between the Group and
employees. Human Resources Department
regularly meets employees to understand their
needs and concerns in daily operation and takes
the responsibility to review and monitor regularly

on the working procedures, benefits and policies.

For us, every new employee is part of our values
and motivations to achieve higher. We, therefore,
provide a comprehensive orientation program
to new joiners who are equipped with the

followings:

e The Group’s structure
e Employee’s role and responsibility
*  Visiting the office

e Other procedures and regulations
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. Employment and Labour Practices — continued 1.

B. &€&
EEREIER &

(d) An Inclusive Culture — continued (d) Frhscfb — 45

In addition, we believe “A healthy body makes a
healthier mind and happier person”. Therefore,
we provide our employees with a nutritional
lunch at our office every working day. The dietary
includes a wide variety of cuisine such as meat,
fish, vegetables and soup with an emphasis of
“less oil, salt and sugar”. This has been a Group
practice for more than 22 years and is one of the
many fringe benefits that our employees share.
We also encourage our employees to bring the
leftover food and rice to their homes to reduce
food waste. In addition, the Group provides a

variety of fruits freely to employees and account

executives on a regular basis.
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Photo 4
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A healthy body makes a healthier mind and happier person, the Group provides fruits to employees and account
executives on a regular basis (Photo 3 & 4)
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1.

Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(d) An Inclusive Culture — continued

This inclusive culture stems from our Group’s
management team, who recognises that caring
for employees is one of the Group’s core values.
Our management team furthers these efforts by
providing employees with pastries and cakes. For
example, delicious cakes are provided freely to
employees and account executives, one example
of which are Longevity Buns on the seventh
day (Renri) of the first lunar month, of which
culturally means celebrating the birthdays of each

employee and account executive.
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In celebrations of 2019 Renri, we had Longevity Bun together and

wishing everyone a fruitful and healthy year.
W ZFE—JLFEANH » TR T it - KK A — 4
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Growth with Our Employees

The success of the Group relies on the employees
— the most valuable part of the Group, reflected
by their commitment and loyalty. The Board is
proud of the very low turnover rate, an indicator
of high employee satisfaction and engagement
with the Group. The turnover rate of employees
in the Reporting Period was 3.84%. Many of our
employees have been working in our Group for
more than 10 years. As at end of the Reporting
Period, a total of 22 full-time employees have
been serving the Group for more than 20 years
and 20 full-time employees serving for more than

10 years.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. Employment and Labour Practices — continued

()

Growth with Our Employees — continued

On 21 December 2018, a Christmas Party
was held to express the Group’s gratitude to
its employees and account executives for their
support and service as well as to foster team spirit
within the Group. The employees and account
executives enjoyed a cheerful and memorable

dinner.
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A cheerful and memorable Christmas Party on 21 December 2018
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Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations in our employment and
labour process, including but not limited
to recruitment, dismissal, promotion and
remuneration of employees regardless of where
we operate. The rights and interests of employees
are protected in accordance with laws and

regulations.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

2

Health and Safety

The Group strives to foster a safe working
environment where all individuals are supported to
succeed and can develop to their fullest potential.
Given the principal business of the Group relates
to property development, investments and financial
services, we do not have substantial safety hazards

within our office environment.

To provide employees with good and safe working

conditions, the initiatives below were adopted:

Applied “Bactakleen” antibacterial treatment to

clean the air circulation system

Installed two sets of water filtration systems to

provide healthier water for employees

Placed air purifiers in the office area

Purchased ergonomics chairs for employees

Displayed the safety and health pamphlets issued
by Occupational Safety & Health Council on
our intranet and notices board (For example,
Safe Manual Handling and Workplace Stretching
Exercise, Get Moving and do Regular Exercise,

Eat smart and Build a Healthy diet etc.)

Arranged professional services providers to
clean the carpet, telephone sets and computer

equipment to reduce possible germs spread

Prohibited smoking and drinking liquor in the

workplace during office hour

Equipped Human Resources Department with

counselling skills
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B. SOCIAL - continued

23

Health and Safety — continued

There were no casualties and accidents over the
Reporting Period, nor did the Group identify any
violations of laws and regulations in relation to
workplace health and safety during the Reporting
Period.
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Occupational Health & Safety Performance

BERERZEXRHE

Item HH 2018-2019 2017-2018
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—g-nE| Z-®-NF
Work-related accidents BT AR A B &4 = 3
Injuries suffered by employees B 12145 - -
Sick leave due to work injury B A% 1 7800 1B = -
Work-related Fatalities BT AEA BB B 12 ik — =

Development and Training 3. BERIZI

We also offer employees with opportunities to develop
their knowledge and skills. The Group believes
training and development are essential for achieving
a distinctive competitive edge for the employees and
the Group. The Group encourages each employee to
develop their strength and opportunities through their
own training objectives. We also welcome employees
to attend seminars or exhibitions related to our
business or operations during office hours so that they

are well-equipped to perform their duties.

In addition, the Group supports internal and
external training programs accredited by Continuous
Professional Training for employees and accounts
executives licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, which can help them earn qualifications
and acquire the latest industry knowledge. During
the Reporting Period, our employees cumulated 648
(2018: 619) training hours, as well as other seminars,
training courses and workshop sessions. In addition to
examination leave, employees are entitled to subsidies
for training or examination fees for the application of

licenses relevant to the Group’s business.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

4.

Labour Standards

The Group’s labour standards primarily focus on
conformity with local labour laws and regulations.
We prohibit any child and forced labour in any of
our operations and production process. We have
established a strict protocol for hiring, of which
responsible persons conduct thorough verification of
candidate’s identification documents to ensure child

labour is not recruited.

We never force employees to work overtime, with
all overtime decisions being voluntary in nature.
We provide meal allowances to employees working

overtime.

The Human Resources Department ensures the
Group’s procedure and operations comply with the
laws and regulations below, including but not limited

to:

*  Employment Ordinance

*  Minimum Wage Ordinance

*  Sex Discrimination Ordinance

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance

e Family Status Discrimination Ordinance

*  Race Discrimination Ordinance

*  Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
*  Occupational Safety & Health Ordinance

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

The Group did not violate any relevant laws and
regulations regarding the prevention of child and

forced labour during the Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

Given the nature of our business in the investment
and financial sector, we do not have significant
suppliers within the businesses and operations. The
Group’s suppliers include various computer systems
and software vendors, market information providers,
legal advisers and several other professional business
service providers. The selection of suppliers is based on
criteria such as price, reputation, track record of high
corporate standards, expertise, capacity creditability,

business stability and product/service quality.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

5.

Supply Chain Management — continued

Moving forward, we will continue to closely

collaborate with our suppliers to create shared value.

We will also continue to incorporate social and

environmental considerations into our procurement

practices and promote sustainability in our value

chain.

Product/Service Responsibility

(a)

Policies and Compliance

Since we are principally engaged in the
investment and financial sector, the Group
has adopted due and careful considerations
in its business activities and are committed to
comply with the rules and regulations of various
regulators in Hong Kong such as Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, Hong Kong
Police Force (Licensing Office) and the Estate
Agents Authority. The Group also strictly adheres
to the applicable laws and regulations relating to
product/services responsibility in Hong Kong,

including but not limited to:

. Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)

. Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules

. Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules

. Securities and Futures (Client Securities)
Rules

. Conveyancing and Property Ordinance

. Land Registration Ordinance

. Money Lenders Ordinance

. Money Lenders Regulations

. Estate Agents Ordinance

. Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance

. Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceeds)

Ordinance

. Organised and Serious Crimes Ordinance

. United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures)
Ordinance
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B. SOCIAL - continued

6. Product/Service Responsibility — continued

(a) Policies and Compliance — continued

In order to ensure the full compliance of
the above laws and regulations, the Group
has established a comprehensive structure
of policies and procedures and require
operational departments at all levels the proper
implementation of the control measures. The
senior management is responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of these departments
and ensuring that the internal control procedures
are being followed. In addition, we have
published and circulated written operational and
procedural manuals within the Group, which

contain internal guidelines and implementation

plans to ensure the following:

1. Conduct business in an orderly and efficient
manner

2. Protect the assets of the clients and the
Group

3.  Maintain proper records and ensure the

reliability of financial information and other

information used within and published by

the Group

4. Prevent and detect potential fraud

5. Comply with all applicable laws and

regulatory requirements

We also place substantial emphasis on providing
quality service to our clients. The compliance
team is assigned to receive, record, handle and
report all complaints received from our clients.

We are committed to handling complaints in a

proper and stringent manner.
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6. Product/Service Responsibility — continued

(@)

(©)

Policies and Compliance — continued

In addition, we have established a complaint
hotline which is handled by the complaint
officer. The hotline number is printed on the
statement of accounts sent to the clients of GNS
and GNFCL. We maintain a complaints file to
ensure a full record and the appropriate actions
are maintained on the portfolio’s file. We reply
to all complaints within 24 hours, to which the
compliance manager will review and follow-up

according to pre-defined procedure.

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies
The Group places emphasis on protecting the
privacy of its clients in the collection, processing
and use of their personal data and is committed
to the compliance of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and other relevant codes of practice
issued by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data.

The Group owes a contractual obligation of
confidentiality of its clients in terms of their
information as stated in the account’s opening
agreements, and therefore treats their transactions
records and personal information as private and
confidential. All of their information is subject to
disclosure requirements under the relevant laws,
rules and regulations (e.g. Listing Rules or SFO).
Additionally, clients retain the rights to review
and revise their data, as well as opt out from any

direct marketing activities.

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Group manages and protects its trademark
“Qu” through registration in Hong Kong. The
Group obtains proper licenses on software and

information that are used in various operations.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

6. Product/Service Responsibility — continued

(d) Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there were no
incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations concerning breaches of customer
privacy, loss of data, as well as the provision of

products/services.

7. Anti-corruption

(a)

(b)

Policies and Procedures
Honesty, integrity and fair play are the

cornerstones of the Group’s business.

The Group strongly encourages employees to
raise concerns and questions regarding ethics,
discrimination or harassment, and to report
suspected violations and other applicable laws,
regulations and policies. We believe early
identification and resolution of these issues
is critical to maintaining good relationships
with our clients, employees and stakeholders,
as well as the Group’s reputation. We do not
tolerate corruption and bribery, and we actively
combat corruption risks and loopholes. We have
established a whistle-blowing policy to provide
a robust mechanism which allows employees to
report any malpractice existing in the Group to

the audit committee under confidentiality.

During the Reporting Period, we organised a
seminar for employees on “Anti-Corruption and
Integrity” with the Independent Commission

Against Corruption of Hong Kong.

Money laundering

In order to detect and prevent money laundering
and counter-terrorist financing activities, we
established various policies and procedures in
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Our employees are required to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations and
the anti-money laundering guidelines we have

adopted.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
7. Anti-corruption — continued

(b) Money laundering — continued
Our anti-money laundering and counter-
terrorism policies and procedures consist of four

main components:

1. Client Due Diligence
We have approached a third-parrty
professional vendor to maintain a name
search in the database system. This enables
us to screen each new client against current
terrorist and sanction designations, and
check whether the client is a Politically

Exposed Person;

2. Ongoing Monitoring
We regularly review documents, data and
information of our clients and monitor
our clients’ activities. This enables us to
identify those complex, large and unusual

transactions;

3. Suspicious Transaction Reporting
We have established a comprehensive
internal protocol regarding suspicious
activity. If such activity is detected, it shall
be reported to the compliance team at
once. Whenever the team holds reasonable
grounds to justify that the clients or
activities are indeed suspicious, we shall
then file suspicious activity reports to the
Joint Financial Intelligence Unit as soon as

possible; and

4. Record Keeping
We trace individual transactions through
ongoing data and information keeping. This
enables us to establish a financial profile
for any suspicious account or client. These

records are then kept for at least six years.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
7. Anti-corruption — continued
(¢) Compliance
During the Reporting Period, no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices were brought
against the Group or its employees. Also, no
whistleblowing concerning criminal offences or

misconduct was reported.

8. Community Investment

The Group acknowledges that a sustainable business
is dependent on the stability and well-being of the
community where it operates. In addition, we regard
improving the community well-being as an important
way to fulfill our values. During the Reporting
Period, the Group participated in various types of
public benefit activities and encouraged employees to

participate in these activities:

(1) Donations
e HKD20,000 to Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals (January 2019)

. HKD30,000 to The Community Chest of
Hong Kong (October 2018)

LARAMEIENMERNE

Photo 7
ldl 7

B. €&

7o

REF—&

() HH
WA AEEREE T
N7 40 95 T BB y5 4T 2 A B Y
PR E A T3/ | ) NN I |
A S FRAITHAT B REN
S -

7% B ] R I AT A A R SE T T L
PR LT AE A IR SRR A o
oAb > AL S E A R A A '
BUE (A E B R - g m
AL 2 B L TH N 4 16 B) > 3 8%
R SR

Z 2R AN

. mﬁﬁ I 48 720,000
ot (F—JLE—H)

TR T /A SR o = B¢
30,0004 o0 (. F — J\4E
+H)

Photo 8
s

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Corporate Partnership Recognition (Photo 7 ¢ 8)
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. & —#&
8. Community Investment — continued 8. EENHEH-&
(2) Voluntary Services ) FLIRH
e Keeping the shoreline clean is a part of our o PRFRIG R SEHIBERM
community commitment. The Group’s A ARER — B o A4
management team played an important role Y 4 B K BB B
in mobilizing staff and their family members TRERANELET
as volunteers to join this meaningful event. 2 B TE K LR 26 0 T
The Group organized a coastal cleanup at BB EEAEN A
Stanley Main Beach in October 2018. LER = F— NFE+H

1 75 WK 4L T
— YR R A -

Photo 9 Photo 10
[ 9 [ 10

A Coastal cleanup at Stanley Main Beach in October 2018 (Photo 9 & 10)
RN A 175 I Bk R T R L AE (9.4 10)
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. #tEg-—1&
8. Community Investment — continued 8. EENHBH-&
(2) Voluntary Services — continued () FLARE —#E
. Collected used red packets for Greeners . By Bk SEAT B B TR 2 & [w)
Action’s “Lai-See Packet Recycle & Reuse WCRATE) | [l e A2 &t o
Programme”. (March 2019) (ZF—N%F=H)

11

. Collected second-hand books for World . AR E el —F
Vision (July 2018) HE(=EZ—/NFELH)

Photo 13
13

The Group cares the community by participating in various activities we collected used red packets for Greeners
Action (Photo 11 & 12) and donated second-hand books (Photo 13)

I [B]3% 20 22 HEA ] 1 75 B B AL i o T AP 25 AR SHA T B[] FAE (11 K 12) L AG R — F & ([ 13) -
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B. SOCIAL - continued

8.

Community Investment — continued

(2) Voluntary Services — continued
*  Supported Heep Yunn School for the
Work Experience Placement Programme
(September 2018)

B.
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Photo 14
[ 14

Supported Heep Yunn School for the Work Experience

Placement Programme in September 2018

SCIF B B TR B a# (—F—/EAA)

(3) Community Service Excellence
The Group has been awarded the Caring
Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service, recognizing its ongoing
commitment to fulfilling its corporate social
responsibilities for two consecutive years. We
were also awarded the Good Employer Charter
by the Labour Department of Hong Kong for
adopting good people management practices and

cultivating them in our workplace.

ARERE
Carlngcompanyw

Awarded by The Hong Kong Cou
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The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) money lending, (ii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments; (iii) real estate agency and (iv) the provision of
financial services, including securities dealing and broking,
futures and options broking, securities margin financing
and corporate finance services. Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 95 to 96.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to
approximately HK$96,627,000 in aggregate was paid during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.01 per share to the sharcholders on the

register of members on 3 September 2019.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2019
is set out on pages 251 to 252 of this annual report.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the

year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company with details
are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages

99 to 100.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to sharecholders were approximately
HK$3,114,921,000 (2018: HK$3,138,251,000) which comprised

the share premium, special reserve and retained earnings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Kam Leung Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Man Kong Yui
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of the audit committee,

nomination committee and remuneration committee)

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and Mr. Man Kong Yui will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Being
cligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

Name of Director  Details of change

Mr. Hung The monthly salary of Mr. Hung was
Hon Man increased from HK$13,230 to HK$20,000
with effect from January 2019.

Mr. Cham Wai Ho The monthly salary of Mr. Cham was
Anthony increased from HK$28,670 to HK$32,000
with effect from January 2019.

Mr. Kam Leung The monthly salary of Mr. Kam was
Ming increased from HK$33,080 to HK$34,740
with effect from January 2019.

Mr. Man Kong Yui The monthly director fee of Mr. Man was
increased from HK$8,800 to HK$9,500
with effect from January 2019.
Mr. Man was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of TradeGo
FinTech Limited (stock code: 8017) on 29
August 2018.

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, The monthly director fee of Mr. Sun was
Henry increased from HK$8,800 to HK$9,500
with effect from January 2019. Mr. Sun
resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Zhongda International
Holdings Limited (former stock code: 909,
a company whose shares were delisted on 8
March 2019) on 4 April 2019.

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, The monthly director fee of Mr. Siu was
Alick increased from HK$8,800 to HK$9,500
with effect from January 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to

17 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man and
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/ BEXS EHEREXS
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS
1. Tenancy agreement 1. HEEHS
Transaction Name of counterparty Term of agreement Address of premises Amount
R REHF2ER 1#h % F 29 Y% 2 i3t &8
HK$
BT
Tenancy made on 1 June Legend Creative 1 June 2015 to 31 May ~ Workshop C9 and C10 504,000
2015 (monthly rental: Enterprise Limited 2017, renewed on 11/F, Block C, Hong Kong
HK$42,000), renewed on as the tenant 5 June 2017 for two Industrial Centre, Nos.
5 June 2017 (Note) WA E AR T years to 31 May 2019 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
W_F—TENH—H (FERTF) “E—-HAERA—H Kowloon, Hong Kong
e LA HHEILEET ILE
(A : 42,000%7T) - EA=+—H> 489-4914%
A F—-LHEANALH I Sl o2 Tk TP LCRE
M () ANHIH B 11#C9 K C10% 17
WA 2 & — L
HA=1+—H
Note: The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an BfaE : TP By AR 0N BT 38 5 30 32 R 1k v
executive Director and Chairman of the Company. P era § PN
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing 2.

Name of connected person

Executive Directors:
Hung Hon Man and his associates
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associates

Kam Leung Ming and his associates

Directors of certain subsidiaries of
the Group:
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate
Hung Sui Kwan and his associate
Cheng Wai Ho and his associate
Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate

REBRBRARBEERRE
Brokerage
commission Margin loan Maximum
income paid interest paid amount of
to the Group to the Group margin loan
BEALTHS for the year for the year for the year
Fae Fae
FFEEE NFFERE £R
k4 ZREE  RETER
AL ON BERAE ZEEEHE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
o P BT
HITES:
I3 S9EN ) Y 2,883,953 9,894,009 227,807,489
e e} YN 4,285 - -
HREWRHBHRAL 14,427 6,700 1,028,301
FEEETHELARZES:
LRERHRAL 13,769 - -
ESTREN ] YN 5,405 4,635 1,311,583
I R HEBE AL 40,913 82 27,697
KGRI E AL 8,507 3,857 736,202

Save as disclosed in (3) below, the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, were of the
opinion that the transactions listed above were on normal
commercial terms where all of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an annual basis
calculated under the Listing Rules were less than 5% and
the annual consideration was less than HK$3,000,000. The
transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Asia Smart Group Limited

On 30 August 2017, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a subsidiary of the Company and Asia Smart Group
Limited (“Asia Smart”), a company wholly owned by Mr.
Hung Hon Man (an executive Director and the chairman
of the Board), entered into (i) the financing services
agreement (“Financing Services Agreement”, as amended
by supplemental agreement dated 12 September 2017),
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Asia Smart and/or its
associates from time to time during the period from 20
November 2017 to 31 March 2020; and (ii) the broking
services agreement (“Broking Services Agreement”)pursuant
to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon request from
Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide broking services
and services incidental thereto by GNS or any company
amongst the Group to Asia Smart and/or its associates
during the period from 30 August 2017 to 31 March
2020. Details of the terms and conditions of the Financing
Services Agreement and Broking Services Agreement can be
referred to the announcements dated 30 August 2017 and
12 September 2017 and circular dated 18 October 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, (i) the interest
income earned from Asia Smart by GNS amounted to
HK$9,834,000 (with annual cap set at HK$18,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019); (ii) the maximum
amount of margin loan granted to Asia Smart amounted to
HK$227,688,000 (with annual cap set at HK$230,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019); and (iii) the brokerage
commission earned from Asia Smart by GNS amounted
to approximately HK$2,857,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$8,000,000) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Pursuant to the rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3. Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Asia Smart Group Limited — continued

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the above transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that: (i)
have not been approved by the Board, (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of
goods or services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have

exceeded the their respective annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 76 to 79, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As of 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued =

1.

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of 1.

the Company

Name of Director

BEEns

Mr. Hung Hon Man
W S A

Capacity
BEME

Held by controlled corporation (Note)
M2 EMEA (72)

EERRSTRAEZKROESR -

AATEREELIBT2ZER ZHF

-}

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held
Frise &7
EERHME

2,898,049,874

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

of the Company
EARDTRERT
A=

29.99%

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
2,898,049,874 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited

liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of 2.
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

g ULEE SR A U A A B Honeylink
Agents Limited$f H Z & A 7]
2,898,049,874/8 % @ B 2 HE 2 -
Honeylink Agents Limited 4 7 3% & J&
RS MBS 2 ARAR - HA
O E B AT A bt S e AR A

H o

RADAZIZENBRAAEFRES
BRAA((HFES]) 2BREELO
BIZEREEEERZHR

Percentage

Number of of the issued

non-voting non-voting

deferred deferred share

Name of Director Capacity shares* held of GNS

hEETES

FisEEER CSRTERE

EENA EEME EERBE EZERZBIL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
W ST A EmfEA A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
AR Se A HmEA A

40,000,000 100%

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERBETHAEZRDER —

INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued ="

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of 2.
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company —
continued

i The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to &

dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

RADAZIZENBRAAEFRES
BRAA((FFRES]) 2BREELO
BLIBREEEER2HR &

48 P I RE IR SIE RS BE R L A R
JREE, > I R i 4 A AT AT R B
PN R R N e i o
A A RE > & G 38 5 T k4 UR T
WA N LR R R
N 2 RE ST DA S A A B A
1,000,000,000,0005 7T 2 K JH T 3 48
JERe A N T DME R A B 2
EL 40O B R B 5 A0 T (T 4 5
MEAR AL R FEA N > 1T &5 4 7% 2 2 B
3 4 B A R A o 3 Bl
S5 e A I A e 2 A s R B 4
) & el = | )

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 3. REQAFZENBRARAEFEHE
each of GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the BRHEEIEBTZEBR 2HR
Company

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

Name of director Capacity shares held of GNFG

HEFER

FriFB 81T B B®ITRA

EEHR EaEttE EBEREE ZEDH

Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 50,309,829 2.01%
HEOLAE Mz HERA (i)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in FE o RS AR AR 5 BB i Honeylink

50,309,829 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
Honeylink Agents Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Hung Hon Man.

BEA

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Agents Limited$§ A Z &5 4T < fil
50,309,829k ¥ 4 i < #E % e
Honeylink Agents Limited /4% i 9 &
i LR R R R SL 2 A RA T H
A L BEAT A ol PSS AR AR

B b SCRT #8844 IR = F —JLEFE=H
=t H o MR K B R 2 35200 8
T A 1R B T T T R Bk ERRR 4% A e < B i
[ A 2% ) R B A8 P A i B R o AR 8 ]
bR = AT B B A AN ] SRR fT
FH I G 28 U 25 I ) B2 I ] 26 X Vi

AT AT S A7 B IR e 4 ) A AT i IR
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SHARE OPTIONS

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company
in August 2012. Particulars of the share option schemes are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
On 16 January 2019, the Company granted share options to
three grantees, which are non-employee eligible participants,
to subscribe for a total of 289,800,000 ordinary shares of the
Company under the share option scheme. The exercise price
is HK$0.26 per share. Details of the grant of share options,
including the validity of the share options can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 January 2019. Save
for disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised or

cancelled under the share option scheme during the year.

As at 31 March 2019, the number of share options to subscribe
for a total of 381,221,393 shares in the Company, representing
approximately 3.94% of the total number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company, may still be granted under the share

option scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name Capacity

=L EaEME

Hung Hon Man
B HZ R M A (i)

Beneficial owner (Note)

T A N (K i)

Honeylink Agents Limited
(“Honeylink™)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in 2,898,049,874
ordinary shares of the Company which are held by Honeylink, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Held by controlled corporation (Noze)
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e 2 B AN R B A B 2 B we M (T HE 4 55
O M) SZH A AR 8 A 2 A IR

wr
A2 A B IR AT (E 0. 17 70 2 7 2k

Number of issued Percentage of the

ordinary shares issued share capital

held of the Company

FRIBERT GHARXASEHT
EERHE BREZED L
2,898,049,874 29.99%
2,898,049,874 29.99%

Bt A U SO S AR W % HE R FH Honeylinkd A
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$60,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 18 to 38 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and is decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2019 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 14.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of

this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry
and properties investment sector, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt

theunexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institution. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses, or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan, including but
not limited to implementation of cyber security control and
comprehensive cyber testing programme, to protect the Group

from risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
cach of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). Deloitte resigned as auditor of the
Group with effect from 23 March 2018 and Mazars CPA
Limited (“Mazars”) was appointed on 23 March 2018 as the new

auditor to fill the causal vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 were audited by Mazars whose term of

office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
CHAIRMAN

27 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MBEMAZARS

TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 250, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

HEELEE-#

Loss allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL”) on loans and advances

B R B T T B 18 ([T k18 )) Z s 18 1

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEMBEIREN 2~ 4> 6 R24P7# 2 1 B 1 7%

Key Audit Matters
REELER

At 31 March 2019, loans and advances amounting to
HK$1,086 million, net of loss allowance for ECL of
HK$29 million, represent 13% of the total assets of the
Group. C
R_F—NLFE=ZH=+—H ERXLAKXE
1,086,000,000%5 7T (411 Bk T 311 15 & 5 18 < s 8 #8446
29,000,000%70) - i BEEEEBEZ13% o

Management assessed the provision for ECL of loan

and advances based on the estimate of credit losses over

the expected life of these receivables and considered — °
whether there were or will be any events or changes

in circumstances that indicated or may indicate a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
these balances.

LR % S B SRR T TR D A D ) £ B g R

FF &5 R T © A SO & AT (T 35 0 S DL B

T 2 JUR 8F] RS B % S R RO Al R AR B it
B A AR B - Al R K R B TR S R 1R
4 -

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due

to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgement in evaluating the recoverability of the balances

and in turn, among other factors, credit worthiness of the
borrowers. .
7S A% S 515 AL 2 TR )y R A A TR T > B AR R

W T 2 4 RETE R 2 A Ak 45 B 2 AT i (e BB DA (B
At TR 3R A0 A5 BN 2 A7 B IR 7 % 7R B o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
FERHMNBETNNEEREENSEE

Our procedures, among others, included:

A A bl 2 A2y (bR HABAE 740 G

understanding, through enquiry with the
management, the established policies and procedures
on credit risk management of receivables from
money lending business;

0 348 1 LR A D I TR S 2 R AR I
5 B0 A B A 11 2 B 8 BUR AR )T

evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
loans and advances and the measurement of the loss
allowance;

T A 5 BB AR T o 6 4 A e (B R B
B DL KRt R IR AR

assessing, on a sample basis, the fair value of the
secured properties for the loans and advances by
making reference to the recent open market value of
similar properties at nearby locations; and

78 22 25 0 A0 b [ R) T ) 2 2 B2 8 BA T (E 30 &
KB 2 A AR 3 2 o SR AT ARG A

K

assessing management’s judgement over the ECL

and creditworthiness of the borrowers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such
as background information of the borrowers,
recoverable amount of securities collateral, past
collection history of borrowers, concentration risk
of borrowers, the Group’s actual loss experience
and subsequent settlement of the loan and interest
receivables.

78 28 Bl FEAL TR B R () A0 1 RN SRR =
Fob~ 3 S5 HC AT S A0 ATk ] e A~ E 1] i SR
WO I FE Bk~ A RO 9 4R v R RS~ A 4R B Y
W% e 184 5 ) LA 455 0 R R B ORI B Tl
I T A e TR £ KON B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

MREREE -

Loss allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the business of

dealing in securities margin financing

i 77 (R i 5 38 5 B AE 2 IR i 2 % /7 AR IR 2 T I o 18 ([T 5 i 18 ) 2 I 18 1

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

BB IR AN GE2 ~ 4> 6 R2507 # 2 M B H %

Key Audit Matters
REELER

At 31 March 2019, the accounts receivable from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
amounted to HK$3,695 million, net of loss allowance for
ECL of HK$37 million. These represent 44% of the total
assets of the Group.

R_FE—NFE=ZA=1T—H BLEXHEFELZ
JRE i £ 78 4 % 5 MR IH 793,695,000,000%5 7T (1155 78 15
15 55 18 2 5 48 48 #537,000,000% 70) - 1 HAEE
B M 2 44% -

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as margin loan overdue information, loan-to-value
percentage, default rate provided by credit rating
agency or other relevant information together with
forward-looking analysis

B AR R R e O ) R - BB E
EE ~ 5 65 T A5 0 A B 3t 119 7 A% 4 O 4t A B R LA
T iy B P 2 A 5 % R i A SO T A A IR e
J5RRTE ) TR Bl 1R 1A

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the account
receivables from margin clients.

7S A% S 519 AL 2 Bk ) 2y R A A TR TH > B AR
A Bk 2 BB I i W OR R B R P IRIA L TR
Sy ZEL Y E PN

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
AERHMNETNAEEBRETSHE

Our procedures, among others, included:

AT 2R (BRI AR 750 64

o considering the relevance and reasonableness of
key assumptions over the ECL assessment, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used in the
assessment;

% i TS B R 1R T AN Y BE SR R 5 2 A R M A
G BEME > DA R R Al A (58 B U BhE B A B A
RN

*  cvaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the
measurement of the loss allowance;
Al R B A BEAR o B A A 9 (A o AR
i & P ARIH DL K R B R IR 2 TR

D checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with
reference to closing market price;

AR SRR SO A 22 25 Wi {8 il 2 5 IS4 B A
T BT DL K T i (o] 4 B 2 MR Tl

*  comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the accounts
receivable from each individual margin clients to
determine whether there was any shortfall; and
1% 8 5 K A i 22 AT A T < R B A ) o R
&R MRIEAR AR FL R > DA E = A AT AT
RE# K

e assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall,
after taking into account other factors like credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment
subsequent to reporting period.

FE25 2 (58 ~ WoaRs sk S ol 118 2 3= kR
EIRCY S5 J\é%ﬁﬁﬁ? ) R R A o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2019 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

BrrAlEHH LM ERAR - Hit &G
i BRAF - UFFERT R ER
e B4 B WS R R T T R AR
B R A o

AR BB AR B R 2 B AN
FOA A} o T AR A% B SIS A L 3 R AT AR
2 R w8 & i o

WA B S M REZFLM S
AR 2 BT R B A R > I AE B
WA > B 8 A R R 7 BLAR 5 RS TR
R B AL A A B AL R AR P N A
A R 1R B F A 7 T B O 5 R B
Al o A A AR BT 2 AT 2 AR A
SR R 5 L EL At o B R O R B
R ZE S i % 2 o AR A% BRI 7E I8 D T 0 28

4 o

EERAEEAARHGAMBERRZE
(55

BAFAEHAAREREB GG
WA 2 7 i B i ot Y ) % 7 i 2 ) R 491
2 PR BLE W E AT AR R
FoWARHERZHLEZRNAREE >
TR A S 2 B3 T s ik 3 ey 7 B A o] 2 7 S
W BB AT ) B 2 T OK B R R

T i B A B S R IR B S JH R R RT
i R AR Z B TR A
0 o B A A A B 2 SR > 30 AR A
megstEE BREEHAESL BEH
T AR A AR AL > B A T R T SR
Ty 2 B0 55 A Al

AREBRZ ANRAARESR BEEZM
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.
e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

D Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obrain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

BRBMAERGREM BRI 2EE-#

s HESRMFAKEGIIEEZN
R A o ARR T IR
it > il AE & 7 A7 7E B2 1R BN DL A B
Z RN E R > fE T AT A A B
BAE M 2 R R ACERE ) AR T OR B
T o ik A A% B R 5 A AE TR AN Tl E
P AT 0 2 7 A R o 4R R O
P AR A B R R 2 AR B
B o B A B ER AL I EAERT
AN B 2 T o AN Bl 2 K TS
2N RS R SRV
R IERE o SR > R A 2 1 201 UL AT AE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
g p

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 June 2019

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate Number: P04793

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
it & FET T#TT
Revenue I &= 7 561,905 584,840
Other operating income A 78 3 A 9 4,409 5,066
Other gains and losses, net HoAth i £ % e 18 1 AH 10 (37,222) 5,360
Amortisation and depreciation By ST E 18 (7,687) (7,757)
Commission expenses LEA: B3 (9,460) (15,304)
Net impairment loss on accounts R Wi M T 2 9 s 48 1 A
receivable 6 (20,085) -
Net impairment loss on loans and BRI BGER W e 18 T R
advances 6 (16,508) (1,099)
Reversal of net impairment loss on 135 ] 58 il $%2 2> Fo (B R A H A
Mandatory FVOCI 4 THT W i 2 391 e 18 1 A 6 1,129 n
Staff costs ISR N 11 (23,386) (21,230)
Finance costs RilE A 12 (97,371) (59,020)
Other expenses Ho Al B 52 (44,552) (37,492)
Profit before taxation A 25 A 13 311,172 453,364
Income tax expense iIE 15 (79,076) (80,364)
Profit for the year AEEER 232,096 373,000
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EWz (B%)
(expense)
Items that are reclassified or may be HC 1% T 7 K B ] BE T
reclassified subsequently to DI E a2 HH
profit or loss
Exchange difference arising on MAEBWINEFEEZ
translation of foreign operations [ifE 5o, 2= 48 (15,922) 178
Fair value gain on Mandatory HERER T HEEGZ
FVOCI reclassified to profit or 98 4% 2 AAE R A oA
loss upon disposal EXETPA/N RN € 104 =
Fair value loss on Mandatory 98 1l # 2N SUAE A HA
FVOCI EAEVE PN WU oF (540)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation Ak o 4% A R EFEA
of Mandatory FVOCI HC Al 4 T ok AR E AR 2
A0 S2E i I 72
Fair value gain on available-for-sale HERER T EEEGZ
investments reclassified to profit AN EREZ A AE
or loss upon disposal i 4 -
Fair value change on At EREZ A R E
available-for-sale investments B W) -
Deferred tax arising on revaluation AT E R EE L
of available-for-sale investments Z AR SE B TH -
Items that will not be reclassified to BB E R < HE
profit or loss
Fair value loss on Designated i 8 % o Ao fE R A H At
FVOCI AT W R 3 SU AR (6,083) -
Deferred tax arising on revaluation AL 45 2 A SUEFNA
of Designated FVOCI At 4 T Wi 48 E A 2
R 1 73 TH 1,004 -
Surplus on revaluation of properties S EERNPR S 2,770 842
Deferred tax arising on revaluation W) 36 B A A A 2 IR SE R IH
of properties (457)
Total other comprehensive expense ~ ANFEH fth 2 HBI X 45
for the year (19,052)
Total comprehensive income rFEER2HEKBRARE
for the year 213,044

Annual Report 2019 &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5 FET TH#s T
Profit for the year attributable to: UITMATEBEXRFERR :
Owners of the Company Z/NEIE XN 195,080 297,143
Non-controlling interests IE F22 1A 4 37,016 75,857
232,096 373,000
Total comprehensive income LTALTESEZEKNSEALE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NIE: XN 175,403 293,471
Non-controlling interests IE 12 I RE 25 37,641 76,047
213,044 369,518
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Earnings per share BEREF
Basic —HR 17 2.02 3.34
Diluted — 3 17 2.02 N/A AN A

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZZE—NE=ZA=+—8
At 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & THET TH# T
Non-current assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments, TE AT & RIE DL K
property and equipment LIEYS & ] 18 112,407 116,455
Investment properties Eit -7/ S 19 881,896 788,073
Intangible assets I G 20 8,413 8,410
Goodwill i 21 15,441 15,441
Other assets HoAth & 23 3,517 7,041
Deferred tax assets I JiE B TE A A 35 1,266 1,266
Loans and advances B S EGR 24 47,553 146,387
Investments in securities EAERE 26 582,424 2568055
1,652,917 1,316,128
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable i R TR 25 3,707,421 4,118,049
Loans and advances B EGR 24 1,038,647 550,353
Prepayments, deposits and T RIE ~ e K
other receivables Al JRE Wi A 27 29,868 22,325
Tax recoverable IR QEIE:TRE 7,637 59
Investments in securities EHEBE 26 232,684 661,239
Bank balances — client accounts WITHE R — KT IRP 28 1,143,120 419,637
Bank balances — general accounts B|THGBR——RIRF : .
and cash BB 4 29 505,871 749,354
6,665,248 6,521,016
Current liabilities REBEME
Accounts payable JRE A B IH 30 1,196,203
Accrued charges and other payables JRE w2 R At R A BRI 32 10,661
Amounts due to non-controlling IR I I PR IE
shareholders 31 43,665 ),
Tax payable JRE A+ A TE 144,724 146,935
Bank borrowings BITMHE 33 50,000 60,000
Liability component of convertible — M LT E AR T2
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary EE3rerra-Yisiiix 34 233,524
1,678,777
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,986,471 |
Total assets less current liabilities REERARBEE




ra MBI ER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R—FE—NFE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FET T T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities IEAL B TH & 35 6,506 6,992
Liability component of convertible — M bR A R AT 2
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary W B fE 5 2 AE W 34 — 350,840
6,506 357,832
NET ASSETS EEFH 6,632,882 6,681,541
Capital and reserves EXKf#EE
Share capital & A 36 966,270 966,270
Reserves e A 4,498,789 4,449,588
Equity attributable to owners ARBHEEAEIEER
of the Company 5,465,059 5,415,858
Non-controlling interests B ER
Existing WA 1,061,514 1,053,064
Potential TEAE 34 106,309 212,619
Total Equity mEs 6,632,882 6,681,541
The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 250 were BIOSHEFBSOHZ A MB R EHESR&
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on AN FE—JLENS A B B I RE T
27 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: o i T EFRAREE
Hung Hon Man Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
HEX HEE
Director Director
HH HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BE_Z-NF=RA=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

Non-controlling interests

ARAREAER FERER
Property Investments
Share Share  Special revaluation revaluation Translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Totl  Existing  Potential Total
UES R&
ka  BHEE KHREE EMEE ERRE EXRE  REEN b RE -3 b
Notes HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(i3 TEr  TEr  TEx  TEr TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note iv) (note vi) (note 34)
(k) (k) (st (S (k) (W3k34)
AcT April 2017 RZF—tENA-H 805205 2695526 19147 14376 829 384 1205385 4880872 1,007,503 - 5888375
Profit for the year AEEER - - - - - . VAV I VAV ¥ - 373000
Other comprehensive income (expense) 512 E W5 (%)
Ltems that are reclassified or may be FREHHRATETH
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss I ERBZEH
- Exchange difference arising on -BEEAN TR
translation of foreign operations CERER = = - - - 173 - 173 - = 173
- Fair value gain on available-for-sale - ERTHHHE
investments reclassified to proficor B2 A E
loss upon disposal BFEZAR RS - - - - 2181 - - - s
- Fair value logs on available-forsale - AT ERE L
investments MR = = = = (7,400) = = (7.400) S = (7.400)
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation - ff; itk e
of available-for-sale investments EHZBIERE - - - - 862 - - 862 - - 862
Items that will not be reclassified to FEEHAEFERZ
profit or loss Bl
~ Surplus on revaluation of properties - HIEE [ £ - - - 614 - - - 614 28 - 842
- Deferred tax arising on revaluasion - W EEHEEL =
of properties EEBR - - - (102) 2 = = (102) (38) - (M0
Total other comprehensive income 2 E 3 (B%)
(expense) a5 - - - 512 (4350) 173 - B 190 =
Total comprehensive income REERERE (%)
(expense) for the year &% = = - 512 (4357) 173 297145 293471 76,047 -
Transactions with equity holders HREREAZRS "
Contributions and distributions HERAE
- Issue of shares under placing - RERERTRG 36 161,045 257,673 - - - - - 4878 -
- Dividends to owners - M AZRE 16 - - - - - - (s (177,150) -
- Dividends to non-controlling -WEREMEL
interests of 2 non-wholly FHMRERZ B
owned subsidiary - - - - - - - -
161,045 257,673 - - - ST M58 (30389)
Changes in ownership interests HEEERET
- Convertible bonds issued by -—HEHHELR
a listed subsidiary Bhzmpkes 34 - - - - - - - U619 2126
~ Acquisition of addicional inerest ~ — Yt —F B A
in a subsidiary ZHIMER = = = = = =
At 31 March 2018 RZZ—N\E
EVEN ol 966270 293,199 159147 14888
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

Atributable to equity holders of the company

Non-controlling interests

KNIRAARE FEREE
Tnvestments
Tnvestments ~ revaluation
Property  revaluation teserve Share
Share Share Special  revaluation feserve (non- option  Translation  Retained
apil premium reserve feserve  (tecycling)  recycling) reserve feserve profits Tol  Existing  Potential Total
REEfE  REER
BE  RHEE GHGRE DEEMEEBE(TER) BE(EER) BRERE EiRE REM 3 2 43 48
Notes HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
it T TEx T TEr  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEr  TExr T T TEx
(note ) (noteii) ~ (noteiii) (note iv) (note v) (note vi) (note 34)
(h) (M) Ok (R (k) (ki (R34
Acl April 2018 RZZ-AERA-H 966270 293199 19,147 14888 (3.528) - - 57 13535 S48 1053064 21619 6681541
Impacton iniial application of HKFRS 9 A A A A
Bl v e 2 = 5 - - L - c - s 6 - - 63
Asrestated EL4] W60 2953199 INMT 1488 7636 - - ST LIS SADSH LOSH0E 269 6675218
rofit for the year AERRA - - - - - - - - 1500 1500 3706 - 0%
Other comprehensive income (expense) Ap2E%E(RR)
Tiems thatare reclsifed or may be AREHTEATRES
reclsified subsequently o proi o s TEEERBH
~ Exchange difference arising on transition  — HFHAEREE
offrcign operatons ELER - - - - - = - - - - (5m
~Far value gain on Mandaroy VOCL -~ — i EREHAEE
reclassified to profit or loss upon BB RHHEL
disposal AEALRE
il AR E
&1 = = o = 104 = = S S 104 - - 104
- Bairvlue loss on Mandarory FVOCL = BRI AR ERA
Ab2miEz
LalER = = = - (540) s = - - (540 - - (540
- Deferted av arsing on revalvacion of ~ — BRI ARERH
Mandtory FVOCI MRl
ELZEERA = = = = L - - - - n - - n
Trems that il no be reclssifed FEENSEEERZ
1o proftor s v
- Fair value loss on Designated FVOCI - RERAABIA
Ahzmgsz
MiliEE . - = = = (6,083) = - - (6,083) - - (6,083)
- Deferred taxaising on revauation of ~ — A ERARER
Designated FVOCI MRl E
k7 ERRA = = = - - 1,004 - - - 1,004 - - 1,004
- Surplus on revaluation of propertis - WEERRR - - - 2,00 - - - - - 200 74 - L
- Defered v arsing on evehvacion o~~~ HEB(ELZ
properties EiERE = = s (334) = - - - - (334) (123 - Ll
Total other comprehensive income A2ENEER)
(expense) a5 - - - 1,688 (364) (5079) - (15.922) - (19,677) 625 - (19,092)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENE (R
(expense) for the year g - - - 1,688 (364) (5,079) = (1592 195,080 175,403 37,641 - 13,044
Transactions with equity holders ARREEAZRS
Contributions and disributions HERRE
~Dividends o ownes -MERAZRE 16 = - - - - - - -9 (193554 > - (193
- Dividends o non-contollng imeeress - [ 2 EHEAT
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary FikEL RS - - ° - o - - - - - (5300 - (33090
~ Recogition of equiy-seted -BRASY
share-based payment expenses DB ¥ - - - - - - 8776 - - 8776 - - 8,776
= o = = - - 8776 - (19354 (184478) (53,090) - (97509)
Changes in ounership intrests #iEERT
- Redemption of converble bonds -BETRRER 34 - - - - - - - = 6459 6459 BI04 (106310)  (1781)
- Disposal of intetests in a subsidiary - i E- TR AT
without oss of control VA IR 5SS
Elfe i - - - - - - - - § § @ 5 -
_ - B - . = - - 04,599 64,599 B0 (106310) (17.811)
At31 March 2019 RZB-1E
ZR=t-H 966,270 2,933,199 139,147 16,576 7071 (5079) 8,776 (15365 1374263 5465039 1,061,514 106309 6,632,882

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F



RAREmEEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par
value.

Under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for distribution
or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its: Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Group represents the following:

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 May 2002,
a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) was completed on
16 May 2002, which principally involved the exchange of shares
of the Company with all the issued share capital of Get Nice
Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”). An amount of approximately
HK$123,337,000 represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book
value of a subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, as
well as the difference between the consolidated shareholders” funds
of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the GN
Incorporated’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares.

As set out in the prospectus of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG”), a subsidiary of the Company, dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”), sharcholders of the Company would be entitled
to one share of GNFG for every 40 shares of the Company held
on the Record Date (as defined in the Prospectus). An amount of
approximately HK$35,810,000 represents the difference between
the proportionate share of the interest in GNFG and the net assets
value on Record Date in relation to the distribution in specie
arising from the listing of the shares of GNFG on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve (recycling) represents the
cumulative net changes in the fair value of Mandatory FVOCI,
if any, at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted. The reserve as at
31 March 2018 comprises the accumulated gains and losses arising
on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments measured
at fair value that have been recognised in other comprehensive
income, net of the amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those
investments are disposed of or are determined to be impaired, in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
accumulated net change in the fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Designated FVOCI”) that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of the amounts reclassified to retained
earnings when those investments are disposed of.

Translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from translation of the financial statements
of the Group’s subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(ii)

(iid)

(iv)

)

(vi)

HE-_T-hF=A=+— Eiif
Year ended 31 March 201
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHE_T—NWF=A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET AR P
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before taxation o 71 Y A1) 311,172 453,364
Adjustments for: KL
Amortisation and depreciation 0 K b 8 18 7,687 7,757
Werite off of property and equipment E L/ E &G T ] 15 i
Impairment loss for ECL on JE U AR IH 2 TEI A &
accounts receivable 518 2 W AE K 1R 6 20,085 -
Impairment loss for ECL on B K 2 TEIAE
loans and advances &5 48 2 W s 48 6 16,508 =
Impairment loss on loan and B3R N B 2 A S R T A
advances, net 6 - 1,099
Reversal of impairment loss on 135 ] 58 ) 4% 2> R AEFEA
Mandatory FVOCI F At 2 T K ﬁézmﬁféé B 6 (1,129) -
Fair value changes on investment BEMEZ N R(EEH)
properties 19 (10,686) (40,6006)
Finance costs Tl A 12 97,371 59,020
Interest income FE Wk A (155,138) (145,212)
Fair value changes on financial %N UAEFE AR 5 2 S
assets at FVPL EE N o (E s 11,044 58,508
Loss on disposal of Mandatory FVOCI  Hi 8 5 il 4% 28 7o (E 7 A HoAth
ENE Pl Fis 234 -
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds Mg 1] o] # it {5 % 2 i 18 34 38,867 -
Share-based payment expenses DA A3 S2AN Bl 32 37 8,776 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale 8 AT B 2 s
investments - (2,749)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B3 s F ] 22 Wi s - (20,000)
Operating cash flows before SR E S
movements in working capital KB B & 344,806 371,181
Changes in working capital BHEE G
Other assets HoAth & 7 3,524 (972)
Accounts receivable R A B T 389,699 (1,117,502)
Loans and advances 0T (411,447) (61,261)
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAT HIE - 74 K H A
receivables JRE Wi K TE (5,681) (2,919)
Financial assets at FVPL N AREFFA RG22
EHEE 48,414 (31,248)
Bank balances - client accounts WATH AR — B P IRF (723,483) 229,533
Accounts payable JEE At MR 3H 713,739 (238,832)
Accrued charges and other payables JRE 2 e At JE A5 AR TE (1,475) 654
Due to non-controlling shareholders R IE 5= A% R SR 2T (20,015)
Cash generated from (used in) operations %845 15 (FF ) Bl 4 338,081 (851,366)
Interest income received B i A Bl A 153,292 144,536
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B 7 v R 15 B (87,224) (94,765)
Overseas tax paid E A5 i A B JE (1,441) -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBME (FFA)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BRE 402,708 (801,595)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(5.280) W& 3

HE-_ZT-hF=-A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2019
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 53 FERT ARCP
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Purchase of available-for-sale W B AT i
investments - (119,350)
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL E%E\ N AREFF AR
4 il (40,225) -
Purchase of financial assets WS B8 e s SUE R A
designated at FVPL B 152 g E - (61,895)
Purchase of Mandatory FVOCI 15 B o ) 4% o AR (E A
At A T Wi 25 (141,859) -
Proceeds from disposal and redemption  H} 5 K [l [v] 48 72 ¥ 28 o (E
of financial assets designated at FVPL FPABGEZEMEEZ
Fr A% 3K IH - 71,939
Proceeds from disposal of B it :'ZIZ'I EREZ
available-for-sale investments Jir 5 3K IE - 29,434
Proceeds from disposal of B o ﬁ?‘]i”%/\fﬁfﬁ A A
Mandatory FVOCI HoAth A Tk 48 2 P 5 3O 13,202 -
Proceeds from redemption iz} IE] A REFABRLZ
of financial asset at FVPL G RVE E 2 TS E0A 150,000 -
Purchase of property and equipment W B ) 3 Bl 18 (913) (520)
Purchase of intangible assets Y 20 (3) i
Purchase of investment properties WEREY £ 19 (59,057) (233,797)
Acquisition of additional W i — T B B > ) 2 BE AR
interest in a subsidiary HE 25 - (150)
Net cash flows arising from th B B B E AR 2 Bl
disposal of subsidiaries it & A - 19,281
Net cash flows arising from W i O Ja > ) A 2 B4
acquisition of subsidiaries i B AR 43 (40,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of property B W) 26 K iR BT S
and equipment IH 29 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBFAZERE
ACTIVITIES (118,826) (295,058)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ME XK
Interest on convertible bonds [ el 1 S A /N e
issued by a listed subsidiary paid PALIE: Y& E- Pl (7,732)
Interest paid SRR IPSS (696) (1,311)
Dividends paid BB 16 (193,254) (177,150)
Dividends paid to non-controlling e At — M1 JF 2 B & 2w
interests of a non-wholly owned Fe e R 25 2 IR
subsidiary (53,091) (30,389)
Proceeds from convertible bonds issued — — ] F 17 [t J& 2\ &) #2847 2
by a listed subsidiary, net of issue costs  A] # Bt fif 5 2 it 15 3K H - 511,875
Redemption of convertible bonds issued  Hg [5] — [A] L 77 [} J&§ 2 7
by a listed subsidiary AT 2 AR R 34 (262,500) =
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT 15 B PTG 3KH 396,828 1,374,990
Repayment of bank borrowings &R AT S (406,828) (1,314,990)
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT B A0 BT 15 2E 36 - 418,718
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEXK (TR B2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES FERE (527,273)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
i FERT T T
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBEESEEEEFED
equivalents (243,391) (320,160)
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEEXRSH B FHE
changes, net (92) 173
Cash and cash equivalents at the BREBIRERAEEE
beginning of the reporting period HH 749,354 1,069,341
Cash and cash equivalents at theend HMEHARRESRES
of the reporting period, represented ZEEAA:
by bank balances — general accounts RITHEER—
and cash —RIEFREE 505,871 749,354

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, investment in
Designated FVOCI amounted to GBP3,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$32,993,000) was withdrawn by a

non-controlling shareholder.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

FTEFBREXRF

HE-EZ - NE=A=+—HILEFE.
3,000,000%% £ (FH & it £732,993,000% JC)
Z AR E S SR AE FE A A A i g AR E

B H — 44 IR 4 R PR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Get Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its substantial shareholder is Honeylink Agents Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability of which the entire share capital is
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man, who is also a
director of the Company. The Company’s registered office
is located at P.O. Box 10008, Willow House, Cricket
Square, Grand Cayman, KY1-1001, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is located at 10th Floor,
Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

1.

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

DNAEHR

KPR PR A] ([ A2 /) ) AR 4% B
SRS A FAESRE (LN —FE
Bl = 8A&R G RAEF) B2 RA R
AT HRA TR A A 2 5 B A IR
A (TR A fT ) b o HE R A
Honeylink Agents Limited ° Honeylink
Agents Limited 75 i 55 J8 Jiz 4 B¥ 5 E il
AL Z A R R > H A TR A it
SCHE A (TR B AR s W) EE 5 B al B
Ao A ) RE M R K E B
B 23 5 21 P.O. Box 10008, Willow
House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1001, Cayman Islands & #F i & J5
KA 183 EHT AL T B 5 P IR K 107
1o

AN Z FEER BRCEER > KK
BTz EEERE N &AM @ E
B 546 ©

AN A B 8 2 m (A A 42 1))
AR A MBI UARF 2 IR
HBILES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2018 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that, to transfer to or from,
investment properties, there must be a change in use. A
change in use would involve (a) an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property; and (b) supporting evidence that a

change in use has occurred.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

FTESHBE

mREXE

% S R WS R T AR U A s R R
OB LA 2 7 U o M ) (4 P
M2 A R B e
AEHERI ) ~ A il A RRE ah U
T AR 2 BEFE AR E R o B
SRS i 3 N B T A W A 58 5 BT A IR
NrlEgE B AR ([ B BRI ]) 2
JR A 5 B o

Brn AAE AN A EHOCERER
Bl T8

e MBS R CREE —F — FE
B BB R BT PR & R EOR — Bz
MO B MEBR A DL B 2 A B
TR AR LR Wi T BB T T s
B i HE I BR S o

RN R IRIBRT BB B R E %R
7tk B A ER 4095 2 (6 AT - HIER
A BAERTE TS - BUEY) SR B B0
R JH A7 AE R B R o T8 B S A
W R (a)fF Al ) R BAT & A FAE
BEWEZER ROAERCEEM
SRR

PRANA BRAE T 8 5 5 05 i 3ROl J 0
AT AT E R R 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued
Amendments to HKFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
that changes the classification of the transaction from

cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to advance consideration, the date of the transaction
is the date on which an entity initially recognised the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from

the advance consideration.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. FEETHE-&

BRANHRT RIS B RN BRI ER &
BB TR R 25 2 AERT - LUK
BTG 2 Rt B

A7 B B AT AT W I O i A e 1 3 B
EHEA UM AR R WH
OB B AR B A 1 R A R O UL
SAF AR T 5 LA AR BE B JEOA e B 4 A
B 5 Oy DARBCAS &5 0 2 DA B0 S A A
KB MRAT BB RT 19 &t BB E

PRAA A BR 18 T 3B A 1 B 5 AR O i o
AR EIEPN 2

Tl (BB it FEE R &) — it
R 220F SIS g RBEATCIE

% ik BRI o AE B E O AR B B B
B A (B — 38 53) 4 i
i B BV A A A Bl B 9 B R
B B R B A A Lk e R G B S
HIF > 32 5y H R 46 B ) il 5 7R
AR 2 A 19 JF B 1 7 R B N
AR H -

RN R A G A MR
GROEPN-2 X0 :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued
HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The following terms are used in these consolidated financial
statements:

e FVPL: fair value through profit or loss.

e FVOCI: fair value through other comprehensive

income.

*  Designated FVOCI: equity instruments measured at
FVOCIL.

*  Mandatory FVOCI: debt instruments measured at
FVOCIL

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. It introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, impairment for financial assets and
hedge accounting.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
9, comparative information has not been restated and the
Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to financial
instruments that existed at 1 April 2018 (i.e. the date of
initial application), except as described below:

(a) The following assessments are made on the basis of
facts and circumstances that existed at the date of
initial application:

(i) the determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held;

(ii) the designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL or, in case of financial assets, at
Designated FVOCI; and

(iii) the de-designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL.

The above resulting classification shall be applied
retrospectively.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued
HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

(b) If, at the date of initial application, determining
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would require undue
cost or effort, a loss allowance is recognised at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses at
each reporting date until the financial instrument is
derecognised unless that financial instrument has low

credit risk at a reporting date.

(¢) For investments in equity instruments that were
measured at cost under HKAS 39, the instruments are

measured at fair value at the date of initial application.

Differences between the previous carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the current carrying amounts upon adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised directly in components of
equity at 1 April 2018 as summarised below:

HE-_T-hF=A=+— EJJ:@JT
Year ended 31 March 201

2. E\Eggg—rﬁ%_ng

BT RIET BRI RE &R — &

BB B R R 998 - il TR —4F

(b) MW ERBER H B > 55 Z AL @
Z WA 5 %% 07 DA {8 R
H¥I2 s mA GEEm - A
A R% 4 Rl T B A T SR T £ R
HH W AR E R A S
B s 18 1Y) <5 R R BT s TR > PR
ez THRHE HBAAK
15 £ B

(c) RHE T s o Gl YE I BB 309 12 A
RHEBRA TASE 2% TH
T UCHE ) H RO (e R R

R4 A 8wt Y JU) 2 3998 A 1 2 R T
L BEL R A0k A o U 5 e o ¥ ) 25 9 B8 4R
BATZ IR B 2 Y 22 L B4 —
—/NAEY A — H 22 HE 35 0 fE AR - MR

TR
Investment
revaluation
reserve Retained
(recycling) profits
RE
EffRE
(T EE %) R 8% F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#5 T TH T
At 1 April 2018 WoFE—/NFEHHA—H
Recognition of additional loss allowance e 58 58 S s 15 43 = (6,323)
Recognition of loss allowance on ife 52 0 ) ¥ 2> AR AE RE A HA
Mandatory FVOCI AT AR 2 e TR A 11,164 (11,164)
Increase (Decrease) A (W) 11,164 (17,487)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
Jinancial liabilities

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no significant effect on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial

liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued
HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities — continued

The following table reconciles the original measurement
categories and carrying amounts under HKAS 39 to the
new measurement categories and carrying amounts under
HKFRS 9 (before measurement effect) for each class of the
Group’s financial assets as at 1 April 2018.

At 1 April 2018

TEEBRR-&

BRANER]RAERT BB RS 2R - &
BB B AR 9UE - el TR — 4
&l E R A A SR AR
—4#

TREIIR F - NFENA —HALE
P 25 A R A T R R A3
SRIEN B AR U A R T LR
i B i YE RN SR O SR T T OB R

JEORI KSR TAT (L A 58 72 2B ) AR

R-—ZB—N\FmA—A

Measurement category and

carrying amount under HKFRS 9

ERRERERA S0k
Carrying ~ Remeasurement BT W ERAREAE
amountunder  ontransition  Amortised  Mandatory  Designated
Measurement category under HKAS 39 HKAS39  to HKFRS9 cost FVOCI FVOCI FVPL
EREHENE0RETHHERR ERed  BEZER BiHE BER
B 308 BEHE MREHA DABRHA
BTH BRI o Efp2E  Eft2E  RORE
BEE WENHE BEAHL W W& ARS
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T T T
Available-for-sale financial assets JHUELREE
Unlisted equity security not held for trading, ~ W HF{EEE 2 F LAk
at fair value (note ) B AR (k) 109,748 = = - 109,748 -
Listed debr securities, at fair value LifEHESE HARE
(note i) (W i) 123,307 - - 13307 - -
Loans and receivables (note i) B RENE (i)
Accounts receivable TR 4,118,049 (844) 4,117,205 = . =
Loans and advances BB 696,740 (5,479) 691,261 = = =
Deposits and receivables 4 RIEEA 21,072 = 21,072 = = =
Bank balances - client accounts RITER-EFRF 419,637 - 419,637 - - -
Bank balances - general accounts and cash A7 4B —— IR R 4 749,354 = 749,354 = = =
Financial assets at FVPL (note iv) BAREIAERZ
EREE (Wit
Listed equity securities held for trading HERE 2 FHilkE % 191,853 - - - = 191,853
Financial assets designated at FVPL EEBBAREFAERZ
(note v) TREE Wity
Unlisted convertible notes ¥ L g 19,692 = = = = 19,692
Unlisted debt securities ¥ LR 449,094 = = = = 449,694
6,899,146 (6,323) 5,998,529 123,307 109,748 661,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

Classification and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities — continued

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

)

The unlisted equity security that were previously classified as
available-for-sale financial assets amounted to approximately
HK$109,748,000 are now classified as Designated FVOCI
since, at the date of initial application, this investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKEFRS 3 applies and are designated as Designated FVOCI.

The listed debt securities that were previously classified as
available-for-sale financial assets amounted to approximately
HK$123,307,000 are now classified as Mandatory FVOCI
since, at the date of initial application, the Group’s business
model is to hold these investments both to collect the
contractual cash flows and for sale and the cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

These items continue to be measured at amortised cost
because, at the date of initial application, the Group’s
business model is to hold these investments to collect the
contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

The listed equity securities that were previously classified
as financial assets at FVPL amounted to approximately
HK$191,853,000 continue to be classified as financial
assets at FVPL because, at the date of initial application, the

investment is held for trading.

The unlisted convertible notes and unlisted debt securities
that were previously classified as financial assets designated at
FVPL amounted to approximately HK$469,386,000 are now
no longer designated at FVPL but continue to be classified
as FVPL as they do not meet the criteria to be classified as
amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI or be designated as
Designated FVOCI in accordance with HKFRS 9, because
their cash flows do not represent solely payments of principal

and interest and they are not equity investments.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019
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)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued
HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued
Expected credit losses (“ECL”)

The ECL model under HKFRS 9 requires an entity
to account for ECL and changes in those ECL at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Impairment based on ECL model on these
financial assets upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 was set out

below.

The following table reconciles the loss allowances under
HKAS 39 to the loss allowances under HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018.

2. EEQE—H&%—IE

ERANFR] USRI BB R R — &
BB B IR R 9WE - e TR — 4
G 18 ([ G BR1R 1)

s P it YE RIS O R I R R
s 1R BE TR A R T B T A% o B TR
HMEREELAZEHNFE SRR &
AR > DL B E R B B 0 b R D
AR S E) - 5 2 - HABGEE
HEEEMA ARG B 1R - RN E
BB o MR R BB 94K - FER TR
BEHRERFEZSCMEEREZ
RS -

SRR ZF—EN ] — HREE
g wh e QN S5 3998 2 M 1R 155 4 BELAR 2
i P 5 it Y R SR 0 9E 2 e 1R i 2

Loss allowances
under HKAS 39
as at 31 March

Remeasurement

on transition to

Loss allowances
under HKFRS 9
as at 1 April

2018 HKEFRS 9 2018
R-FB-N\fF R-ZZE-N\F
=RA=+—AH BEZESB MA—H
BESEET HEREEAN RESBUB
% B 553957 Foz WMEEDEIN
ZEBERE EXE ZEBERE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
THIT TH T TH T
Amortised cost # 85 B AR

Accounts receivable JARE WA B T 17,321 844 18,165
Loans and advances AR I BGR 7,149 5,479 12,628

Mandatory FVOCI BERAAEBEFARSR
Listed debt securities b T A R - 11,164 11,164
24,470 17,487 41,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued
HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces, among others, HKAS 18 and HKAS
11 which specified the revenue recognition arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services and the
accounting for construction contracts respectively. The
Standard establishes a comprehensive framework for
revenue recognition and certain costs from contracts with
customers within its scope. It also introduces a cohesive set
of disclosure requirements that would result in an entity
providing users of financial statements with comprehensive
information about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the

entity’s contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to apply the cumulative effect
transition method and recognised the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
components of equity at 1 April 2018 (i.e. the date of initial
application), if any. Therefore, the comparative information
has not been restated for the effect of HKFRS 15.

In addition, the Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively only to contracts that were not completed,
if any, at 1 April 2018 in accordance with the transitional

provisions therein.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no significant effect on the

. )
recognition and measurement of the Group’s revenue.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost,
except for buildings, investment properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interests even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

HE-_ZT-hF=-A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. TEEFHER-&

REEE-E

ik A< 2 11 77 S J 2% ) 2 A R A 4 5
5 3107 i B B O % 4 R - BB BR B i
ARy o PO 45 Be I 45 b 4 2 R
T {ELIF & T DA 3 > DA R i
NAZ A BRER S E) o JE RS 2
mmRSHED RO RREZ AR
{6 R AE o 22 30 > B4 T B i o Al RSl
) /AR SN

i 2 4 ] O 2% 3 A R A W) 2 U RE
WERFEA X B NI WE 2 EH
FHE )RR R BRI A U E
N A BRAT AT £ BE R A 2 AU 2 KR
B2 (i) 1 O 25 HE T RE o B I RS A R K
ATATT 2 M 25 2 7 (R P ) R
B R E - A A 4 1 IR AR
MRZAMT L ENEARZ &8
e BRLAR 5% B 2N B L S AH BE O BR
A 2 A — FEHE B AR o A il B 4 7
PR R 2 AT o] 15 & I 5 % B8 A i FY R
oy A Z AR 4 B B O 2 B IR R B R
P G LA IR B S B
A AN HAM -




116

n & BT SR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired business over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income
from bargain purchase. Any resulting gain or loss arising
from remeasuring the previously held equity interests in
the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as

appropriate.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

TEEBRR-&

BE

W B 36 5 A 2 T R A T A 2 AR
1B~ TR WO T 2 AT AT JF £ B HE 45
HH A ) B AT o7 iR 5 s 3 5 B
R A SR 2 0 el (WdE ) B 2
W 48 S 55 o i A ATl ) R % BT R 0
B WE P SR 2 22 & e

W S S AR 2 R AR S — TH
SEEFE o 3 % A BRI R 1R 5
MR o 3l ZH A A EAT WE AR B - B A
PR AR O LA A T B S B T (E AT
AE th BT (E RF o B ZE A AT O o 2 Bl
(B A B o A0 dl A 0 L 7 S 2
e T 55 - R B C = A B R
A B 2 AR A 1R T g [

J)—J7 W o R E R R > C O SE
B T M AT R R TR R AR 2
Wi B I R H P AR - R ik
W 07 2 AT AR I P RO 2 e A (s )
L W5 i 7 - T A 0 WA 7 T 5 A 2
NRMEZ BN AR 25 (A >
BV A 18 i o R R A O 2 ik
A o T H OO o EOR R DL
P B WS B O R AT 2 A i A A 2 AT
A Jr A5 WAL i B8 18 7% 18 4 2L At 4
Wedd (405 78) eERE o



rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment
over their estimated useful lives from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 28 years
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are
classified as operating leases. The premiums are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
and are amortised over the remaining lease terms of land on

a straight-line basis to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by owner
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include properties held for a currently undetermined future
use and properties that are held under operating lease,
which satisfy the definition of investment property and

carry at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Investment properties — continued

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a change

in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or

loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April
2018

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such accounts receivable are initially measured at their

transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (i) Mandatory FVOCI;
(iii) Designated FVOCI; or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April
2018 — continued

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the

amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
accounts receivable, loans and advances, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances — client accounts and

bank balances — general accounts and cash.
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Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April
2018 — continued

2)  Mandatory FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if

both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i)

(ii)

it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and for sale; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income until
the financial asset is derecognised. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or

loss as a reclassification adjustment.

The Group’s financial assets at Mandatory FVOCI

include listed debt securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April
2018 — continued

3)

Designated FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is

determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is

transferred directly to accumulated profits or losses.

The Group’s Designated FVOCI include unlisted
equity securities not held for trading.
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BHE_Z

—NEZA=+—BILFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April
2018 — continued

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately
from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it

in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;
or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include listed equity securities, convertible notes
and unlisted debt securities held for trading.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable before 1 April
2018

Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets.

Before 1 April 2018, the Group classified its financial assets
into one of the following categories:

1)  Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated at FVPL.
They are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain
and loss recognised in profit or loss. Dividends or
interest earned on the financial assets are disclosed

separately from the fair value gain or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not financial
guarantee contracts or not designated and effective

hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
at FVPL only if (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different
basis; or (ii) they are part of a group of financial
assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management

strategy.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.
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BHE_Z
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Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable before 1 April
2018 — continued

2)

3)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including accounts receivable,
loans and advances, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances — client accounts and bank balances —
general accounts and cash are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are not held
for trading. They are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or
through the amortisation process are recognised in

profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other categories
of financial assets. They are measured at fair value with
changes in value recognised as a separate component of
equity until the assets are sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the assets are determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in other comprehensive income
shall be reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, bank borrowings and convertible bonds issued
by a listed subsidiary. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments

unless otherwise specified.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on
financial assets that are measured at amortised cost,
Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables, contract assets, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month

1BCIL,

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life

of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued
Measurement of ECL — continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or

more shared credit risk characteristics:
(i) past due information

(ii) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair

value reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following

criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

or
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBEX-&

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued
Definition of default — continued

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into

account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

. actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk — continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

if:
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial instruments determined to have

low credit risk includes bank balances — general account.

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts reccivable other than margin clients without
a significant financing component, the Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable before 1 April 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at FVPL, are impaired. The impairment
loss of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such
impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods through
profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset stated at fair value
is impaired, a cumulative loss comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition
of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit

or loss.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary that can be
converted to equity share capital of the listed subsidiary
at the option of the holders, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary is measured
as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of the fair value of the compound instruments over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component which is recognised as
potential non-controlling interests. Transactions costs that
related to the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity components in

proportion to the allocation of the fair value.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expenses recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using the
effective interest method. In particular, once the convertible
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary were exercised by the
bondholders, the equity component would be transferred to

the non-controlling interests.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the amount
previously recognised as potential non-controlling
interests, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred to
the non-controlling interests as consideration for the shares
issued. The consequential impact is accounted for as a
change in ownership interests in a subsidiary without loss of

control.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary — continued

If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference
between the redemption consideration allocated to the
liability component and the net carrying amount of the
liability component is recognised in profit or loss while the
amount previously recognised in potential non-controlling
interests and the redemption consideration allocated to
the potential non-controlling interests are recognised or

transferred directly to accumulated profits or losses.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For classification in the statement
of financial position, cash equivalents represent assets
similar in nature to cash and which are not restricted as to

use.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised when the
properties are let out and on a straight-line basis over the

lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group

is as follows:

(a) Broking services

(b) Securities margin financing services
(c) Money lending services

(d) Corporate finance services

(e) Investments services

Applicable from 1 April 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

]dmtzﬁmtian 0fpeiformance 0171igzzti0m

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and

identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer either:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Revenue recognition — continued
Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Identification of performance obligations — continued

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct

if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service

to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income at a point in
time in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant significant

act has been completed;

*  Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered;

*  Advisory fee income is recognised over time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered; and

o Management fee is recognised over time when the

relevant services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.

Interest income

e Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the assets while
it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of

credit-impaired financial assets.
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Year ended 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued
Applicable before 1 April 2018

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the

following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income on a trade date basis;

. Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreement or deal
mandate when relevant significant act has been

completed;

e Advisory, proof of funds commission and clearing and
handling fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services

have been rendered;

e Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
on a time proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective

interest rate applicable; and

*  Management fee is recognised when the relevant

services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

e Income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate and

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

TEEHBRR-&

HEE]E

AL A H MBS WRPTSIIHE TY
HEBRENEZ TERKRREZ &
W EN ) FHE - e M HRE
U T 25 > W AR " e E
W o

G W 22 Ty 3 ¥ 58 B o H 2 B AT HE AR i
AR - W% 5 &5 kit
WK BE R A UM RHEZ B EE
Je 4 AT AR 2 BEE S 4R i 0 B R 4
RS o R E BT R HE A AL(ESI R Z
I B W E B A A 2 B A AR P 1R 48 P
8 > M DR R 0 5 HL A AR R R
it RS 2 JE BRI E BRAD o FERZ TS
PUT - 18 28 A8 B 7 HE 2 AR o

P e & WA Rk B3 B2 £ H
SR R B IR UL (951 2655 1)
WL F Or X R B

R MBIRWER BRI 2 EE KA
BT #2245 R 2 Wi R S 4 55

o AR AR B H At 4 T Ui 4R 3R 2 5
WA B B ST 45T 3 HE R4 5
K

o TA R B E A 2 ME e
T TR0 8 A 4 T A 983 A0 S 55 2 1
BoE— R 2 BT H E 4 2 B
SUFE R > YA RE SR N A 5L TH H
N




142

n & BT SR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its prepaid lease
payments, property and equipment, intangible assets and
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

As lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefir costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Related parties — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is
the board of directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T—NWF=A=1+—HLEFE
Yearended 31 March 2019

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
carly adopted.

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle !

to HKFRSs
HKERS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKERS 9
Amendments to
HKASs 1 and 8
Amendments to
HKERS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Leases !

Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments !

1

Employee Benefits

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures '

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation '

Definition of Material >
Definition of a Business *
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture *

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of

the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The effective date to be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs
— continued

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible
impact on the future adoption of these new/revised
HKEFRSs. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standard may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial information for
the six months ending 30 September 2019. The Group may
also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied

in that financial report.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, significantly changes,
among others, the lessee accounting by replacing the dual
model under HKAS 17 with a single model which requires
a lessee to recognise right-of-use and lease liabilities for
the rights and obligations created by all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. For lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carry forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for these
two types of leases differently. HKFRS 16 also requires

enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees and lessors.
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3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

— continued
HKFRS 16 Leases — continued
The initial application of HKFRS 16 will result in

recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
certain leases of the Group that are currently classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. Subsequently,
depreciation (and, if applicable, impairment loss) and
interest will be recognised on the right-of-use assets and the
lease liabilities respectively. The total amount charged to
profit or loss for each reporting period is not expected to
be significantly different from the operating lease expense
recognised under HKAS 17.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including accounts
receivable, loans and advances, other receivables
and Mandatory FVOCI by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss
rate. The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty
which is based on the Group’s historical information,
recoverable amount of securities collateral, past collection
history of borrowers, concentration risk of borrowers, the
Group’s actual loss experience, existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of the financial assets at amortised cost
and Mandatory FVOCI. Details of the key assumption and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note 6 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of investment properties/building at revaluation

The fair value of building in revaluation model and
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom was determined by independent firms
of professional valuers and/or by the directors of the
Company. The valuation performed was arrived at with
reference to recent market transaction prices at the
end of reporting period and/or market rental value for
similar properties at similar locations with total fair value
of investment properties and buildings approximately
HK$881,896,000 (2018: HK$788,073,000) and
HK$37,984,000 (2018: HK$35,844,000) at 31 March
2019 respectively. Favourable or unfavourable changes
to recent market prices would result in (i) changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss; and (ii) change in the revaluation
amount of the buildings of the Group and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in other

comprehensive income.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Tax provision and tax losses

In year 2014, the hotel complex and certain assets related
to the hotel and entertainment operations (the “Assets”)
were disposed of, resulting in a gain on the disposal, and
realisation of fair value gains previously recognised in
respect of investment properties. The management has
made a tax provision in respect of these gains with the
assumptions that the proceeds from disposal and cost base
of the Assets has been approximately determined for the
purpose of calculating the gain on disposal for tax purposes.
In case where the local tax authority does not agree with
cither the calculation of the cost base of the Assets or the
proceeds from disposal of the properties, recognition of
significant change of tax in profit or loss may be required in

the future.

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$111,023,000 (2018: HK$92,983,000)
due to the majority of the balances are subject to further
approval by the local tax authority. In addition, the
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are more than expected, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt when applicable,
which includes the bank borrowings as disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements, the issue of
GNFG’s convertible bonds (“GNFG CB”) as disclosed
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements and reserves as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SE(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €T H

Categories of financial instruments EEL@TH
2019 2018
ZE-AFE | EFN\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it & THET TH T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVPL s uEFFAELE 2
& G E 492,006 191,853
Amortised cost e 48 £ R A (a) 6,471,020 i
Mandatory FVOCI s e E A
b 2 T i 4 252,430 -
Designated FVOCI 8 % i~ R fEsEA
At A T i 45 70,672 -
Financial assets designated at FVPL 8§ & B 4% > SR {HFFA
Rtz &g E - 469,386
Loans and receivables B2 M E Ik 2T (a) — 6,004,852
Available-for-sale investments it ERE - 233,055
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost 28 B B YA (b) (1,534,053) (1,001,676)
Notes: i

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost/Loans and receivables
include accounts receivable, loans and advances, deposits and
other receivables (excluding prepayments), bank balances —
client accounts and bank balances — general accounts and
cash.

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts
payable, accrued charges and other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders, bank borrowings and
convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in securities, accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposits and other receivables, bank balances and
cash, accounts payable, other payables, liability component
of the GNFG CB and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y »

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to accounts receivable, bank balances and variable
rate bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group closely
manages its exposure arising from margin financing by
allowing an appropriate margin on the interest received and

paid by the Group.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial

instruments are detailed in other section of this note.

Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong prime rate

arising from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease on accounts receivable
and bank borrowings is used while 5 basis points increase
or decrease on bank balances is used when reporting
interest rate internally to key management personnel.
These represent management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of each reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate had
been 50 basis points higher/lower on accounts receivable
and bank borrowings and 5 basis points higher/lower on
bank balances, the Group’s profit after taxation would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$15,399,000 (2018:
HK$17,230,000).
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6.

GET

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk — continued
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and listed debt
securities. The directors of the Company manage the
exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of these
financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices
of the relevant listed equity and debt securities.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity and debt price risks at the end of
the reporting period. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 20% (2018: 20%) higher/lower,
and held other variables constant, the Group’s profit
after taxation for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$21,189,000 (2018: HK$32,040,000),
as a result of changes in the fair value of listed equity
securities. If the prices of the respective debt instruments
had been 20% (2018: 20%) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the Group’s other comprehensive income
for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$49,228,000 (2018: HK$24,661,000), as a result of
changes in the fair value of listed debt securities.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of
the respective entities and, in the case of Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and United States dollars (“USD”), the exposures
are limited as MOP are pegged to HK$ and HKS$ is
pegged to USD. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has
been presented on the currency risk. Besides, investment
in certain unlisted equity and an investment property in
United Kingdom, and its related operating income and
expenses which are denominated in British Pound. The
Directors consider that a reasonably possible annual change
of 5% in the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars
and British Pound would not have material impact on
the Group’s results and therefore hedging through the
use of derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been presented on
the currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit
risk without taking into account the value of any collateral

held or other credit enhancements.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and loan
facilities provided by the Group arises from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of potential liabilities in relation to loan
facilities provided by the Group as disclosed in note 40 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy or environment of a particular
industry segment could result in losses that are different
from those provided for at the end of the reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk grading

assessment compiled as the following categories:

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. EWMIE-—&

MEERBREEEERIEK-&

FERR

e M BIR UL 3R 2 O AT 4 Rl 1Y)
S T L 7% 10 3% 9ok (L ol 40310 AR 3R AR 4R
T 354 4 5 e i i 11 T R T 5 AT
AT ity B A5 #5898 IH H A9 B A

K22 5y 65 J5 R BEJE AT BUAE Je A 45 B 4
2 B8 R T AT 2 A 4R I A AR B
s 11 A B I o K s B Ja B > TI AR A
5 MBS IR DL 3R FT 51 4% JH 4l 7E 2
R T (L LA B 25 S 5 i 3 I R 40 P 48
e A 2 ) 2 A 5 K R 2 A BRIV AE R
TR B8

A48 T B E BRI R B 1 5
355 7 T B 40 B R B SAT A o AR ik
R UM B 15 e 1R > AR E
L AR ol (L 938 A4 o AR BORE — AT 360
ZERGEIA O E > WA
HEHEMRCEREE AR - B
Bt R A AR (S R o A
B 2 A AT AR A T % DA T
ETE




n & BT SR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T—NWF=A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEERBEEREERBE &
— continued
Credit risk — continued EERK-&
Internal credit Description ECL AR 4t HHEE
rating treatment FEIR EBRzERE
FE
Performing The balances that 12-month J& # ARz 12A
have not had a (Normal (ER=9 N (IE¥ 5
significant increase Credit 7 B HHR)
in credit risk and Quality) e ifz
12-month ECL 8 1218
will be recognised A EE
B 18
Underperforming ~ The balances that Lifetime BHREN AR 2 UER
have had a (Significant K AE 15 B R f L B 5 =
significant increase Increase Bl B m)
in credit risk and in Credit I 519 fife 7R
for which the Risk) EUhR
lifetime ECL will fEHEEH
be recognised
Not performing The balances that Lifetime NIE#) AR RLE 28 (ERF
have objective (Credit- B Bk B ()
evidence of impaired) [EREECNIA
impairment and 1% T 8
for which the WEINGE
lifetime ECL will Bk H
be recognised
Write-off The balances that Amount is i &5 HEGRE S8 T LM
have evidence written off IR s B £
indicating that NEH A
the debtor is in i
severe financial Wt R
difficulty and the 1 7 45 4]
Group has no B L
realistic prospect of e 14 1] 35K
recovery TH 2 Hij 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 44% (2018:
44%) of the total loans to securities margin clients was due

from the Group’s ten largest securities margin clients.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, whether the financial asset is credit-impaired
and the amount of loss given default, the Group has taken
into account the credit quality of clients, the collateral
to account receivable balances ratio, amount of margin
shortfall of margin clients and pledged marketable securities
and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry, in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

significant assumptions made during the year.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The Group has established a margin client credit risk
classification system and performs credit risk management
based on margin client classification in one of three
categories of internal credit rating. The information about
the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients as
at 31 March 2019 is summarised below.

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

FERR-&

JEW AR % & % 7R IH —
AEECERESEFF R RS
A > WRERESEF 2 (BE
SRR ERAE B AR R B ) i
TEERBREHR R _F-ILF=A
=t — B ZBERRE EF P RIENTE
MEEERERBEMT

Gross
carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
RS EFFR BEEBRERE # AR E BiERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T oo
Performing & #J 12-month 121 H 3,647,664 17,702
Underperforming J& 1% I K £ Lifetime 4= 1 53,167 3,795
Not performing A~ J& %) Lifetime 4 31,732 15,914
3,732,563 37,411

At 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s accounts
receivable are margin loans with an aggregate outstanding
balance of approximately HK$37,108,000 which are not
fully secured. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk on these loans, with exposure spread over a
number of clients, and which are closely monitored by the
Group. The Group held collateral of listed equity securities
with a fair value of approximately HK$13,731,000 at the
end of the reporting period in respect of these loans. Loss
allowance of approximately HK$17,321,000 has been made
for the shortfall portion of those margin loans amounted
to approximately HK$23,377,000. No further impairment
allowance is considered necessary for the remaining margin
loans based on the Group’s evaluation of their collectability
after considering, among others, repayment subsequent to

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

At 31 March 2019, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately HK$37,411,000 (2018: HK$17,321,000)

on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The

movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable

from margin clients during the year is summarised below.

The comparative amounts represent the loss allowance for

impairment losses recognised under HKAS 39.

The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis

of ECL, is as follows:

BE_ZT-NAF=A=T—"HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBIEK-&

EERKM-E

JE R 75 2 )7 JRTH —
NoE—-NE=Z=A=+—H, > A%
] E i R 78 4 K T MR JE A R ks 18
B 4937,411,0008 70 (. F — /\4E ¢
17,321,000% J0) © 4F N E UL PR 38 & &
FHRIE R RS2 madtn T -
4 RAAR R AR IE s & wh HE I 553958
L i 52 ok (B s 16 2 s 1R HBE 445 o

MR E S E R 1R
WG B T

2019 2018
ZE-NE “F- 0\
12-month ECL
DEAAES Lifetime ECL
FEEE 2HRAREER
Under Under
Not Under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
Performing  Underperforming petforming HKAS 39 Total Total
RERR RERR REEEE
EiEN  HBRERY BN
ENe ERRRRE TER 0% PR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§000
Tén Tén Tz Tén Tén T
At the beginning of the reporting ~ REEH{]» WA 2K
period, as previously reported - - - 17,311 17,321 17,321
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RABEIHH AN
REE {
- Derecognition of provision -RItEAREREET
under HKAS 39 ERR 08B - - - (17,321) (17,321) -
— Increase in allowance | 15,902 2,243 20 - 18,165 -
Loss allowance B 15,902 2,043 2 - 18,165 1732
At the beginning of the REEHA WES
reporting period, as restated 15,902 2,243 20 = 18,165 17,321
Increase in allowance b 1,800 1,552 16,733 - 20,085
Amount written off LER - - (839) - (839)
At the end of the reporting period &R 17,702 15914
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in loss given default rate due to the increase
in shortfall portion of margin loans which are not fully
secured amounted to approximately HK$34,553,000
(2018: HK$23,377,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance of approximately
HK$15,838,000 as a result of difficulties on

repayment by accounts receivable from margin clients.

The Group has collateral amounted to approximately
HKS$3,642,000 in respect of the credit-impaired accounts

receivable from margin clients.

Loans and advances

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group grants loans only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.
Also, the Group has other monitoring procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is promptly taken to recover overdue

debts.

At 31 March 2019, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 43% (2018: 65%) of total loans and advances was
due from the Group’s five largest borrowers, within the

money lending segment.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience of the borrowers and the financial position
of the counterparties by reference to, among others, the
background search for individual clients, their management
or audited accounts and available press information,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to the
debtors and general economic conditions of the industry
in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as
the loss upon default in each case. There was no change in
the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made

during the year.

The Group has established a loan credit risk classification
system and performs credit risk management based on
loan classification in one of three categories of internal
credit rating. The information about the ECL for the loan
receivables as at 31 March 2019 is summarised below.
After considering the above factors, a loss allowance of
approximately HK$16,508,000 was recognised during the

year.

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019
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0 s 18 138 15 40 16,508,000 T ©

Gross
carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
m RS E R AR HHGEEBRERE AR E BiRAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Performing & #J 12-month 121# J 612,718 2,127
Underperforming J& 1% ¥ K f£ Lifetime 4 % 472,415 13,421
Not performing /4 & %] Lifetime 4} 30,203 13,588
1,115,336 29,136
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEREEEER N — &
— continued
Credit risk — continued FERK-&
Loans and advances — continued AR~
Aging analysis HR Bt 73 Mt
Aging analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance) JE S B R (R 4TI BR e R 4B A 1) IR 9B A
prepared based on loan commencement or renewal date set B & &9 T 2 883K B hn Bl 0 B A 4R
out in the relevant contracts is as follows: R
2019 2018
—E-NE - )\
HK$’000 HK$°000
FExT Tt
Less than 1 month D A 208,756 196,416
1 to 3 months 12318 A 211,594 44,775
4 to 6 months 42618 A 126,331 89,608
7 to 12 months 71210 A 204,833 90,803
Over 12 months 1218 A LA £ 334,686 275,138
At the end of the reporting period TR B R 1,086,200 696,740
Aging analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance) W AT B A (BRI BR s 1R B 1) RIS
prepared based on contractual due date is as follows: ZIE A H 4R R 2 BREE A BT R
2019 2018
—E—-AE —E— )\4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Not yet past due Sl A 4 A 1,076,298 696,740
Less than 1 month past due i A D i 148 H 5,210 =
1 to 3 months past due i B 1% 34 A 4,109 =
Over 3 months past due w38 H LAk 583 =
At the end of the reporting period T A B R 1,086,200 696,740
At 31 March 2019, the Group recognised loss allowance RoFE—-RE=ZA=+—H K%
of approximately HK$29,136,000 (2018: approximately ]t B AR M BCECRE RR s 1R B A 4
HK$7,149,000) on its loans and advances. The movement 29,136,000% 70 (= F — N4 - 4
in the loss allowance for loans and advances during the year 7,149,000857C) © 4 R B BGK Y
is summarised below. The comparative amounts represent BB ES MR T - iReREAR
the loss allowance for impairment losses recognised under AR5 A ot e R 253958 © i AR W (E
HKAS 39. 18 2 e 1R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis

BE_ZT-NAF=A=T—"HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

6. TRITH-&

BRREEEERBE -
EERK-&

B B —

R % 78 B 15 EEETE B Eh R e e

of ECL, is as follows: B W
2019 2018
“B-1E v S\
12-month ECL
1fEAEH Lifetime ECL
FERR 2HENREESE
Under Under
Under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
HKAS 39 Total Total
Not REER REZE REFE
Performing  Underperforming performing BiHEN  MEREEN Gt
Bt BRBRRE ;B #3903 Fomay  Fons
HK$°000 HK$°000 HEK$000 HEK$000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
T T T T Tin T
At the beginning of the reporting ~ REREHT] -
period, as previously reported ma 2% - - - 7,149 7,149 6,050
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RAERH BRI
BIRNEE
- Derecognition of provision under ~ — & LR MR A I @5t
HKAS 39 KB 209 A0 B - - - (7,149) (7,149) -
- Increase in allowance B fEm 1,677 10,951 = = 12,628 -
Loss allowance EREE 1,677 10,951 = = 12,628
At the beginning of reporting REEHA WET
period, as restated 1,677 10,951 - - 12,628
Increase in allowance Bl 450 2,470 13,588 - 16,508
Amount written off WHLH - - - - -
At the end of the reporting period RREE 2,127 13,421 13,588 = 29,136
The following significant changes in the gross carrying LR & ik 2 AE R T (H 2 BA 3 2 ) & 4R
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the A 2 JiEs 45 95 s 1
loss allowance during the year:
(i) Additional loss allowance of approximately () R HAF—Z KA mEER

HK$13,203,000 as one of the borrowers is facing
significant financial difficulties and it is becoming
probable that it will have financial reorganisation.

The management closely monitor the credit quality of the

loans and there are no indications that the loan receivables

neither past due nor impaired will be uncollectible.

Tt B IR R HC AR R RT RE & AT
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ot

AW B A Ei%ﬁ%&iﬁ%%%
13,203,000%% JT ©

T 50 2 0 2 A
5 557 A 19 (2



166

n & BT SR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2018, there are no loans and advances that
are past due but not impaired. The management closely
monitors the credit quality of the loans and there are no
indications that the loans and advances neither past due nor
impaired will be uncollectible. In view of the repayment
history of these borrowers and collateral provided, the
directors of the Company consider the amount to be
recoverable and of good credit quality. The directors of the
Company believe that the allowances for impaired debts are

sufficient.

Debt securities

The Group invests only on quoted and liquid debt securities
with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least B3
from Moody’s. Most of the debt securities are considered
having low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations.
Therefore, the loss allowance on these debt securities in
Mandatory FVOCI is measured on 12-month ECL.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past years
and the financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited accounts
and available press information, adjusted for general
economic conditions and future prospects of the industry
in which the counterparties operate and various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information such
as information published by economic expert reports,
financial analysts and government bodies in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well
as the loss upon default in each case. The management of
the Group considers the ECL of these financial assets to be
insignificant after taking into account the financial position

and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or

significant assumptions made during the year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Debt securities — continued

The gross carrying amounts of the financial assets, by credit

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. EWMIE-—&

MERBREEEEREIE-&

FERRE-&
EH % —
e B L By A SR [ 9 <

risk rating grades, are as follows: AR TEE G0 T
Gross
carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
RS E R BFHEEBRERE AR E BREE
HK$°000 HK$°000
R T# T
Performing J& #J 7 12-month 121 A 223,486 7,694
Underperforming (note i) & #J 1% L K AE (B 5E1) Lifetime 4 28,944 2,341
Not performing 4~ J& %) Lifetime 4 1 = =
252,430 10,035
Note: B 5

(i)  The Group monitors changes in credit risk by tracking
published external credit ratings. To determine whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the
reporting date, the Group supplements this by reviewing
the latest published ratings and assessing whether there is
any downgrade on the latest published ratings compared to

previous assessment date.

At 31 March 2019, the Group recognised reversal on loss
allowance of approximately HK$1,129,000 (2018: HK$Nil)
on its debt securities in Mandatory FVOCI. The movement
in the reversal on loss allowance for these debt securities
during the year is summarised below. The comparative
amounts represent the loss allowance for impairment losses
recognised under HKAS 39.

() A 5 A A BRAEE O 0 Al 1O SR 55 B ST
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. ERMITH-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEREEEER N — &
— continued
Credit risk — continued FERE-&
Debt securities — continued 15 it 5 — A
The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis ARG SR B EHiH
of ECL, is as follows: B EE MR
2019 2018
“3-1 “gAF
12-month ECL
DAAES Lifetime ECL
FEER 2HRAEEER
Under Under
Not Under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
Performing  Underperforming performing HKAS 39 Total Total

REEE REEHR REFS

EHEN  BERHEEL ]

B BEOBRRE TEH F395 FoRad  Fona
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
TEn T TEL Tix TiEx Fibx

At the beginning of the reporting ~ WEEH{] WA 2K

period, as previously reported = = - B - -

Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 Ve e

FounEE
- Derecognition of provision -RILRE R
under HKAS 39 it 7T e
HIOHM B - - - - - -
— Increase in allowance — B fsEn 11,164 - - - 11,164 -
Loss allowance ER& G 11,164 = - - 11,164 -

At the beginning of reporting REEHY WET

period, as restated 11,164 S = = 11,164 -
(Decrease) Increase in allowance Bl 50 B (3,470) 2,341 - - (1,129) =
At the end of the reporting period S S 7,694 2341 - - 10,035 =
The debt securities held at 31 March 2018 were previously hN_E—-NE=A=+—HFEAHEZE
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and no loss 5 8 o AR A A R 5 T AR A A
allowance had been recognised according to HKAS 39. e N7 40 AR 4% A 5 it VB R 25 39 5% e 5T

s R A o

The Group has no collateral in respect of these debt 7 4 [ 51 4 5 b 4 RS RE R 5 A R
securities. Hh o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Deposits with financial institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts and
cash is limited because majority of the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks
with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

Loan commitments

The Group’s maximum exposures to credit risk relating
to loan commitments unrecorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position is HK$130,000,000 (2018:
HK$100,000,000), as set out in note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into
account the historical credit loss experience over the past
commitment periods, the past due status of the loan drawn
down under the commitment, the financial position of
the counterparties under the commitment contracts by
reference to, among others, their financial information and
available press information, and the economic environment
of the industries in which the counterparties operate,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to those
counter parties and economic environment in estimating
the probability of default of these loan drawn down under
the commitment and expected to be drawn down under
the commitment as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

significant assumptions made during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group conclude
that there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition in respect of the loan commitment
contracts. The management of the Group considers the
12-month ECL of loan commitments to be insignificant, so

no loss allowance was recognised during the year.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
according to the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the
instrument which are not included in the carrying amount
of the financial liability on the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. ERMITH-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEERBEEREERBE &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued RBESER-&
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued it B B R F 5 B ) 7 — A
Carrying
amount at
Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable  in less than Within undiscounted the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year 1-2years  cash flows period
AREX  AMMEA KERRE REEHK

&E RiRE £/ 12 RERE REE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

At 31 March 2019 R=2-N0F
=ZR=+-H

Accounts payable JEAT R TR 1,046,563 149,664 = = 1,196,227 1,196,203
Accrued charges and other  FERTE il K

payables A £ 50 5 10,661 - . 10,661 10,661
Amounts due to RIEHE R

non-controlling R 3 B

shareholders - 43,665 - - 43,665 43,665
Bank borrowings RATHE & = = 52,024 - 52,024 50,000
Convertible bonds issued — ] i B A : o=

by a listed subsidiary 172 T . o 264,688 o 264688 233524

1,046,563 203,990 316,712 - 1,567,265

Loan commitments BHURYE - . 130,000 - 130,000
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

tRMITE-&

MEEREEEREREE-&

RBESER-&

i B) B 5 R 5w g Y 7 — A

Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Total the end of
Repayable  less than 1 Within undiscounted  the reporting
on demand month 1 year 1-2 years cash flows period
ARER  ARIEA ABBEE REREPR
i iR 1R 12 WEME  ZRWE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#TT T#T T T TH# T T#T
At 31 March 2018 R=B-NfF
=A=t+-H
Accounts payable £ IR JE 320,263 162,231 = = 482 494 482 464
Accrued charges and TESH2
other payables HAbRES 208 - 11,699 = = 11,699 11,699
Amounts due to R
non-controlling TR R
shareholders 96,673 - - - 96,673 96,673
Bank borrowings RITfEE - 60,034 = = 60,034 60,000
Convertible bonds issued — [ LT HE A w
by a listed subsidiary BT 2 W ESR - = 10,500 529,375 539,875 350,840
416,936 233,964 10,500 529,375 1,190,775 1,001,676
Loan commitments BRI - - 100,000 - 100,000 -

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for its financial assets. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of
the financial assets, including interests that will be earned
on those assets, except for those financial assets which are
not repayable on demand. The analysis is based on when
the Group anticipates that the cash flows will occur. The
difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument which are not included
in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

6.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

tRMITHEH-&
MREMEERERRE &

RBESER-&

B & R 5 % —
TARFEA AR M e E 2 H B E
WH - TRIRBEMEERWBRGH
B UL (RLAE % 5 A O R 2 A
B) > st AR ER R S RE E
BR A1 o A B 20 B T 5 A A 4 [ 7
B 4 U0 B R A AT B L BRI A R o TR
BB 4 U B AR ) — 21 B TR i i R
IR | — 5 2 M 228 - RRA B
T H AL RARVEAE B & & A B
B i BN A <l R AR S
Bk LR Z BRI (H - i N B & &2
AR 1 B R R VR B > R
W Bk A B < Rl A EE 2 R B AR A
A5 0 L B B B A A JH Y

Carrying
Repayable  Repayable amount at
Repayable in between between ~ Repayable  Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable  less than 1to3 3 months between between  More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months tolyear lto2years 2to5 years 5 years Undated  cash flows period
AR AR AR AR AR AER
AR EAR  1E3EAR EAE 12254 1E5ER RERE REEAR
ZRRE g &g IEARE 1] g BsE A5 A% ZEEE
HEK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HEK$'000 HEK$'000 HEK$'000 HEK$'000 HEK$'000 HEK$'000 HEK$'000
TEn Tz - Tén TEn TER - TR TR TERL
At31 March 2019 R=2-1%
ZA=t-H
Accounts receivable, net TS B TE i 3,696,429 12,334 = = - - - - 3708763 3,707,421
Bank balance - general BTk
accounts and cash —-REFREE 34034 61,546 10,322 - - - - - 505,902 505,871
Bank balance - client accounts ~ $A75: B¢
~%FRF 651488 491,727 - - - - - - L35 L3I0
Loans and advances, net SR - 15103 0T 3UxS USHT BB - - LIZ&LS 1,086,200
Deposits and other receivables 54 B i Ml
Lliey 28,408 - - - - - - - B 28408
Financial assets at FVPL AR ARE
LEMEE - 2505 244 235 350 - - l67106 536681 492,006
Mandatory FVOCI WA RERA
A2 - L178 88,723 5,617 58716 78,446 6,311 350 WASI3 25430
Designated FVOCI RE AR ERA
AibdimiE - - - - - - - MR e 700
4,810,359 734,393 663,977 351,327 495,463 107,219 6,311 273300 7,442,349
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Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TRMIA-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERAREEEEREE &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBELREKR &
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued It B B R F A g 51 7 — A
Carrying
Repayable ~ Repayable amount at
Repayable in between between Repayable Repayable Toal  theend of
Repayable less than 1o 3 monthsto between between  More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months Iyear  Ttolyears 2t years 5 years Undated ~ cash flows period
AR IS G AR IS RIS
Vil AR IEAAR AR 15260 PESLAN Refg  MRERA
Tk e R FRkR g fiR BilsF 0 a5 d il
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ik T T Tk Tib T T Tk Ti T
Ac31 March 2018 RZF-AE=A
-4
Accounts receivable, net TR 4,075,554 43901 - - = - - - 4119455 4,118,049
Bank balance - general B
accounts and cash —REFRBEE 649510 89,736 10,127 = = - - - 749,373 749,354
Bank balance - client accounts ST 558k
-XFEF 151,38 268,515 - - - - - - 419,753 419,637
Loans and advances, net EHRATE = 169,398 253,236 143,405 95,712 67,197 = - 728,948 696,740
Deposits and other receivables 4 R AL {l
TEN 58 21,072 = = = = e = - 21,072 21,072
Financial assets held for trading 5/ %ﬁ: j 74
SHEE - - - - - - - 98 9183 191853
Financial assets designated REREARME
aFVPL ARG
ERERE - - 9390 469,170 305 - - - 7888 469,386
Available-for-sale investments [ fEth EHE - - 1,522 10,118 12,990 79,599 15451 139,039 258,719 233,055
4,897,374 571,550 74,275 622,693 109,027 146,796 15,451 330,892 6968058 6,899,146
Fail‘ Value measurements /Ls\ JLL\: E %;l- E

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured

at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these

financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input

that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of

inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

Group can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly;

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. ERMITH-&
Fair value measurements — continued DRAREFE-&E
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (i) ZAREG A2 2 EE
Correlation
Valuation Significant between significant
Fair value ~ techniques unobservable  unobservable inputs
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March ~ hierarchy  and key inputs inputs and fair value
EEMBLREL
R=A=t-A EEMALRE GANBRLAAEL
TREE PN MEER FERARIERARE 2BABE REBK
2019 2018
ZB-E | CFNE
HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn Fifx
Mandatory FVOCI
BHRAREIA
R 2EhE
~ Listed debt securities 246,142 - Level2 Quoted prices from brokers N/A N/A
- L % #E BEZRE A &R
- Unlisted debt securities 6,288 - Levl2  Quoted price from broker N/A N/A
- L B BEZEE N A AER
Designated FVOCI
EEZAAEHA
REfp2EKi
- Unlisted equity securities 70,672 - Levl2  Netasset value N/A N/A
- LA E REFMH N i AR :
Financial assets at FVPL ;
ROAEHAREZ =4
SEAE =
- Listed equity securities 126,882 191,853 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market ~ N/A N/A |
- LA % HIE WRTGZRE AR AR ;g
— Unlisted convertible notes 19,511 19,692 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method ~ Discount rate of  Discount rate increases/ i
and binomial tree model, 11.78% (2018:  decreases by 5% (201 %
based on spot price, 11.47%) 5%), fair value would '
volatility and discount rate decrease/inc
by approximately
HK$73,000/HK$54,000
(2018: HK$74,000/
HKS$55,000)
- LT B H3E WRBEWERRCER  WEERILISN REE LS/ THsw
BB RS & (CE-AF: (SRR %)
LG TR 1147%) AAMHED /A
473,000 70/
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Financial assets Fair value at 31 March
B R=A=1+-8H
SHEE ZARE
2019 2018
“E-RE | ZF-0E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER T
Financial assets at FVPL
- continued
BAREHABEL
CREE-B

— Unlisted debt securities
(subject to carly redemption)

Ny

HF
=3
[

i

—¥ L7
(42

pinl

ﬂ
=

- Unlisted investment funds

~FEmfERES

Available-for-sale investments
Mk ER &
— Listed debt securities

- EiRH

~ Unlisted equity securities

—F LA

305,388 449,094

40,225 -

- 123,307

- 109,748

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.
Fair value measurements — continued

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

Valuation
Fair value  techniques
hierarchy

MEER FERNRIERARE

and key inputs

tRMITHEH-&
ARBEHE &

(i) HLAEFRZ M EE—H

Correlation
Significant between significant
unobservable  unobservable inputs
inputs and fair value

EEMBLARL
EZMELEE AANBALMAEY
ZBARE  RERE

Level 3 Discounted cash flow method ~ Discount rate of  Discount rate increases/
and binomial tree model based ~ 10.36% (2018:  decreases by 5% (2018:
on spot price, volatility and 11.85%) 5%), fair value would
discount rate decrease/increase

by approximately
HK$21,194,000/
HK$23,927,000
(2018: approximately
HK$31,209,000/
HK$35,233,000)

F3M BHASREER AR WHEER0360%  BERLTA/ T %
BHRER RS 5 & (CZF-\E (ZF A 5)
(BA ~ YR R A B 11.85%) NERED /S

121,194,000 7T
/23,927, 0001 ¢
(ZF-NE 4
31,209,000 7,/
35,233,004 7C)

Level 2 Net asset value N/A N/A

#08 BEFE i Nl

Level 2 Quoted prices from brokers N/A N/A

28 B RE R A

Level 2 Net asset value N/A N/A

HE EEFE R Nyt

There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level

2 fair value measurement nor transfers into and out of

Level 3 fair value measurement during years ended 31

March 2019 and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair value measurements — continued
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

6. EWMIH—&
AREHE- &K
() ARG 2 5 — A
SRMEESZBA R R B

financial assets [
HK$’000
AR P
At 1 April 2017 R_F—tFWNH—H 491,729
Purchases i 61,895
Disposals e (71,895)
Realised loss in profit or loss PR Z 'R (44)
Fair value losses in profit or loss R 2 A R EEE (12,299)
At 31 March 2018 HN_F—NF=ZH=1+—H 469,386
Redeemed Jig (1] (150,000)
Fair value gains in profit or loss B2 Z A R (E IR %% 511 3)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZE-NAE=A=+—H 324,899

The unrealised gains of approximately HK$5,513,000
(2018: unrealised losses of approximately
HK$12,299,000) for Level 3 investments held at the
reporting date are reported in “other gains and losses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at
fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

PGB RE =ZBREZ R
H Bk % £95,513,0009 70 (= F
— J\4E - RE B H4912,299,000
o) R A EE R AR
R [ HAtcas SR ) T F 24 o

(ii) Jf#ﬁ?/‘fcﬁ#ﬁ}z%ﬂﬁé -
= Al A
A% 55 ) 5 B R 5 R A A T
T B AR B HR 2 4 A
%Mﬁ%Z%Eﬁﬁ¢%zg
HAHA -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair value measurements — continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial

instruments that are either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

J not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as the offsetting criteria are

not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker,
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the money obligations receivable and payable with
HKSCC and a broker on the same settlement date and

the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the
same date with reference to the settlement method set
by the HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these

balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/
to HKSCC, a broker and the brokerage clients that are
not to be settled on the same date, financial collateral
including cash and securities received by the Group
and deposits placed with HKSCC and a broker do
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable

following an event of default.
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6. $RITH &
ARBEHE &

(iii) <2l B B 1 2 T H — A

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

Gross Net
amounts of amounts of
recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities set presented
Gross amounts off in the in the Related amount not set off
of recognised ~ consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
financial statement statement of financial position
assets after of financial of financial Financial Collateral Net
impairment position position instruments pledged amount
AEE  R&RHE
BRE  HMRRE#z  RESME PERGEHHERR RS
tRHEE  CBASR  HRRENZ E#zRReE
4R BRAR SREEFE SRIR  CERERD g
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Tén Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE
ZA=t-H
Accounts receivable arising BEEIMEEEAN
from the business dealingin g Ay
securities and future contracts g e 3,805,075 (97,654) 3,707,421 (1,059) (3,687,644) 18,718
Gross amounts
of recognised  Net amounts of
financial liabilities  financial assets
set off in the presented in Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated the consolidated in the consolidated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial position o
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral Net
after impairment position position instruments pledged amount
WER  RERME 4
CHd  RRzE#z  REREE TR R HHR IR
SHEE  CEReRM  RWRENZ bixabail £ 1]
A% AESE  SHEEDE SRIA  CEMERD
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk Tt Tt Tt
At 31 March 2018 e Syl:2
ZR=+-H
Accounts receivable arising R RBERE R Y
from the business dealingin ~~ EHHELZ
securities and future contracts  JEUTIETA 4,292,929 (174,880) (1,009) (4,088,949)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair value measurements — continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

6. TRITH-&

DAREFE-E

(iii) & (B B g2 A —

Net amounts
Gross amounts of financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets presented
set off in the in the Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement
of recognised statement  statement of of financial position
financial of financial financial Financial Collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
RESHE
RRZESE .  REREE TERGEHERRRA
BB EREeR  MRRENZ ik il
tRAELE BE4E CHAERE $RIS CEEAERY |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Tin T TR TiEn Tin T
At 31 March 2019 RZB-n%
ZB=t-H
Accounts payable arising from BERMEEELY
the business of dealing in EhELY
securities and futures contracts  JETHRIA (1,293,857) 97,654 (1,196,203) 1,059 - (1,195,144)
Net amounts
(Gross amounts of financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets presented
set off in the in the Related amount not set off
(Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement
of recognised statement statement of of financial position
financial of financial financial Financial Collateral Net
liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
A
RAFESE . REAME RS A MBI
Ol CHReR  RURENZ LR HEEHE
SRARAE EEAY  SRERRE ERIH  BAEMER A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 March 2018 RoF— M\
=f=2=1
Accounts payable arising from % R BB E A1
the business of dealing in LT k7
securities and futures contracts  JEfT fRIE (637,344) 174,380 (482,464) 1,009 = (481,459)

The amounts which have been offset against the
related recognised financial assets and financial
liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position are measured on the same basis as
the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities,

which is amortised cost.
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BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

7. REVENUE 7. W@
2019 2018
—E-NF ;)\
HK$’000 HK$°000
FExT ARCP
Revenue from contracts with customers BREBMKREEA
within HKFRS 15 FISREEAZER
e W=
Brokerage commission KA 37,288 66,896
Underwriting and placing commission 185 K e I 5,509 22,484
Proof of funds commission &4 BN 4 7,160 3,600
Other commission HoAb AR 4 33 257
Clearing and handling fee income HERTHBRA 2,366 2,525
Advisory fee income EEE-C N 2,089 1,360
Management fee P - 21
54,445 7143
Revenue from other sources R B H A KRR 2 =
Property rental income LIE L N 12,583 7,964
Interest income from financial WA REFAE G Z &R
assets at FVPL 2 M Bk A
— unlisted convertible notes — Ik b T AT 4 2 1,560 -
— unlisted debt securities — ¥ LT EES I 33,861 5
Interest income from financial assets 6B A REFIA B Z
designated at FVPL S REE E 2R B A
— unlisted convertible notes — Ik b AT 2 - 2,083
— unlisted debt securities — I LT AR R I - 32,807
35,421 34,890
Revenue from contracts with customers EEFEHREMEREz W= 7
and other sources 102,449 139,997
Interest revenue calculated using the effective LA B BEFIB Gl H 2
interest method: FLE N 77 -
— bank balances and time-deposits —$RAT &5 R S AR K 4,235
— other financial assets at amortised costs — JE S AT ' 2
HoAh 4 il & A
— accounts receivable — MW R TA 340,387 334,892
— loans and advances — B AR K 102,337 101,981
— Mandatory FVOCI — 9 ¥ A AR EREA
Hth 2 T Wi 2 12,497 -
— available-for-sale investments — At HERE - 6,584
459,456
Total revenue Uy 2= 48 28
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7. REVENUE - continued 7.

In addition to the information shown in segment
disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers

within HKFRS 15 is disaggregated as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2019

2% — |
I 43 S 0 5 T R A o i A R 4R
59 ) 505 15 % O O 11 8 5 i
S EHN

BE-ZE-NF=ZA=+t—HLEE

HK$’000
FET
Timing ofrevenue recognition: l&fnéﬁgﬁjsz ﬁ%/%?’/i% :
At a point in time AEREE
Brokerage commission 28 50 4 37,288
Underwriting and placing commission 155 K e N 5,509
Proof of funds commission jeg oAUk i 7,160
Other commission HoAt A 4 33
Clearing and handling fee income LhE N F IR A 2,366
52,356
Over time BE B [
Advisory fee income [ -4 ON 2,089

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating
divisions, namely broking, securities margin financing,
money lending, corporate finance and investments. These
divisions are the basis on which the board of directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,

HE-_ZT-hF=-A=+—RHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

2 EER

A A5 9 B 73 ) A8 7 A o R AR
AL WSRO R
g URBE - ZEMMRARAE
HE (R RS R ) A B AR 2
BB Gk 2 B o 2 F A 2

reviews the operating results and financial information. The TEHBWT :
principal activities of these divisions are as follows:
Broking — Provision of stockbroking, futures and options broking and

underwriting and placements

g

Securities margin financing

I IR R

Money lending
T A

Corporate finance

1> 36l &

Investments

P&

TR AR ARAC S R U HE A A MR 5 DA % . 9 % I B

Provision of securities margin financing

RS RS M

Provision of mortgage and consumer loans

1 A% 48 S 2 8 HK

Provision of corporate advisory services

12 A 3 i) AR 5

Holding of investment properties and financial instruments

FFAEBEYEREM TR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources
between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain prepaid lease payments and property
and equipment, club memberships, goodwill, certain
other assets, certain prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, certain bank balances, certain tax
recoverable and deferred tax assets.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, bank
borrowings, certain tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and liability component of convertible bonds issued by
a listed subsidiary.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation, certain
finance costs, certain staff costs and certain other expenses
incurred for strategic planning by the Group.

KRB 2 & BUR SLAR & 85 R
W EE 2P At 2 A 4R B whBORARIE - F
B0 WP R B R A3 R I 2 IR A B

o VRSB B DL R A R

Bl TR MR WK

67 - 75 BN BOR ~ B o

A R TR - A AT R

543 T Wi [ 036 A L

Sh o FTAT i B 4 I S A
R o

o BRAR N HE B B HE AT AR
TH ~ ROJE 2 I R R~ aRAT
£ B2 AT BLIH - R IEBLA R
e L K — [H] B T i Jag 2 W AT 2
R AR SR 2 A RIS - BT A
SRR VR O

o BRESHEE BT - W B
A~ 54 BT A B R A
2 RS 8B1 10.2 5
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment information about these divisions is presented
below.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments.

TEHER &

BEAF AR 1 2 70 58 Bk E R AR e

LATR 72 3% 70 7 o S B8 8 il i 2

A A B i 2 e

T

Year ended 31 March 2019 BE—E-—NFZA=1T—HILFE
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated
2%
gL HKRETHE HE  LE¥RE & G
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ThEx AR THR FTHER AR AR
Segment revenue yimilie 56,637 340,343 102,337 2,089 60,499 561,905
Segment result R ES 15,198 320,257 85,575 1,518 59,157 481,705
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 i f> ¥ % (73,858)
Unallocated finance costs FAEMERNAE (96,675)
Profit before taxation T i i A 311,172
Year ended 31 March 2018 #HE - FE—NIF=H=A—HIFE
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
oo
BR RELHE ME  CERE il e
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Ex T T T T T
Segment revenue i L6 97,218 334,806 101,981 1,397 49,438 584,840
Segment result b ES 64,389 334,806 99,329 1,369 29,813 530,206
Unallocated corporate expenses A7l £ % (19,133)
Unallocated finance costs RO LR B A (57,709)
Profit before taxation 5l 1 453,364

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment assets and liabilities

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

HE-_T-hF=A=+— EJJ:@JT
Yearended 31 March 201

TEHER &

THEERAE

DA 2 % 20 T s RS o iR it 2
AL HEE R BRI

At 31 March 2019 R=ZEB-NF=ZA=+—H
Securities
margin Money Corporate

Broking ﬁnancig lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
23

£ RIcHE & bERE RE Fa

HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000

TiEn TER TR TR TR TR

Segment assets g 538300 4,732,833 1,060,998 9,732 1,822,751 8,164,614

Unallocated assets (note i) FABEE (k) 153,551

Consolidated assets OB 8,318,165

Segment liabilities e R 159,828 1,041,015 115 146 74008 1,275,112

Unallocated liabilidies (note ii) A/ Bl €& (Wt 3%ii) 410,171

Consolidated liabilities e 1,685,283

At 31 March 2018 M ZE—NFEZH=1—H

Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking ﬁnancmg lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
o
g Eﬁ‘%f“‘ﬂg ME  AERE & e
HK$°000 HK$’ 0@ HK$°000 HK$’0@ HK$‘0@ HK$’0@
T THT T THIT THIT T

Segment assets NEE 376330 4371825 1,030,107 8,566 1858430 7,645,258

Unallocated assets (note i) ANEEE (k) 191,886

Consolidated assets GRERE 7,837,144

Segment liabilities b A 179,064 315,238 904 - 53,760 548,966

Unallocated liabilities (note i) A/t & & (Mt ki) 606,637

Consolidated liabilities mAAE 1,155,603

Notes: [} =3

(i) The balance comprises bank balances of approximately () A BH &5 & 655 R 1T &5 88 920,338, 000
HK$20,338,000 (2018: HK$55,438,000). T (& —/\4F 2 55,438,0009 7C)

(ii) The balance includes amounts due to non-controlling (i) A B 45 R IE % E& e R K IE
sharcholders amounting to approximately HK$32,669,000 #1532, 669 000% Jo (— & — JU4F ¢
(2018: HK$52,684,000) and liability component 52,684,000% 7¢) & — B F i [ i 2
of convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary of Al BEAT 2 AR R 2 AR A
approximately HK$233,524,000 (2018: HK$350,840,000). #1233,524,000% & (=& — N F

350,840, 000% %)

Annual Report 2019 F#k
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

Other segment information

2019

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit

or loss or segment assets:

Additions of property
and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payment, and depreciation
of property and equipment
Impairment loss on
accounts receivable
Impairment loss on
loans and advances
Reversal of impairment loss
on Mandatory FVOCI

Additions of investment
properties

Fair value gains on
investment properties

Fair value losses on financial
assets at FVPL

Interest income (including
revenue and other
operating income)

Finance costs

Commission expenses

Loss on redemption of

convertible bonds

Write off of property

and equipment

ot B0 b M g 1R
NIRRT AZHE:

WREREZRE

EEil e vha 30
EST VAL

TR Z W R
FRRBHZBHER

B 8 4 8 AL (A
A2
HEER

REMF L RE

BEMEL AR ERE

BARMEGABRE L
bREEZAEER

FIE WA (B g &
HibEERA)

EALD

W~ L 2
Rtz s

LR

Broking

8%
HK$°000
TER

879

(1,220)

(22)

4)498
(274)
(8,851)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Secutities
margin
financing
RELHE
HKS$'000
TEn

(20,085)

340,343

Money
lending

n&
HK$000
TRR

(16,508)

102,337

DEER - &
Bt 5 3R
Y

Corporate

finance  Investments

L k&

HK$000  HK$000
TER TER
1 (20)

- 1,129

- 99,041

- 10,686

- (11,022)

63 47,931

. (422)

(609) =

Unallocated  Consolidated
KB g4

HK$000  HKS'000
TRER TERL

31 913

(6,446) (7,687)
- (20,085)

- (16,508)

- 1,129

- 99,041

- 10,686

- (11,044)

353 495,525

(96,675 (97,371)
= (9,460)
(38,867)  (38,867)
- (15)

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information — continued

2018

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit

or loss or SCngl‘l[ assets:

Additions of property and
equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payment, and depreciation
of property and equipment

Additions of investment
properties

Net recognition of impairment
loss on loans and advances

Gains on disposal of
subsidiaries

Fair value gains on
investment properties

Fair value losses on
financial assets
- held for trading
- designated at FVPL

Interest income (including
revenue and other
operating income)

Finance costs

Commission expenses

st BT A R R
NHEEFAZ
EC

ESTL VAN

BT B SR < B8 R
VUEI T PA

REMELRE

Le0stva i
BRZIEDRE
th B W 7 2 W

LEME AR ERE

EHEELANE

B

—HERE

~HERELAHE
ARE

HERA (R

EEBUA)

RE A
LEAB

Securities

margin

Broking financing
wh

B RESHE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T
513 -
(1,109) -
20,000 -
(3%) =
1,436 334,806
(1,311) =
(15,304) =

Money
lending

R
HK$'000
Tk

101,981

o & B R R B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

DERE R - &
H {5 38 6 — 4

ZE—NE

Corporate
finance  Investments
TERE 135
HK$'000 HK$'000
e T
= (191)
= 233,797
- 40,606
- (46,174)
- (12,299)
37 41,474

Unallocated ~ Consolidated
FAE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
T i

7 520

(6,457) (7,757)

-

(1,09_9-}| y
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. HER—E&E

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom (2018: Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom).

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

& & ¥
AL EFEMR T RER (—F
— N4 FH LR o

335N SRS N TR F N E|

revenue from external customers by geographical market: SNREFE 2 W3 28T
Revenue by
geographical market
BHETSE D 2 W&
2019 2018
—E—HE —E— )\4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Hong Kong s 550,984 578,436
United Kingdom P 10,921 6,404
561,905 584,840

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of
non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets
are located:

DA 2% i 28 i A6 ) 23 2 FF LB &
FE 2 MR E 2 73 AT

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEEZREE
2019 2018
—E-NEF e D
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T T
Hong Kong Rl 811,765 704,477
United Kingdom B 209,909 230,943
1,021,674 935,420

The non-current asset information above excludes financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there
were no customers contributing 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

UEFRRBEEZERAQTE M T
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10.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

ra MR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—

—NFE=ZA=+—RHLFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

9. Htt&EEWA

2019 2018
—E-hE —E— N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Bank interest income ERAT A B A 648 370
Sundry income HAh g A 3,761 4,696
4,409 5,066
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hit Wz R BB
2019 2018
ZEB-hAFE | EFN\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
R 5 FTERT T
Fair value changes on investment BEWHEZ A REES)
properties 19 10,686 40,606
Net realised gains (losses) AR AT B 2 B
on error trades Y s (B518) 1558 36 (60)
Fair value losses on DINIEE 2 A R EkEER (b)
— financial assets at FVPL — S R EFFA
B 2 &g E (11,044) (46,209)
— financial assets designated at FVPL — —$§ & 23 ¥ /> FefHEFA
His 2 &g E - (12,299)
Realised gains (losses) on disposal of & DI FIHH 2 £ & B
W s (E548) (b)
— financial assets at FVPL — AN RAEFFA
Bz &g E (a) 2,498 (1,495)
— Mandatory FVOCI — W% N FRE R A
At 4 T R 2R (234) 3
— financial assets designated at FVPL  — 487 /4 & /A AAfHFF A
15 2 & RE E - (44)
— available-for-sale investments — At HERE - 2,749

Exchange difference, net [ b7, 7= 5L VR 4H (297) 2,14 2

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B S A B 2 Ui g - 20,000

Loss on redemption of convertible i ] — [ b i A S

bonds issued by a listed subsidiary AT 2 W RS 2
7 18 34 (38,867) §:
|
(37,222) 5,360

Notes: it &E -

(a) The amount represented the proceeds from the sale of ( EEBERRLEHRLSREFT ARG
financial assets at FVPL of approximately HK$68,715,000 2 4 Bl EE 2 BT 45 3K TH 968,715,000
(2018: HK$59,431,000) less relevant costs and carrying value et (& — UM £ 59,431,0004
of the investments sold of approximately HK$66,217,000 JT) WA B O A B E R E 2 IR
(2018: HK$60,926,000). i 4966,217,000% 76 (=& — )\ 4

60,926,000 75) ©
(b) Included above are losses from listed investments of by LHIHHEHGHERA L Tﬁ

approximately HK$14,293,000 (2018: approximately
HK$44,955,000) and gains from unlisted investments of
approximately HK$5,513,000 (2018: losses of approximately
HK$12,343,000).

15 #114,293,000% 76 (—
44,955,000 70) KA E I
I £5 495,513,000 76 (

10#4712,343,000#75) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

11. STAFF COSTS 11. ET A
2019 2018
—E-hEFE | & NFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET ARCP
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: & TH{AS (145 3 B 4) -
Salaries and other benefits 4 B Ho A AR R 22,489 20,395
Retirement benefit scheme contributions AR AR A F 1 E A R 897 835
23,386 21,230
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. A& A A
2019 2018
—E-NF —E— 4
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FExT T
Interest on bank borrowings |ATIEEZFE 549 1,165
Interest on clients’ accounts KEPRF 2 FE 147 146
Interest on convertible bonds — [ b T b A Rl B AT 2
issued by a listed subsidiary AR 2 2 R 34 96,675 57,709
97,371 59,020
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. Bt Al iz Al
This is stated after charging: IASE{] R F i
2019 2018
—E-AF| “FNFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET Tt
Auditor’s remuneration % S B 4 2,800 2,750
Operating lease rentals in Y2 g A HE
respect of premises 1,693 1,669
Direct operating expenses relating BEAEMERAZ
to investment properties that BEY M 2
generated rental income H RSB S 191 269
Direct operating expenses relating BN A AR T B A 2
to investment properties that BEY M 2
did not generate rental income k3 0153 1,434 1,622
Write off of property and equipment il £ ) 2& I 5% 5 15 -
Share-based payment expenses PLB A S AN B =2 37 8,776 -

190 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #12RH R A &
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 4. BEERTHRARKRESNS
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s () BEERITHAZMS
remuneration
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six BT AT S 4 (T FE— )\ 4FE L
(2018: seven) directors were as follows: Z)VERLBZEMAENT
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE—Z-hEF=A=t—HLEFE
Chief
Executive
Officer Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
LEE] Ungs BUFUfES
Mr. Cham Mr. Sun Mr. Siu
Mr. Hung Wai Ho, Mr.Kam  Ka Ziang, Hi Lam, Mr. Man
Hon Man Anthony  Leung Ming Henry Alick Kong Yui Total

REXEE EEERE WRERE EREiE BEERE  O@ERs L
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TEn TER TR TEn TER TEn TER

Fees s 3 = = 108 108 108 324
Other emoluments: Hibm4
— Salaries and other benefits ~Ha R (H)

(note i)
— Contributions to retirement BB Lo

benefit schemes |_.
- Performance and ~RBRmE A s
discretionary bonus (note iv) (Mzkiv) % :
- Commission o E :
Total emoluments Ame ;é

-




192

gk Uk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Year ended 31 March 2018

14. EERTHRARREEMN S

— i

(@ EFRITHARHNE -&

BE_F - /\F=A=1+—HI4FEE

Chief
Executive
Officer Executive Directors
ThER yrEs

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Cham
Mr. Hung Wai Ho,

HonMan  Anthony Leung Ming

Ms. Tang

Mr. Kam NgaYan, Mr.SunKa  Mr. SiuHi Mr. Man

Grace Ziang, Henry  Lam, Alik  Kong Yui Total

ARXEE EREEE HAWAE BRENLT KREGE BEERE WG4 58

HK$'000  HK$000

HK$'000  HK$'000

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000

ThR TiEn TR THR TER THR TR TER
(note i) (note iii)
(Raki)  (Hbatii)
Fees ik - - - - % 93 9 79
Other emoluments: Hibma
— Salaries and other —5 4 ROLHARRI ()
benefits (note i) 152 330 350 25 - - - 857
- Contributions to —RICERIF B
retirement benefit
schemes 9 18 17 1 = - - 45
- Derformance and —RB R ()
discretionary bonus
(note iv) 19 41 47 - - - - 107
- Commission -fi% = = = S S = - =
Total emoluments flES 180 389 414 26 93 93 93 1,288
Notes: Kt

(i) The balances shown above for executive directors,
namely Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony, Mr. Kam Leung Ming and Ms. Tang Nga
Yan, Grace were mainly for their services in connection
with the management at the affairs of the Company and

the Group.

(i) Mr. Kam Leung Ming was appointed as an executive

director of the Company on 28 April 2017.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

E A B BT g (R 305k
A EBEEE - B e TR
BRAE AT 20 ) B9 45 R E 2 RO
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14 EERTHASBREENS
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’ — 15
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

() EERITHABHNES -&

remuneration — continued

Notes: — continued

(iii) Ms. Tang Nga Yan, Grace resigned as an executive
director of the Company on 28 April 2017.

(iv) Performance and discretionary bonus is determined
with regard to the Group’s performance, individual's

performance and comparable market statistics.

Mr. Hung Hon Man is also an executive director of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as an

executive director of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

BFRE - —

(i) BOHENT L LR = F— L FMA
A ANHBEARARRITES -

(iv) RBEEITEIEAL T2 AL B
EL WAL BB AT B 5 4
A BRI A E o

WETR AR /A LN FNITE
H o W ER 2 e L AE B A A
N VAT o B 4R AR 2 T
4 o

SIf 4 B =5 mR A7 B 4R R ik 3 sl IR
MEHE - NLEK E N
HE=H =4 B 1k A A ]
ZEPE o WA BE T —ILF
M _FE—-NF=ZH=1—HIH
BE 5 A% 42 8 3 48 ) AT o] 25 B S AT
< > A 1505 T B AS B T 2
S ABRSE S > B2 BB A AR
& o B
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not

include directors of the Company for both years.

The emoluments of the five (2018: five) highest paid

individuals for the years are set out as follows:

14. EERTHRARREEMN S

— i

b) EEME
7 A T 7 TR 1 52 R A7 B R
AR A LA AL F#EE -

FAE (T — N HA) B R
GIPNS Wi XA e g (T N

2019 2018
“E-hE | SEF )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Salaries and other emoluments 4 M HoAth T 4 4,309 6,383
Discretionary bonus 1 155 A6 AL 291 194
Contribution to retirement B ARAE A 5t # A Kk

benefits schemes 72 54
4,672 6,631

The emoluments of the individuals are within the %5 2 N4 DL #i

following bands:

Number of employees
EE#E
2019 2018
—B-hAE | —F-NE

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7€ £ 1,000,000 JC 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %% 7T £ 1,500,000%5 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %% JC %22,000,000%% 7T - 2

There was no arrangement under which the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. TAXATION

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime have been
implemented from 1 April 2018, under which, the profit
tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will be taxed at
8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong Kong
above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the rate
of 16.5%. As only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is
eligible to elect the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of
the remaining subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. For the year ended 31 March 2018, Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the Group’s estimated assessable profits arising from Hong

Kong.

The tax provision in respect of operations in United
Kingdom is calculated at the rate of 20% on the subsidiary’s
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing

legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

15. B8

FIAF BB R WA H B = F— 4
A—H®EEST I, A EmERRT
F kB A 1Y 12,000,000 5T E SR B iR
FIHE LS. 25% 1 Bl Z B A A A5 B - T4
F W 2E 192,000,000 70 DL _E A HE SR
i ik 1M A 48 A 16.5% I B R B -
A AR (| A A — [ A R A A
PG BB R MR G 2 B AEEHE
1 B R 2 ) 2 R A A A L 16.59% 1) 1)
— BB

BE_Z-NWFE=A=Z=+—HI#
BE > T ok 45 B 4 IR R 45 BB AR A%
WEE BE_Z2— ) F=H=1—
H 4B & A BT A 4L 2k B
B il IO A 5 E SRR 38 A LA16.5% 1 Bl %
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

15. TAXATION - continued

15. BB — &

2019 2018
—E-hE| ZENE
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
i & FERT T#IT
Current tax B HA % 18/
Hong Kong 7 i
Hong Kong Profits Tax s A 15 B 76,147 80,916
Over provision in prior years WALFEEZ
L A A (2 (639)
76,145 80,277
United Kingdom Fa
Overseas tax S BLIE 1,769 -
Under provision in prior year WAEFEZ
A 2 1,029 -
2)798 -
78,943 80,277
Deferred tax IEEBIE
Origination and reversal of W IRy 22 B A
temporary differences ) 35 133 87
Income tax expense RSB 79,076 80,364
Reconciliation of income tax expense SR ¥R
2019 2018
—E-hE| SEFN\E
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Profit before taxation A& R 311,172 453,364
Income tax at applicable tax rate 2278 B R 2 B A B 51,178 74,805
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ST RE ST 2 B B
for tax purpose 34,716 23,113
Tax effect of income not taxable AN BB AR B A 2 s 5
for tax purpose (10,373) (19,577)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oK ke L JEL s 18 2 B R B 2,977 2,444
Under (Over) provision in prior years DL 4F B2 4 AN 2
(e A% £ 1,027 (639)
Effect of different tax rates of the subsidiary i HAth 7] 75 4 [@ 75 7 2 Il J&
operating in other jurisdictions YNCIPAP NGRS % 305 =
Others HoAh (754) 218
Income tax expense for the year 2N AF B T 4580 B 2 79,076 80,364

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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16.

17.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

DIVIDENDS 16. BB
2019 2018
ZE-AF | SEF N
HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT T U
Final dividend for prior financial year, 2ot bW BUEEZ R
paid — HK1 cent (2018: HK1 cent) B — B M 1AL
per share (= — \AE 1A 96,627 80,523
Interim dividend for current financial year, EAT AW BUAE 2
paid — HK1 cent (2018: HK1 cent) B 5 — & B Al
per share (= — \AE 1Al 96,627 96,627
193,254 177,150

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2019 of HK 1 cent (2018: HK 1 cent) per share, amounting
to approximately HK$96,627,000 (2018: HK$96,627,000)
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to the approval by the owners of the Company in
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

17.

ANAEFERBREE T —LE
A=+ —HILEERBERIBR
BRI (& — V4 i) > 3t
w14 £596,627,0004 J6 (— & — )\ 4 ¢
96,627,0004% 7T) > I = 78 A E i I R
HEREG LEANRHA ANHEEE -

ZFRER

2EX

AR AR 2 ) HE R A1 i 1 ¢ 4
PR L AT 0 20 o 54 i A 2
G R 2T HAELT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NFE
HK$’000 HK$000
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN T R RERE A A R4
shareholders of the Company A 1A Y A 195,080
Weighted average number of ordinary shares i % 51 55 4 [ 5 78 B |
for the purpose of basic earnings per share - 3 L T R T 24 S 9,662,706 8,903,80
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) g LA B R (sl 2.02 3.34




198

gk Uk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued

17. 8RBHN - &

Diluted

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based
on profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and the adjusted weighted average number ordinary shares
assuming conversion of all potential dilutive ordinary
shares.

On 16 January 2019, the Company granted 289,800,000
share options to three independence third parties resulting
in potential dilutive ordinary shares.

g

o S B M T AR IR AS A W R A
N A i 1) e 3 28 B A8 3R A -1
By (fl s BT A T AE 0 P Y )

AT —JUE—H N H > AR A
=44 0 55 =0 1 14289,800,000 1% B
JI% R 11T 7 A Y A A % -

2019 2018
ZE-hF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T#T
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN A R REFREA NG
shareholders of the Company A A i A 195,080 297,143
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Fl it 7 5 19 B A B FI 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 35 % JBE i 4 °F- 347 5 9,662,706 8,903,809
Adjustment for share option AR TR A L A R 6,471 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FH A BT 58 I 58 2 R
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 273 5m N RE S 1 8 9,669,177 8,903,809
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) T R (AL
(Note) (Bt &) 2.02 | N/AREH
Note: B 5T -

As the GNEG’s outstanding convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive
effect to the basic earnings per share calculation, the computation
of diluted earnings per share for both years did not assume the
exercise of certain convertible bonds since their assumed exercise

would result in increase in earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 March 2018 because there were no

potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

R A5 i < il 2 R R T 400 B 0 3 4 i
BEA M 2w A S R A A
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BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND 18. AN HERBEURMERREE
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Prepaid lease
ments Property and equipment
L EL WEREE
Motor
Leasehold Leasehold vehicles and Office Furniture
land Buildings rovements yacht eq{u ment and fixtures Totjll
ARl 85 ERNEEE  aniE FAREE &4
HKSO00  HKS000 HK$ 0@ HKS 000 HK$ 0@ HKS0O0  HKS000
T T T T T T T
Cost or Valuation ARG MEE
Ac T April 2017 REF—LENA—H 103,780 35,630 2,694 28,508 12,870 850 184352
Additions RE - - 286 - 21 13 520
Adjustment on revaluation BfEHE = 214 = = = = 214
Disposal of subsidiaries HEE T B /5 = = (1,880) - (7,290) (757) (9,927)
At 31 March 2018 REF— N
ZA=+-H 103,780 35,844 1,100 28,528 5,801 106 175,159
Comprising: ol
At cost GIEN 103,780 = 1,100 28,508 5,901 106 139,315
At valuation A - 35,844 = - - - 35,844
103,780 35,844 1,100 28,528 5,801 106 175,159
Additions RE - - 307 - 560 46 913
Adjustment on revaluation EfhAE = 2,140 = = = = 2,140
Write off i - - - (536) (2,984) - (3,520
Disposal ik - - - (125) (250) = (375)
Ac31 March 2019 RZE-0E
ZA=1-H 103,780 37,984 1,407 27,867 3,127 152 174,317
Comprising: o
At cost LIS 103,780 = 1,407 27,867 3,127 152 136,333
At valuation et - 37,984 - = - - 37,984
103,780 37,984 1,407 27,867 3,127 152 174317
Accumulated amortisation/ e/ HE
depreciation
Ac 1 April 2017 RoZ—-LENA-H 29,599 - 1,936 18,012 11,195 760 61,502
Charges Bl 241 628 423 3,606 622 7 7.351.
Eliminated on revaluation B LS = (628) - - - - (628)
Disposals i = = (1,880) = (7,290) (757) (9.927)
At 31 March 2018 BoZ—-NE=ZR (
=1—H 32,050 = 479 21,618 4577 30 58,704
Charges Bl 2450 630 385 3475 715 3 7,687
Eliminated on revaluation RIS = (630) = = = = (630)
Write off fii s - - - (536) (2,969) - (3,505)
Disposal i - - = (96) (250) - (346)
At 31 March 2019 RZF-NE=NA
=1—H 34,500 =
Net carrying values BEE
At31 March 2019 RZB-NEZA
=t-H 69,280 37,984
At31 March 2018 RoZ—NE=H

-%
==l 71,730 35,844
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND 18. AHEREBEURMERRE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March 2019
and 2018 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”) on
an open market value basis. RHL is not connected with
the Group, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the

relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurement. The management of the Group would first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group would adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
buildings is the unit sale rate ranging from approximately
HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$32,000 per square
foot (2018: approximately HK$6,000 per square foot to
HK$29,000 per square foot), taking into account age,
location and other individual factors such as size and levels
of building. A decrease in the unit sale rate would result in
decrease in fair value measurement of the buildings by the

same percentage decrease and vice versa.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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i BE R W) 3 2 A (A B

RAEFHE T Z A R fER > T ZRE
Je s A3 A& 2y A A& -

A £ [ 1Y TR A A R T 85 AT B
N BRI AR THL AR
{H o &G A NE R > ALK
T g B = 5 AR T R AR Y
fili AR S 1 O A T o R IR R R
A S T 4 R B AN 5 A B B i
R AE > R RIS KPR E B A T
77 3% R3S AR RAVEA o &
B [ 1 B B T R R 2
VNN A PN TSRO NIRRT R
(9 2 RS o 855 21 i A 8 1 Iy
7S [ 1 A LR A PR T LA A 2R 3
ARG T c HEEN A RE
HEOR B A Ry > A B B DR O B R A
N ER .

A BT B v — JE R Bk
S A BOE R A B (N TR T
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P IR29,000%7T) ) - H R E B
B~ b 6 R0 A AR P R ZR(n B R /S
FHERE ) o B0 86 A T RO 4 B 5
20N SUAE T B H AR R B 43 B e T R
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18.

19.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2019 and 2018. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$16,382,000 (2018: HK$17,012,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasehold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 41

to the consolidated financial statements.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

18. ANHERAURYERRRE

— |

BOE LR F A A
S H o R R
B3 o AEMEF—IERF A
A S R I SR
S 1 4530

5 5 B A AE EAG > RIS R E
SR A I B EH T K& B EHEE B
DL #116,382,000%5 o6 (& — /\4F ¢
17,012,000%70) TE45 A BRI -

AL AR B T AR o e
TR - 15 2 A 5 W JE 52 4R AT 5 HE A
ZARM A o A BR IS 2 BRI ROR AR S
S 5 R M k4T

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REW=E
2019 2018
ZE-AF | —FNE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it & THRT TH# T
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning of the reporting period  Ji ¥z 7 i 1] 788,073 513,670
Addition nE - 224,460
Addition — Capital expenditure NE-EAMX 59,057 913578
Addition — Acquisition of subsidiaries S — W BE R S N T 43 39,984 e
Net change in fair value recognised R AR R 2 A Ul
in profit or loss B ) 1 AE 10,686
Exchange differences fE 50, 7% R (15,904)
At the end of the reporting period T i AR 881,896 788,073
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

19. REME-&

2019 2018
ZEB-hE | EFN\E
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
! TRERT T# T
Located in: (A

Hong Kong s (a) 671,987 557,130
The United Kingdom Je [ (b) 209,909 230,943
881,896 788,073
2019 2018
ZE-RF | CEFNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTRET T#T

Unrealised gain on investment properties ah A At U 25 M e 1H 2
included in other gain and losses PG R E B 10,686 40,606

(a) Investment properties located in Hong Kong

Investment properties located in Hong Kong with fair
value of HK$615,087,000 (2018: HK$540,730,000)
with remaining lease terms ranging from 28 to 842
years at 31 March 2019 was valued by RHL. RHL
has appropriate qualification and recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
location. The valuation was arrived at by adopting the
direct comparison method based on price information
of comparable properties and adjusted to reflect the

condition and locations of the subject properties.

The valuation of other investment properties situated
in Hong Kong with fair value of HK$56,900,000
(2018: HK$16,400,000) was performed by the
directors of the Company with reference to recent
market prices of similar properties at similar locations

at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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PR B EWE (B THEN
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=+—HZ 2 {8 £4615,087,000
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2R B i B o
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

(a)

(b)

Investment properties located in Hong Kong

— continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
the investment properties located in Hong Kong is
the unit sale rate of approximately HK$4,700 per
square foot (2018: HK$4,500 per square foot) for
industrial buildings, ranging from HK$17,000 to
HK$27,000 per square foot (2018: HK$17,000 per
square foot) for residential buildings and ranging from
HK$11,000 to HK$51,000 per square foot (2018:
ranging from HK$10,000 to HK$52,000 per square
foot) for commercial building, taking into account age,
location and other individual factors such as size and
levels of building. An increase/decrease in the unit sale
rate would result in an increase/decrease in fair value

measurement of an investment property and vice versa.

Investment properties located in the United
Kingdom

Investment properties in the United Kingdom,
which were acquired on 17 August 2017, were
valued by Savills (UK) Limited (“Savills”). Savills is
not connected with the Group, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
commercial units were valued by an income approach

of valuation with reference to market rental value.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties located in the United Kingdom
are the market rent at a weighted average of £54.43
(equivalent to approximately HK$556) per square
foot and equivalent yield at 4.18% per annum. An
increase/decrease in the market rent and in turn an
increase/decrease in the equivalent yield would result
in an increase/decrease in fair value of an investment

property and vice versa.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

19. REVME-&

(a)

(b)

NRERBZRENE-&

P&y AL E T —IE
AL A A PR R TR
Z B 8 4 B 7 7 4,700
Jo (= F — )NAE - 7 4,500
WIt) - EERE Z AL E A
AT 75 MR17,0009 JC 27,0003
JC (=& — )\ 4E &7 7 17,000
Won) REEEKRE 2 B EEN
KT 11,0008 T EE-TH
IR51,000% 76 (—F — /N4 /- F
#1EEF-J7 R 10,0009 6 F AT 5 IR
52,00045 70) - & H 7 E AL
b, 2545 760 At AR B R 2R B2 R
HEG) o B EHEE T IR
MERREWEZ N AREFE L
TR RZIRR -

UREBZREWME

R EBEZHENETIR —F
—LtHENATECHWKE T9H
Savills (UK) Limited ([ 2f — &K °F#
MEST D) Al FE o 55 — K BAE iy B
AL B A W R R
R St 3T A B b B ST L 2E
ZAGELARRER o A BH P SE A D RS
2 M HA 5 LR R HEAT A H -

S 7 i 5 B 2 B G AT A (E
IRGROESE R 30 RS N §
EMETH T EAE RS TE
IR54.439% 85 (A E I 41556 J6)
Ko 5 AE AF I 4% F4.18% o T (H
& BT R A A I 4 R
BT FRESERREYEZ A
RMEEF T RZIFR °

—
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom,
the management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s
investment properties. At the end of each reporting period,
the management of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair
value measurement. The management of the Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom are classified as Level 3 under fair value
hierarchy at 31 March 2019 and 2018. There were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 during years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018.

All of the Group’s investment properties located in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are

classified and accounted for as investment properties.

No investment properties were pledged at 31 March 2019
and 2018.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

20 BFLEE

Trading
rights in
Hong Kong Club
exchanges memberships Total
ERXBM
RS EFa% aF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#IT T# T T# T

Cost 5%
At 1 April 2017 WFE—LFEMHA—H 5,850 6,709 12,559
Disposal of subsidiaries H B B A 7 (3,678) = (3,678)
At 31 March 2018 and RoFE—NE=ZA=+—HEK

1 April 2018 ZF—/\4FEIUH—H 2,172 6,709 8,881
Addition RE o 3 3
At 31 March 2019 R=ZZB-NAF=ZA=+—H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Impairment RAE
At 1 April 2017 R_F—tHFWH—H 3,196 400 3,596
Disposal of subsidiaries B e N 7 (3,125) = (3,125)
At 31 March 2018 and R-ZEBE-NE=A=+—8HEK

31 March 2019 —E-AF=A=+—H 71 400 471
Carrying value AREE
At 31 March 2019 R=B-HAF=A=+—H 2,101 6,312 8,413
At 31 March 2018 HoF—-NE=H=+—H 2,101 6,309 8,410

A 2 5 G RR 5y A T £ #8500,000

# T (ZF— /\4E 1 500,000% 78) L&

5 WE T AS 68 T LA 27 A 4 o /2 A ¥ ) o

E 3B 55 A8 ) R AT U A T IR >
e SRR T AE

BEE M _E—NER T~ NF=
H=+—H I E(E - A% EH AR

11 {H £%1,601,000% 76 (=& — )\ 4 ¢
1,601,000% 70) 2 HoAh 32 5 HE 19 7T i =]
SO HAREEE BEBEMER
T M2 o e M2
(B AR 5 1 A A5 G B SR M RE22

22 to the consolidated financial statements. Wik o

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to HK$500,000 (2018:
HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate profits to
the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing on these
trading rights, the recoverable amount has been determined
based on secondary market prices and no impairment
was made at 31 March 2019 and 2018. The recoverable
amounts of other trading rights with carrying value of
HK$1,601,000 (2018: HK$1,601,000) held by the Group
have been determined with reference to the recoverable
amounts based on a value-in-use calculation. Details of the

impairment test on other trading rights are set out in note
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — continued

20 B EE—&

Intangible assets amounting to HK$6,312,000 (2018: 5 906,312,0004 T (- F — JU4E
HK$6,309,000) represent club memberships. For the 6,309,000 o0) 2 METE & E 8 & i &
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships, ol WERNmE - K
the recoverable amount has been determined based on af g 0] 4 58 TG MR R T T 5 S A
the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No ERANEE - 22 ik
impairment loss was recognised in years ended 31 March Bl & %% "B E _FE—NFER_ZF
2019 and 2018 with reference to the recoverable amount of — /M =ZHA =+ —HIEF R

the club memberships.

RIE TE I

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading AN FEHB L 0 3 o WE T e e A
rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives. LA e R AR o
21. GOODWILL 21. B8
Broking
HK$°000
FET
Cost 2N
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 AR —LHFENHA—H - ZF—/\FE=H
and 31 March 2019 =t+t—HE " F—-NWFE=A=+—H 15,441
Impairment A
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 R_F—tHFEWNH—H - ZF—/NE=H
and 31 March 2019 = t+—BE-_EFE—-NEZH=1+—H -
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2019 R=-B-hAE=A=+—H 15,441
At 31 March 2018 AR NFE=H=Z+—H 15,441
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill I v e (R A B 2 RS N A A S
are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial M 228 7R o

statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F



22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to the broking
CGU (see note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
for details of segment information). The carrying amounts
of goodwill, net of accumulated impairment losses and
certain trading rights, net of accumulated impairment
losses, at 31 March 2019 and 2018 allocated to the broking

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

22. BEREMRZE 2R ERR

R 5 A B R M sE20 212 %5 F
418 B i PR 0 58 ) HE R B E A0 T
AL 2 BB AL (B A
B2 FEN > TS M IS R M
8) o /Bl R A A0 B BB 2 B A (40
B 25HE ) G5 TR AR %
—NFEK FE - NF=ZHAH=+—HMW
HRTEE T -

CGU are as follows:

Broking
®a
HK$°000
T
(a) Goodwill (a) PO
Carrying value at 1 April 2017, N_FE—LHEMA—H -
31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 —E—-NE=ZHA=+—HK
“E-NE=H=+—H2Z
M 1H {H 15,441
(b) Trading rights b) XZH#E
Carrying value at 1 April 2017, WZE—LFEMA—H -
31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 “E-NEFE=ZHA=+—HK
“E—-NE=H=F+—HZ
% T EL 1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2018: 12%) and at zero (2018: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to

fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

AEHERE TR SR B8
fr 2 Al ) 4 A E AR SR AE BT B
M T o R EE A AR R A L AR
2 R EE L 12% (F— )\
12%) Z A BLF DL & (ZF — )\ 4F ¢
F) 2 ERET SRR - HE
ZHWERBEREENELRZ 2R
e BMRBRTINPE A2 REKE
i 35T 5 8 R 2 M B T R E o A
JE A > A Ao AR 5 2 AT fa] & 2 AT fig

550 AN A B A0 B BB 2 & Rt T
Wi [ 4 BE R % 4 A0 A B B2 2 A RHER

i -
S
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

23:

24.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

23. HWEE

HoAbE 7 T AR T AR 5 B &
BRI 2 E R A S - ARTEE
%I§+a%\ ©

LOANS AND ADVANCES 24, ERRBK
2019 2018
ZBE-RFE | CEFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Fixed-rate loan receivables TE ) 2 R B R 1,115,336 703,889
Less: Loss allowances W B IR (29,136) (7,149)
1,086,200 696,740
Secured PEE L 229,281 148,671
Unsecured HE T 1 856,919 548,069
1,086,200 696,740

Analysed as: VA =2

Current i H) 1,038,647 550,353
Non-current I H 47,553 146,387
1,086,200 696,740

At the end of the reporting period, loans and advances
with carrying amount of approximately HK$223,084,000
(2018: HK$140,472,000) are secured by first mortgage of
properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate fair value of
approximately HK$464,029,000 (2018: HK$359,110,000);
carrying amount of HK$6,197,000 (2018: HK$8,199,000)
are covered by second mortgages of properties in Hong
Kong with an aggregate fair value of approximately
HK$34,750,000 (2018: HK$25,150,000). The fixed rate
loan receivables carry interest ranging from 8% to 24%
(2018: 8% to 24%) per annum. The outstanding balances
are repayable on the respective maturity dates from 2019 to
2022.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of loans and advances is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

A R B R R T E £ £9223,084,000
Wt (& — JUAE 1 140,472,000
L) ZER KRB AEBENREE
#1464,029,000% o6 (= F — /L4
359,110,000 7C) Z HHEW 25— 1%
o Ve o FE 5 BRI (H 25 496,197,000 70
(& — \4E : 8,199,000 7€) 2 & 3K
T FAGR R BN S 5 £134,750,000 5 70
(=& — /\4F 125,150,000 70) 2 &
W E AR SR o [EE R R
JRE AT £ 3K F5 A -8 JH 24 (& — )\
A ¢ QI FE24)H) 2 AR REFE o R ME
BEEMREN _F—LFE T 4F
2 4% FA B 2 0] B AR o

A B A 5 1 T S 22 A5 6 L B DA % 4R K
e Gz R Bk 1R 2 e R 2
EORE > MR KRS S IR K B LG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T-hF=-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25. FEW AR IR
2019 2018
ZB-hE | —“FN\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it FHET T#IT
Accounts receivable arising from the W HE P ELEZ
business of dealing in securities: JRE SR IH
— Cash clients —HeExP (a) 8,879 23,460
— Margin clients: —RBEEEF -
— Directors and their close family —ERNWEZER
members R B (b) 167,054 23,113
— Other margin clients HiEBEERE 3,565,509 4,068,362
- HKSCC *%Q{%nn%: - 4,438
Accounts receivable from futures clearing & B & & 4 25 &
house arising from the business of FEAE AR B B AT
dealing in futures contracts Z JE W MR IH 3,390 15,997
3,744,832 4,135,370
Less: Loss allowances R CEi=E ) (37,411) Q75721
3,707,421 4,118,049

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures
clearing house are one day after trade date. All the accounts
receivable (net of loss allowance) are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ME W B 4 % 5 R o5 A 5 B Z BRI
EW&GHEM A S HAEWH > T BBl
B &5 PT 2 MR LAY IE 8 5 U /R 52
S HE—H - %ﬁﬁ%%ﬁiﬁ%&ﬁ"
B4 7 T — 4F i ] o E
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—NEZA=+—BILFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$154,000 (2018: HK$1,597,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

25. B ERIE — &
B3k -

(a)

Ba%F 2 YR b - BLHE A o
WK L 78 10 17 R T (B 5 49154,000 5 7T
(ZF— )\ 11,597,000 70) 2 FEUL
A > MEAS N E) B R S A B R E
M > B A A BRIEZEEE R
40 T A A B 0T R T (. 2 AR

1A

AL R 0 E NI (A
W B 4B % 5 BRIAN & AR BR R 0 AT

the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (H&H H RS nF -
2019 2018
—E-NF TE 4
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FERT T
0-30 days 0230k 141 1,586
31-60 days 31 860K 1 -
Over 60 days [N ETIPN 12 11
154 1,597

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$8,725,000 (2018:
HK$21,863,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the
end of the reporting period and the directors of the Company

are of the opinion that the amounts are recoverable.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

A WK > HRTHE £ 498,725,000
JC (% — JV4E 1 21,863,000 7C) 2
JRE e B 4 5 5 2 TR T 2 Sl 4 2 S 4
A > AN E SRR A B AE S ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes — continued:

(b)

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$13,791,493,000 (2018: HK$18,438,760,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically
at Hong Kong prime rate plus 2% to 5.13% per annum as
at 31 March 2019 (2018: Hong Kong prime rate plus 2%
to 4.45% per annum). Securities are assigned with specific
margin ratios for calculating their margin values. Additional
funds or collateral are required if the outstanding amount
exceeds the eligible margin value of securities deposited. The
collateral held can be pledged and can be sold at the Group’s
discretion to settle any outstanding amount owed by margin

clients.

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due
from directors and their close family members. The details

are as follows:

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

25. B BRIE — &

Wb aE - — A

(b)

fETHEEMRBSEFZERBUEK
F 2 A0 3 H AT > AR H A
FAE #913,791,493,000% JC (= ZF — \
4F 1 18,438,760,000% J0) © & s Ll
JBE A 7 A B K 7 5 P i B
e RZE—NFE=ZA=+—H F
I A 5 S B 2 e R
S 788w ¥ AR R 28 A5 v o 4B B R R 2
JHES 13EFHE (TF— /N Fib
BB R R0 24.45H) - 75 5 g
TUEE 2 RS R UG A H A E S
EEH - HAARERIFEEBCHEAZH
FHA G RESEE MEgTERE
F iR L3 o B & s & o FITfef 2
HEAT 5 T DAFg AT o T A 4 9] W Y 1%
H2 A DARE T R % A 2 AT
0] oA B 4 KRR

955 5 S L 2 M (R 0 e
BEIFCTT » GO 3 L A
KA BRI

Maximum amount Market value of
Balance outstanding pledged securities
o EEARELE EfE%2HE
During the ~ During the
At At At yearended  yearended At At
TApiil ~ 31March  31March  31March  31March  31March 31 March
Name 2017 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
gz BE
ZR-NE ZE-AF
RZZ-t RIB-NE RIR-AF ZB=1-B ZA=1-H R-F-NF R-R-NE
# BA-B ZA=t+-B ZA=t-A LEE L¥E ZA=+-8 ZA=t-B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TER Tén Thn TR Thn Tz *3{7—12
Mr. Hung Hon Man, direccor — JBCRA (RAAIES) -
of the Company, HEERERAD R
his close family members — M
and a controlling entity 1,819 22,469 167,018 22,469 227,807 955,351 2,856,393
Mr. Kam Leung Ming, director ~ HZ B4 (AAAES) -
of the Company, HEBRRMAR
his close family members —HEHEE
and a controlling entity = 644 36 1,141 1,028 604

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

DA 4 5 5 7 B 2R 28R I 4 B
1R 385 4 % 5 AR 4 SR 25
FlEEE.
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 26. BHRE
2019 2018
—E-AF| SF N
No‘tes HK$’000 HK$°000
R 5E BT T
Mandatorily measured at FVPL: MEI LR A REFA
BRzhAFE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong Ik E A A 126,882 191,853
Unlisted convertible notes JE b1l Al ik R (a) 19,511 —
Unlisted debt securities JEEiiEGESE (b) 305,388 -
Unlisted investment funds FEHEERS (e) 40,225 -
492,006 191,853
Designated at FVPL: EBEEABRAAERA
=F
Convertible notes GIE: 3% (a) - 19,692
Unlisted debt securities I FiifER A (b) - 449,694
— 469,386
Mandatory FVOCI: MERAABETA
Hit2E s :
Debt securities BB EH (c)
— listed in Hong Kong — AN EHHEETH 173,647 -
— listed overseas — NN BT 72,495 -
— Unlisted overseas — AN BT 6,288 -
252,430 -
Designated FVOCI: BERAALEBET AHM
2EWE :
Equity securities — unlisted BAESE—F B
— Unlisted shares — I B (d) 70,672 i
Available-for-sale investments: agHHEERSE
Debt securities ¥ iTioes
— listed in Hong Kong — REHERET (c) - 66,542
— listed overseas — AN BT - 56,765
Unlisted shares I i gy (d) - 109,748
- 233,055
815,108 894,294
Analysed as: A e
Current Ui} 232,684 661,239
Non-current JE i B 582,424 233,055
815,108 894,294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

— continued

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018, the

classification of the investments in securities has changed.

The reconciliation of the original measurement categories

and carrying amounts under HKAS 39 to the new

measurement categories and carrying amounts under

HKEFRS 9 for investments in securities as at 1 April 2018 is

set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Group held convertible notes with principal amount of
HK$19,500,000 at 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$19,500,000)
which were issued by Hong Kong listed companies, bear
fixed interest of 8% (2018: 8%) per annum and will be
due in June 2019 (2018: due in June 2019) (subject to
early redemption). The fair value of the convertible notes
amounted to approximately HK$19,511,000 at 31 March
2019 (2018: HK$19,692,000).

The Group is entitled to convert the whole or any part(s)
of the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant
issuers at a price determined with reference to the terms and

conditions of the convertible notes.

The fair values of the convertible notes at 31 March 2019
and 2018 were estimated by RHL, an independent firm of

professional valuers not connected with the Group.

At 31 March 2019, the Group held one (2018: one)
redeemable bond with principal amount of HK$300,000,000
(2018: HK$450,000,000) which was issued by a listed
company and bears fixed interest of 8% to 10% per annum
(2018: 7% to 8% per annum). The redeemable bond was
issued on 16 December 2016 and was due in 2018 (subject
to ecarly redemption). On 16 December 2018, redeemable
bond with principal amount of HK$150,000,000 has
been redeemed with the remaining principal amount of
HK$300,000,000 extended and will be due in December
2020.

The fair value of the redeemable bonds at 31 March 2019
and 2018 was estimated by RHL, an independent firm of

professional valuers not connected with the Group.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

26. BERE -

T NAE A — H 3R AN s BB
WG HERI R > EHRBEZAHC
P o A F— NFEMA —H#EFH
ER A e Rt R30S H T I A
it S e SR T (L L o S
e 2 R EL N 1A w U M T (E
1 35 B S % 5 U S TR R B RE2

Mt -

(@ AEBEFFAHEBETARET
W oE—NEZA=Z+—HZAE
H1519,500,0009 o6 (=& — /U4
19,500,000%5 J6) 2 ] 46 % 529 - 47 BH
AT T i [ e A R RS (L F
— N4 ¢ gJH) 5EE AR & — L4
NARY(CFE - F R FE—JL
S H B (A TR AT [E) o nl ik

EBR_F-NFE=A=Z+—HZ
48 PO B £ £919,511,0008 76 (& — A
4F 119,692,000 7T) o

A5 [ W] 4 2 2 W] BRI 2 R e
B T T PR A%l AT R AR SRR
2 A AT AT R 4 A <6 RE 4G /0 A ) %
TN E R

T B S T — U R B — A
G b B 2 R B g
4 2 0 5 33 8 A
i fha o

by R-E—-NFE=ZA=+—H F&F
S Sl = /N2 ol N
%4300,000,000% J& (= F — /L 4F ¢
450,000,000% 7T) I?lﬁlm@%ﬂﬁsﬁ
F10/E (& — /\4F : 78 £8)H) 58
Z—TE (% — \4F © —TH) A [ 6]
o A7 B ] B )& 25 T R R — N AR
+ = A 75 B EAT I B R = F — )\ 4
F)HA (O] THREATAE ) o = — 4
+ = A+NH > AL 150,000,000
5 0 2 ] I [ 5 A6 ] i R AR
4 %#300,000,000%5 JG £ 4iE & 317 4% 74 —

E i A -
B T
=0 = A 2 AR

T S 4 (B8] 2 2 9 o
1#-]451- T —
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—NEZA=+—BILFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

— continued

Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

The Group held listed debt securities with principal
amount of HK$214,300,000 at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$98,981,000) which bear interest of 2.68% to 9.125%
(2018: 4.5% to 8.75%) per annum and will be due in
2019 to 2025 (2018: due in 2019 to 2025). The Group
also held listed perpetual debts with principal amount of
approximately HK$35,522,000 (2018: HK$29,387,000)
at 31 March 2019 which bear interest of 5.9% to 7% per
annum (2018: 6.375% to 7% per annum). The fair value of
these debt securities amounted to HK$252,430,000 (2018:
HK$123,307,000).

The fair values of the debt securities at 31 March 2019 and
2018 were estimated with reference to the price quoted by

independent brokers.

At 31 March 2019, the Group held 10% (2018: 10%)
interest in the registered capital of London Riverlea One
Limited (“Riverlea One”), a company established in
England and Wales with limited liability and engaged
to purchase and develop a parcel of land in London, the
United Kingdom. Total amount invested in Riverlea One
up to 31 March 2019 was GBP7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$70,672,000) (2018: initial agreed capital
contribution of GBP10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$109,748,000)).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Designated
FVOCI of GBP3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$32,993,000) were derecognised due to the
further negotiation on the investment cost. At the
date of derecognition, the investments had a fair
value of GBP3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$32,993,000) and no gain or loss was recognised in such

transaction.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the net fair value
loss on Designated FVOCI of approximately HK$6,083,000
(2018: HK$Nil) was recognised in other comprehensive

income.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

26. BERE-E

WEsE - — 4

(©

(d)

AREMPBER T —IE=ZHA=1+—
H 2 7% 4 % 5214,300,0009 70 (%
— \4E 1 98,981,000% 7t) 2 b1 %
A A B S A A #6268 E
%9.125F (& — J\4E - 4EFl| 4 5F
#8.75/H) sHEN R —F— LS
AN () ZFE—L
WEE R HARR) o A E IR R
AR -FE—NEZHA=Z+—HzA%E
A 535,522,000 70 (& — )4 -
29,387,000 70) 2 E R A o H
Fe AR R s 9 7 JH (& — \4F -
6.375EE7H) FHE o WA B AZ
7S SR AH £5252,430,0009 J0 (& — /\
4F 1 123,307,000 7C) ©

BB LN =B — U F =B — )4
ZHEZT—HZARMERSEE K
SO WA T AL R

ATE—NAEZH = —H o A
[ +F 5 London Riverlea One Limited
([Riverlea Onel) FEM&EARH10% (—
E— \4E 1 10%) #E %5 > Riverlea One
Fh— THL i D 4% T T SR T8 W il r 2 A7
PR D > HLEEH 2 B B T BA B L I A
HolE e BE FE - NEZH
=+ — H ®Riverlea Onex #% & 44 %1
£57,000,0005 &% (A5 A #170,672,000
BIC) (ZF - NE ML WHEER
A HE £510,000,0005 85 (K H 7 4
109,748,000 7T) ) °

HE_Z—-NLF=A=1+—HI
R 3,000,0005 85 (HH E R4
32,993,000 JG) Z F8 & A SU(EFFA
HoAth 4> i 0 25 © R A AR 2 i
— B RETG I A L WERR o AL TERE A
W A& 2 A A E 553,000,000 85
(FH & 1 £932,993,000%5 J6) > 11 3 4
o I TE 28 B e R A g B AR o

BE_Z—NLFE=A=1+—HIL4
B 48 8 A S (E FF A H A A TE i
fit 2 > FeAE N 15 I (E %96,083,000%5 70
(ZZF—)\4F - R o0) Bk Hab A2 1w
Wi 25 HERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26.

27.

28.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

— continued

Notes: — continued

(e) At 31 March 2019, the Group invested USD5,125,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000) to hold
13.23% equity interests in Blue Elixir LLC (“Blue Elixir”),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and engaged in unlisted equity investment. The fair
value of the investment in Blue Elixir at 31 March 2019 was

estimated with reference to the net assets value of Blue Elixir.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

26. BERE—E
EE  — 4

(e MZZE—-NE=H=Z+—H0>%&
£ [ 1E H5,125,0005 6 (& 7t 4
40,225,000 70) 2 £ & DL #F A Blue
Elixir LLC ([ Blue Elixir | » 2 A B &
T sE L 2 A RA R > R
7 HE % ) 213.23% B HE - it =&
—LHE=H=+—H > ®Blue ElixirZ
& 2 A ()32 % Blue ElixirZ & &
R ERE T

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. ENFRE e REMERR
RECEIVABLES i |

2019 2018
—E-AEF ~E—N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fix Tt
Prepayments iﬁ’ﬁ‘ AE 1,460 11,253
Other deposits HoAth#% 4 9,431 3,729
Other receivables Al R i A 18,977 17,343
29,868 Wi =)

BANK BALANCES — CLIENT ACCOUNTS 28. BRITHEBR—FFRF

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions
(note 30).

AR Ty B R SR AT
RTINS AR S-S RN S R 1

B2 e  WEKEFZENGER—

8 5% 22 A8 43 SEARATHR T o A 45 [ . fife
SR 01 B KT I At H i ST A 2k
A (B 3E30) ©
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Year ended 31 March 2019

29. BANK BALANCES - GENERAL

30.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

ACCOUNTS AND CASH

29. RITGEBR——REFRES

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and

short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging

A B

KA AL A 2B E > U

B35 M| F (FE A R 4 FoE 21,58

from 0% to 1.5% (2018: 0% to 0.96%) per annum. (ZF— /4 0H £0.96H)) 7 EZ
07 3 -
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 30. B AR IR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E )\
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT T
Accounts payable arising from HWHEHEEEBPEAZ
the business of dealing in securities: JEATHREIH -
— Cash clients — B4 EF' (a) 119,718 148,234
— Margin clients — BB (b) 1,041,015 315,238
— HKSCC —%w% % (a) 25,586 -
Accounts payable to clients arising from HE &4 EE ERT
the business of dealing %’EEZF%H‘K’EECEIE
in futures contracts (c) 9,884 18,992
1,196,203 482,464

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of

directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

(a) The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to

cash clients and securities clearing houses are two days

after trade date.

(b) Amounts due to securities margin clients and futures

clients are repayable on demand and carry interest
at 0.25% (2018: 0.25%) per annum. Included in

accounts payable to margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities are amounts due to

directors of the Company, their close family members

and a controlling entity of approximately HK$60,000

(2018: HK$23,000).

BB ZME > AN R EHB IR
B 73 A I SR AME o TR L S B B R
MRt AT o

(a)

(b)

JE A B % 5 B i O 4 O T 2 iR
M IEW &I R AR M H -

REFREEEF RMEEF R
TH 2R BRIy 1 4 00 H 4%0.25 8
( F— /4 1 0.258) ZAEF| 5

o Wb IF H W A 2 AR
%égﬁ%ﬁ$’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ
AESR - FEZEBERERE K
P2 il 1) 8 3H £960,000%5 7T (—
% — \AE 23,0004 70) ©
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — continued 30. E{TBRIE — &

(c) Accounts payable to clients arising from the business (0 WMEARAHEFEFTESZ S
FE MR > 245 m % F Wi LU AE
FHMERSMARA R ([H32
D) EEBE G A ZRE S
4 o R I 2E BT B E TR 2 W
REEHke M ABRERE A

of dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits
received from clients for their trading of futures
contracts on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited (the “HKFE”). The excesses of the

outstanding amounts over the required initial margin

deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to A% P R B R o
clients on demand.
31. AMOUNTS DUE TO 31. RFERBRRMRIE

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on A B ECE A AR S ZE R E R
demand. IR i 42 o

32. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 32. Bt EA R EMENRIE

PAYABLES
2019 2018
—E-hF —FE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET T# 7T
Accruals Fgﬁﬁ H 5,154 S97
Other payables Al 8 A5 SH 5,507
10,661
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33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITEE
2019 2018
—E-hE | —“F/)\4E
HK$’000 HK$000
FET THs T
Secured bank borrowings, variable rate AR ERAT 54 - w] | R 50,000 60,000

The maturity of the bank loans based on repayment
schedule (ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause) is as follows:

Within one year —HR

AR IR B ] < SRAT BB B OR &
LB BSRE MR B WE

2019 2018
—E-hE —FE—NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRERT T T
50,000 60,000

The interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.85% per
annum (2018: HIBOR plus 1.8% per annum).

At 31 March 2019, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$1,083,000,000 (2018: HK$710,000,000).
These banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$1,033,000,000 (2018:
HK$650,000,000).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

7 A5 ] 2 SRAT B 2 R R B A AR AT
A ¥ P7 B4 4E1.85)8 (& — /\4F -
FRATE EIR B NG 4E1.8E) -

R FE—FEZH =+ —H o AEHE
B4 A 3£1,083,000,00045 76 (—F—/\
4F 1 710,000,000 7C) Z SRIT(E B4 o
W SRATE BRI LR P 2 B K
FRALEE TWEZHR > ALK
N Al 2 S mERAE B ISR o AR
B O HE R 2 B RS R AR A RS
LM EE41 P 5% -

Mo EZ— N =ZA="1T—H  &4£H
16 S5 R AT 5 B A Y ok 1R BUR R
%%1,033,000,000% o6 (= F — JU4E -
650,000,000 JC)



34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A

LISTED SUBSIDIARY
On 1 September 2017 (the “Bond Issue Date”), GNFG

issued convertible bonds, with coupon interest rate of 2%
per annum, in the principal amount of HK$525,000,000
(“GNFG CB”), to independent third parties. The coupon
interest is accrued at the outstanding principal amount
of GNFG CB and shall only be payable by GNFG to
the bondholders once every six months from the Bond
Issue Date if GNFG CB are neither converted during the
conversion period nor redeemed prior to 1 September 2019
(the “Bond Maturity Date”). GNFG CB can be converted
into maximum 500,000,000 ordinary shares of GNFG at
a conversion price of HK$1.05 per share. The conversion
period commenced from the Bond Issue Date up to and
including the date falling on the seventh day immediately
prior to the Bond Maturity Date.

Assuming all GNFG CB were fully converted into
the ordinary shares of GNFG at 31 March 2019, the
Company’s shareholding in GNFG would be diluted from
72.99% to 66.36% (2018: 72.99% to 60.82%) which
would result in deemed disposal of the equity interest in
GNFG. Accordingly, the equity component of GNFG CB
is reported as “Potential non-controlling interests” in the

consolidated financial statements.

At initial recognition, GNFG CB were separated into a
liability component and an equity component representing
the conversion options of the bondholders which is reported
as potential non-controlling interests. The fair value of the
liability component and the value of the equity conversion
component were determined at the Bond Issue Date. The
fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate of 5.94% per annum for instruments
without a conversion option of comparable credit status
which is referenced to professional valuation conducted by
an independent professionally qualified valuer. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, has been reported as potential non-controlling

interests.

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

34 —E LB QAT BRIT 2

B% & %

W oFE—tFENHA—H ((EHET
H 1) > &5 G 4 o 8 7 K B N354T
4% £5525,000,000% oT 2 28 2 H A]
WA S ([4E I &R &) -
23 R e 4% U 4 T AT R S A R 1
ARG E R o &5 L 4 Rl R 4R IR
I3 i 4 I A A oK A O 2 — L
LA — B Z A& E (5 2
WA > AMERESRETHEEAS
B A i &5 & Rl ) B R e A N AT e
4 U 4 O] $R AR S5 A e e A 4
1.05%5 JC 8 42 7 £ 15500,000,000 % 4%
If & Rl AL - B AR EAT A
PG > HEKEEEEMESHDHA
Bt HEH IR -

BER —_F—NFE=A =T —H2H
A 0 < R RT R  AE  E  BUA 2 4
U 4 Bl A L > AR N R &G AE R 2
Ji HE A% R 72.999%HE 1 £66.36% (ZF
— )\ 1 72.99%#E# £60.82%) > #E
B BB SRR - It &
I o] A SR 2 HE R T RN A
AR R R DA [ Ve R i | 2R o

AR T RRIRE > &5 47 4 il n] $R B 35
o B B R RERR A - R EMES
B Nz Mot > DAYEAE JE P I 25
B2 BRI 2N fR(E S HE 2% 1
WozEERERFSITHESE - GH
BRAEAMLEERIZ GBEZ TH
HB B> 2 o Fe B A T 85 4 R &R
5.94%FMHE > JIZ2E MBI HER EHK
oA Rl AT 2 AL (ESH - BREE (fR
FEME 25 Ay 2 (B AE) DAYEAE JE FE
HEZE 2 o
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34, — B LB ARRITZAE

LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued

As the fair value of GNFG CB was determined using
valuation models for which involved unobservable inputs,
the day-one loss, which represented difference between the
nominal value and the fair value of GNFG CB at the Bond
Issue Date, was not recognised in profit or loss immediately
but was deferred.

The carrying value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component of GNFG CB is net of the
deferred day-one loss which is allocated to the liability
component and potential non-controlling interests on the
same allocation basis of the allocation of the fair value
of GNFG CB. The deferred day-one loss in the liability
components is amortised over the term of GNFG CB on the
basis similar with the effective interest method and included
in “Interest on convertible bonds” in profit or loss and
the deferred day-one loss in the potential non-controlling
interests will be accounted for in the same basis as the

equity conversion component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component of
GNFG CB on initial recognition, which excluded the
impact of the deferred day-one loss, is 7.43% per annum
and is subsequently carried at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, GNFG CB held by
four bondholders of principal amount of HK$262,500,000
were redeemed by GNFG at the redemption price of
HK$262,500,000. The redemption price was allocated
to the liability component and the equity component
on the same basis as used in the allocation of the fair
value of GNFG CB at initial recognition. At the date
of redemption, the difference amount to approximately
HK$38,867,000 between the redemption price allocated
to the liability component and the carrying amount of the
liability component was recognised as a loss in profit or
loss and the residual amount of the redemption price of
approximately HK$17,811,000 was recognised in potential
non-controlling interests. Upon the redemption of GNFG
CB, the remaining amount of the potential non-controlling
interests attributable to the redeemed GNFG CB of
approximately HK$88,499,000 was transferred to retained
profits and non-controlling interests on the basis of their
existing equity interests.

No GNFG CB were converted into ordinary shares of
GNFG up to 31 March 2019.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

REZ—&

A o R R 2 A S E TS A
USSP TR 23 PN €/ AR IEREitY
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FEELNEFBETHZARMEZE
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34, — B LHHNBARIRITZ A
LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued k& - &
GNFG CB recognised at the end of the reporting period are T A i A R T BB 2 A L < e IR
calculated as follows: BHEFEWT
Deferred
Gross day-one Net
Amount loss Amount
BT
#EE BHER FH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Liability component BEHS
Fair value of liability component AEMrNEFBETHZ
at the Bond Issue Date N fME 480,615 (173,694) 306,921
Allocated issue costs BT E A (7,665) = (7,665)
472,950 (173,694) 299,256
Interest expenses for the period: A A S B 3
Imputed interest expenses i B S BH 52 17,040 = 17,040
Amortisation of deferred day-one loss IEIE T H s 1R e = 40,669 40,669
17,040 40,669 57,709
Coupon interest paid/accrued Bft/AFER (6,125) - (6,125)

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R _F—/\F=H=1—H -
Ko F— \EMH—H 483,865 (133,025) 350,840

Interest expenses for the year: N AR B
Imputed interest expenses il B S B 32 31,934 =
Amortisation of deferred day one loss ~ #E 4E 15 H &5 8 1 &4 = 64,741
31,934 64,741
Coupon interest paid/accrued Bft/AFER (8,169) - (8,169)
Redemption of GNFG CB JEEL 2] 45 < A T 60 AR 05 (250,837) 45,015 (205,822)

(259,006) 45,015 (213,991)

At 31 March 2019 WZE—NE=H=+—H 256,793 (23,269)
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A

LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued

34, —E LW B QAR RT 2
REZS-&

Deferred
Gross day-one Net
Amount loss Amount
me BEHEE R
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T T
Potential non-controlling interests & 7E I 12 R R 22
Nominal value of GNFG CB A T < T R B O 2 T (B 822,421 (297,421) 525,000
Fair value of liability component BB NEFREITHZ
at the Bond Issue Date N AfE (480,615) 173,694 (306,921)
Allocated issue costs B EE 1T A (5,460) - (5,460)
Potential non-controlling interests IMEFRBITH » & — )\
at the Bond Issue Date, “A=Z+t—HK
31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 “E-NENA—-HZ
T8 7E JF 42 JBORE 336,346 (123,727) 212,619
Redemption of GNFG CB B 5% < T R IR0 25 (168,173) 61,863 (106,310)
At 31 March 2019 HoE—-NE=H=+—H 168,173 (61,864) 106,309

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. 3 AE B IH
The following are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities DFAEREE - —NLENK T/
recognised and the movements thereon during the years FEZA=ZT—HILEECHRZIELE
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. BLIH (B ) B KL
Revaluation ~ Revaluation Collective
Decelerated of of  impairment

tax  Revaluaton ~ Mandatory ~ Designated  on loans and

depreciation  of properties FVOCI FVOCI advances Total
EffHH EEEAAE
g BAAERA SARBRE  ERRER

HERE  EfNR Rt2ENE  KEZER  2RENHE ait
HKS000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T Tiéx Tix T

Ac 1 April 2017 REZ—LENA—-A (500) 6,693 164 - () 6,346
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT = = 15 - - 15
Charge to profit or loss for the year NRAEERE

(note 19) (i 3E15) 8 - - - - 8
Charge (credit) to other comprehensive 11 (5FA) A%

income for the year Eib2 s = 140 (862) - - (722)
At31 March 2018 REF-MEZA=1-H (419) 6,833 (683) - 6) 5,726
Charge to profit or loss for the year MR R

(note 19) (Hsk15) - 13 - -
Charge (credit) to other comprehensive 11 (FFA) A%

income for the year K2 E ik = 457 (72) (1,004)
At31 March 2019 R=2-1F

ZA=t-H (419) 7413 (755) (1,004)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated A CE R A AR B #9111,023,0(
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$111,023,000 # T (= F — /U4 1 92,983,000 7
(2018: HK$92,983,000) available to offset against future Z Al EE & B R B TE s 1E A] R L b
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to A& F) o A R BE 1 E A A Y &
uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried P> R IR B TE S - A B

forward indefinitely. 15 AT 0 PR A 4 o




224

gk Uk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

35. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued 35. IEAER1E — &

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities for financial reporting purposes:

WARIE (EE) BERM BRSNS
AT

Assets Liabilities
BE =R+
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE | CFNE | ZEBE-REF | SF\4F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
THERT T#s T THERT THs T
Decelerated tax depreciation % Wk B JE P 8 (522) (522) 103 103
Revaluation H Al - - 5,664 6,150
Collective impairment on loans 3K K G 2
and advances S MR (744) (744) 739 739
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities TEHEBLIE (& )
Fifi (1,266) (1,266) 6,506 6,992

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiary, Great
China Company Limited (“Great China”) established in
Macau. In the opinion of the directors, it is probable that
any undistributed profits are expected to be retained in
Great China and not to be remitted out of Great China in
the foreseeable future. No estimated withholding tax effects
on the distribution of retained profits of Great China for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 were recognised.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

R E-NLER F - NEZA
=B MR AN 4R IR P RS
Z M8 AR R EEA R A A (TRH
2 |) 2R HE M 2 R 2R S A 2 FHANBL
MERRARAERLIH - B H G5 > T RHEAT
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On 20 September 2017, the Company completed the placing
of 1,610,450,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each under a
general mandate to not less than six placees, being professional,
institutional or other investors, who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners are not connected persons of the Company, and are third
parties independent of the Company and its connected persons,
at the placing price of HK$0.26 per placing share. The market
value per share at the completion date of the placing was HK$0.32
per share. The net proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$414,530,000, after expenses incurred, for the purpose of
general working capital and for future expansion and business

development of the Group.

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. g 2
Number of shares Amount
KRB E T8
2019 2018 2019 2018
SE-RE | ST E | SE-RE | SF AR
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i | FAR| e
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 4 [ i {H0.10% oG
3 L
Authorised: BE -
At the beginning and the end A HA ) B
of the reporting period R 30,000,000 | 30,000,000 | 3,000,000 | 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: AT KA
At beginning of reporting period T 3 45 1A 4 9,662,706 8,052,256 966,270 805,225
Issue of shares on 20 w_F—+LtHF
September 2017 (note) A=+ R
7By (B &E) - | 1,610,450 - 161,045
At the end of the reporting period f # £ 1 A& 9,662,706 | 9,662,706 966,270 966,270
Note: [t 5E -

WoE—LENA T H AN SRR
P — M B2 1) A D A S R BN (B2
8 ol At 8 TR T T R L A A
BN IEARANF Z B AL > DRREEA
By B SL A ) BB N 5 =) i
1,610,450,000/% %5 % I E0. 175 7G 1) 47 2%
I B o BB A A B R 0,265 G e
MeEFRETRA MO GRBEOGHESE
J§0.32¥5 7T © Wi 5 55 TH Z BT 45 3K IH T R A
414,530,000 70 (K811 Bk T 8% 15 2 B 32
FHAE AR 55 [ 22 — M 48 W 4 DA % R A 1 e
RELEE -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 16
May 2002 has expired on 5 June 2012. The Company has
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 August 2012. On
20 August 2015, the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit (671,021,393 shares) under the Option Scheme
was approved by the sharcholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting by way of an ordinary resolution.
The major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

(a) The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and attract
persons whose contribution are or may be beneficial to

the growth and development of the Group.

(b) The eligible participants of the Option Scheme
include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holding an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (c) any such
other persons (including but not limited to supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, contractor, business
partner or service provider of the Group or any
Invested Entity) who in the absolute discretion of the
board of directors has contributed or will contribute to

the Group.

(¢) The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(d)

(e)

®

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed the number
of shares as shall represent 10% of the total number of

shares in issue.

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

(g) A share option may be exercised at any time during a

(h)

period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 5 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019
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(e)
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(i) The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i) the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately

preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

(j): The Option Scheme will expire on 23 August 2022.

On 16 January 2019, options to subscribe 289,800,000
ordinary shares were granted to 3 eligible participants other
than employees under the Option Scheme at an exercise
price HK$0.26 per share. The validity period of the share
options is two years from the date of grant (i.e. from 16
January 2019 to 15 January 2021). The share options vest
immediately as the eligible participants are not required
to complete a specified period of service before becoming
unconditionally entitled to those equity instruments. The
Company recognised the services provided in full at the date

of grant.

Details of the movements of Share Options granted to

subscribe for the Shares are as follows:
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WY A AW 52 By AR B SZ BT 2
& HRAE R R 2 AR A ik
T~ 8 5 K

(iii) A2 &l B0y (-

() WEHEFTEDE N —F A
Z = H W o

i E—JLE— A TS H o R
289,800,000 % 5 8 i 1) il 11 A AR 98
HERCRERT B 32 00 IR B A B S
BLE R > A7 fE 5 B 0.26W 9T © #%
S5 I ICHE R A O A B B2 B IR T
FEMZF—-NF—HTASHAE_F
Z—4FE—H+HH) - HNAEKSZH
HEAEERTEAZERATARE Y
I 58 AR 7 0 R 5 1A - R Ik g S E D
R B JBg o AN A8 W 4R B OHA 2 BORE R
HE R AL MRS -

5 1 0 10 B S B 1



rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

37. R ERT & - &

BE-E-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

Number of shares issuable under the Share Options

REBRETRTHRABA
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
At1April  during the  during the  during the at 31 March
Category 2018 year year year 2019
S
—®-0F
iy =A
ZE-N\F =t-H
£5l mA-H FARE FATE FREAX HRTE
Non-employee eligible participants Wik EEZ A ER
2RE - 289,800,000 - - 289,800,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) THEF- 17 618 (6 c) - 0.26 - - 0.26

During the year ended 31 March 2019, with reference to

the fair value of the share options, the Group recognised
approximately HK$8,776,000 (2018: HK$Nil) as the

equity-settled share-based payment expenses.

The fair value of share options on the date of the grant is

estimated by using the Binomial Model with the following

parameters:

Grant date 16 January 2019

Weighted average stock HKS$0.255
price on grant date

Exercise price HK$0.26

Risk-free rate 1.693%

Expected option period

16 January 2019 to

15 January 2021

Expected volatility*
Expected dividend yield

*

33.89%
7.84%

The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis of daily

share prices annualised for one year immediately preceding

the grant date.

BE_FT-NLE=H=+—HIE
fE > 2 BERHER A R (E > A4 E
B #418,776,000% 0 (—F— /N4 « B
J6) VE £y DARE £ &5 5 1Y DL 003 32 4 B
o

A R DL 2 Bony —E SRR s
Z IR B R B SR (E R

B H —F—LE

—H+H

P BB i RE 0.255% JC

T R AE :

T fEfE 0.261# 7T

e g ) 1.693%

TE T R RE A R TE A

—H+AHE

B

—H+HH

T HA I 33.89%

TH 1 B B % 7.84%
o TE M R A R EHR B AT
4 AL B B A0 6 AT -
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BHE_T—NWF=A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

38. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 38. Bt R &R A ¥
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from AEEEMESHELEZ AEZEH)
financing activities are as follows: =
2019 —E-AF
Non-cash changes
FRERE
Loss on
redemption
At of At 31
1 April  Net cash Interest Interest convertible March
2018 flows expense accrued bonds 2019
iy
R “B-0F
—2-N\F BETRK =A

MA-F REAFE MNEMExX RHNE ®HZER =1-H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TEr TEx TEr TER TEx  TExn

Bank borrowings RITHE 60,000  (10,549) 549 - - 50,000
Convertible bonds issued — [} L 77 bt B 2 )
by a listed subsidiary Bir o] 350,840 (252,421) 96,675 437) 38867 233,524
Total liabilities from financing activities F & i B i 4 2
A A 410,840 (262,970) 97,224 (437) 38,867 283,524
2018 AN D
Non-cash changes
EBeEH
Potential
At non- At
1 April  Net cash Interest Interest  controlling 31 March
2017 flows expense accrued interests 2018
HF-tf BE RF- A

MA-R  BEWEE O MERL  REAE  RERER =A=t-H
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000
T#r  THx  FTéx  T#x  TExr  TEx

Bank borrowings Rl E - 60,000 - - - 60,000
Convertible bonds issued by a listed —HEHRE AT ®T

subsidiary Al 5 - 506,625 57,709 (875)  (212,619) 350,840
Total liabilities from financing activities [ & 15 B) % A 2

AREHR - 566625 57,709 (875)  (212,619) 410,840

Bank borrowings and convertible bonds issued by a ﬁ B SR AT 1 A S — ] L 713 B Jeg 2 W %ﬁ
listed subsidiary are disclosed in notes 33 and 34 to the T2 S SRR 0 Bl N 45 A
consolidated financial statements respectively. E]J'ﬂ’%i&%@ Wt 5E33 8234 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$897,000 (2018: HK$835,000), are charged to the

profit or loss as incurred.

COMMITMENTS 40.
(a) Lease commitments

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

office properties, berth, car park and staff quarters

which fall due as follows:

Within one year — AR

In the second to fifth years inclusive BOEREAENR

(EL1% H B M 4F)

39.

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

EHRBERGE

A4 [ AR 45 0 P B 4 R Ak )
ZHLR BB 5 B W TR A B E B
2 BLRRAE R GH 8] ([ & # ) -
50 R AT E 2 G R S B
SRR o A4 H AR SRS 2 it
FHEE S A EREESAAGRBEA
B Z5%Mt 3k o 75 #41897,000% 7T (—
F— )\4F 1 835,000 70) 2 R A B
A IR TE R AR A BR o

AIE
(a) THERIE
1E 25 KA
ik =it N N Y Y NI
Pl /NE/E R E R VANEC: I 1
B LA & 1 88 TH 4 1 R 2k B AR
AEXEZBHAWMT :
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE )\
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET
371
371
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

40. COMMITMENTS - continued

(a)

(b)

()

Lease commitments — continued
As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future

40, RIE — &
(a) MEAE-E
1E 24 AL
B WK - LA 2 A ]k
BT 5 3T 2 4 #1100 5 A B IR AL IR

minimum lease payments: TR
2019 2018
ZE-REFE| “EN\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTRERT T#T
Within one year — AR 9,525 11,081

In the second to fifth years inclusive B REALFENA

(BEHEWF) 38,498 40,396
Opver five years AL B 33,585 46,131
81,608 97,608

The Group leases out all its investment properties
under operating leases with lease terms of 1 year to 9
years (2018: 2 years to 10 years) and with options to

renew thC leases upon expiry at new terms.

Loan commitments as lender

The Group had the following loan commitments,
which was the unutilised part of the revolving facility
at the end of reporting period:

AR EARPEFLIA A1 B4 (%
— J\AFE 0 24F £104F) f o] 3 4F i)
e T B 4 S FL ) A AL 2 48 S FHLAY
HAHH 2R EY -

(b)

REE-FRERA
A T RO R A DL B UK
W - ThER o R B PR ER A

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Within one year —F R 130,000 100,000
Capital commitments () BEXRKIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE -\
HK$’000 HK$000
FExT T T
Capital expenditure contracted MBEYEZRBECFTTH
but not provided for in the {H A 57 A W R
consolidated financial statements ORI 2 B AR B
in respect of addition
to investment properties 23,071 54,497

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

41. EEEF

IR < & & O M - fERA
5 B IR R AT (R B R

2019 2018
—E-hE —E— )E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET RPN

Hong Kong s
Leasehold land THE 69,024 71,465
Buildings BF 36,430 34,430
105,424 105,895

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of
approximately HK$484,182,000 (2018: HK$773,626,000)
at 31 March 2019 and corporate guarantees issued by the
Company.

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties:

(a) Transactions

Nature of transaction

REME

Name of related party
HMEALTHE B8

Messrs. Hung Hon Man,
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony,
Kam Leung Ming, Hung Sui Kwan,
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie,
Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry,

their close family members and

Brokerage commission

income (note i)

controlling entities

B de kBl de R
@B - BEM A -
Rt HEZBERIR
BB DA K o

A M E A (MEED

WoHh > RZFE—NE=ZH=+—H>
AL ZWITEEFEIEAREL
£5484,182,000% 70 (& — )\ 4 :
773,626,00045 70) 2 % F O HEHH 78 75 LA
B AR w8 A 4w VS AR AR AR A -

2.BEALIRS
Wk & A 10 75 i =% JEL Ath 3505 00 T B 2% 2 58
5/ R > 4 TR 4 RO AT LA R
B A5

(@ XB
2019 2018
=B-nF | SF AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FH R T 7T
2,971

=== wm———
al Report 2017

pee—
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
— continued

(a) Transactions — continued

22.BEALXRSE &

) XZ—&

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2019 2018
MEATHSE E8 REME —E-NF —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT T
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Interest income (note ii) 9,909 461
Kam Leung Ming, Hung Sui Kwan,
Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry,
their close family members and
a controlling entity
WEESCEE - HElEAE FUE A (B 5Eii)
i 3 SR AR BRI SEAE
Rt - MEZRERIE
D= LT T
Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate Rental income (note iii) 504 504
W 2 BB AL WA (M 5Eiii)
Notes: [ff =3

(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2018:

0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions.

(ii) Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.252% per
annum (2018: 7.236% to 9.252% per annum) on the

outstanding balances of margin loans.

(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged at HK$42,000 (2018:
HK$42,000).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

(iii)

WEHETHBHEZ01%E
0.25% (& — V4 1 0.1% %

0.25%) Y HL -

BB ¥ 4% 15 7.236% £9.252%
(= —/\F 1 7.236%%9.252%)
2 M R SR 2 R R A

ERICHL -

B H U L2 Fl 4 42,0009 T
(& — \AE 42,0004 90) ©



42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

— continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management,
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements, was as follows:

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

R2.BEALXRSE &

b)) TEEBEAEZHM
W %5 A B 5 i 2% B 5k 1407 B R 2
HHEI HWFEEEHABZH
R U

2019 2018

—E-NF —F-N\E

HK$’000 HK$000

FExT T¥oo

Salaries and other benefits 4 B H A AR A 6,031 5,813
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR AR AE At ) 4t Kk 119 115
6,150 5,928

The remuneration of directors and other key
management personnel is determined by the

performance of individuals and market trends.

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

In March 2019, Power Success Holdings Incorporated, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100%
equity interest of Fairy Gather Limited (“Fairy Gather”), at
a cash consideration of HK$16,290,000. Under the deed of
assignment, the vendor has also assigned and transferred a
loan due from Fairy Gather amounting to HK$8,751,000
to the Group. The principal activity of Fairy Gather is
property holding. The acquisition was completed in March
2019. Upon completion of the transaction, Fairy Gather

had become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

In March 2019, Power Success Group Incorporated, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100%
equity interest of Bright Rarity Limited (“Bright Rarity”), at
a cash consideration of HK$23,710,000. Under the deed of
assignment, the vendor has also assigned and transferred a
loan due from Bright Rarity amounting to HK$11,942,000
to the Group. The principal activity of Bright Rarity is
property holding. The acquisition was completed in March
2019. Upon completion of the transaction, Bright Rarity
had become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

% H A A PN B 2
TR AR N R B T M R E

43. WIB M 2 A

W_E—NE=ZA - EAQFA2E
[t & /y FlPower Success Holdings
Incorporated PA 16,290,000 7T 2 B 4 8
EBEHFERRAR (THEE]) Z2100%
It o MIBEEHLL - FEHHC A
A5 (8 S i i 8 R WA 44 2E 119 8,751,000
WILER - WENEEES LY EE
B o W FHIHD R —F—LE =A%
B o 28 5y 56 AR > 4 ZE R AR AR B Y
WA A o

REF—NE=ZH > AR A EENE
/A F]Power Success Group Incorporated
£423,710,000% 76 Z 3 5 AU E U & A
AR A ([7 H 1) Z100%/BHE - R 4%
WERRA - BTN E 1 A 4R E RS
R WA H /911,942,009 TCEE K ©
A A EZE B S W) SRR o WO
HER -“F—NLFE=AFM - X5 5%
AR - A B A 4R B 09 4 K B A
5

—
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BE—

43.

—NE=ZA=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
— continued

In the opinion of the directors, these acquisitions did not
constitute business combination as defined in HKFRS
Therefore, the
acquisitions have been accounted for as acquisition of assets

during the year ended 31 March 2019.

3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”.

The following summarises the consideration paid and the

amounts of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition:

43. WIRM B~ 8 — &

RS M o w45 WO I TE A R A
o T 5 o E RN S 3R (REAERT) [ 3685

iR ENEESH - B H
FEREHCREBE —F - LHFE=A
=+ — B IR R B E PO AR -

DA 5 © A A LA K BT i 9 TR
Wi B 2 e

Fairy Gather Bright Rarity Total
¥ %B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T AP
Consideration RE
Cash 4 16,290 23,710 40,000
Assignment of loans receivable i I8 A B K (8,751) (11,942) (20,693)
7,539 11,768 19,307
Recognised amounts of FIKBERAEEZ
identifiable assets acquired EEAEH
Investment properties (note 19) &Y (HEE19) 16,282 23,702 39,984
Prepayment, deposits AR ﬁfi&
and other receivables oAt i 2R TE 8 8 16
Loans payable JE A5 A K (8,751) (11,942) (20,693)
Total identifiable net assets £ 7k Al eV (E AL 7,539 11,768 19,307
Net cash outflow of acquisition WEHREARZ
of subsidiaries HEREFE
Cash BT (16,290) (23,710) (40,000)

The subsidiaries made no significant contribution to the
revenue and results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 after acquisition. The revenue and results
of the subsidiaries were also insignificant if the above
acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the

reporting period.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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44.

45.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
IN A SUBSIDIARY THAT DO NOT
RESULT IN A LOSS OF CONTROL

In October 2018, GN Incorporated, a 72.99% non-wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of its entire
equity interests in Get Nice Asset Management Limited
(“GNAM?”) (representing 100% of issued share capital),
which is incorporated in Hong Kong, to Get Nice Silk
Road Investment Limited (“GN Silk Road”), a 37.22%
non-wholly owned subsidiary, at a total cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000. The principal activity of GNAM is

provision of asset management services.

Upon completion of the disposal in October 2018,
the Group’s equity interests in GNAM were reduced
from 72.99% to 37.22%, resulting in a decrease in
non-controlling interests of approximately HK$4,000 and
an increase in equity attributable to equity holders of the

Company of approximately HK$4,000.

BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

44, WEBBRREZEHEZR—B

MEAREEEEREE

woF—NE+ A AR B
FH72.99% 2 F 2 &K E A FIGN
Incorporated i & H R 45 4F B i M A
AR (T&iIrEEEM] » HREH
SE A L) B A T R (B & A
HZ100%C BITHRA) TAAREAR
37.22%2 FF 4 6 B A\ D 45 0T AR R
GEHMRAR (T4EF#K]) > HE2 M
Bl 4 1818 £52,000,00085 7T © 4 1 E
PR Y S R PR A A RS o

W F— N H R s EIHRE
AEEMPNGEITEEE MM RESR
72.99%8 > 37.22% > B IE 5 R HE
fit Yl 7D #74,000 85 76 S A 24 R HE £ R A
AL HE 4 38 0 £94,000% 7T ©

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 45. X 1 8] 2 B Bk R &
OF THE COMPANY
2019 2018
—e-nE | EAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fff 5 FET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property and equipment EN & L] 25 21
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries i i NG
F BT E 45(a) 1,844,473 1,844,473
1,844,498 1,844,494
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments 2 & B B SRR 562 485
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz 6 B8 2 ) 2k 2,755,028 2,808,372
Bank balances AT R —— IR &
— general accounts and cash 4 7,777 4,100
2,763,367
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

45, RPN T 2R RK— &

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F— N4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT Tt
Current liabilities REaE
Accrued charges and other payables JE =t K
HCAth B A5 FIH 1,820 1,758
Amounts due to subsidiaries TE AT B g N ) ik TE 516,078 551,135
Tax payable JiE A Bl A - 37
517,898 552,930
Net current assets REBEEEE 2,245,469 2,260,027
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,089,967 4,104,521
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital k&N 36 966,270 966,270
Reserves T i 45(b) 3,123,697 3,138,251
NET ASSETS EERE 4,089,967 4,104,521

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F
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BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY - continued

(a) Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries

are deemed capital contribution amounting to
HK$60,840,000 (2018: HK$60,840,000). The capital
contribution represents the imputed interest on

interest free amounts due from subsidiaries which are

not expected to be recovered within 12 months from

the end of the reporting period.

Movement of the reserves

(b)

45. KPRl 2 AR K -8

() WAMJE AR 2 B R S

60,840,000 JC

(ZF— 4

60,840,000% C) Z HAE & o H

EARLE ZME A A

R

i

AN R SRR F 1240 A i
|) Z HEHAE -

(b) il i 5 B

Share
Share Special option  Retained
premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
\ B
RORE HHHEE #E REERF ok
Notes HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
fiF3 Tkx FEx  FTEx  FEx  TEx
At 1 April 2017 R_F—tF
MH—H 2,679,952 194,549 = 17,952 2,892,453
Profit for the year KEERT o = - 169462 169,462
Transactions with owners: HEEAZRS :
Contributions and distributions & KAk
— Issue of shares upon placing - RIBRE BT
i A 257,673 - - - 257,673
— Transaction cost attributable — BT IR EAL
to issue of shares 3 5y A (i) (4,187) = = = (4,187)
- Dividends to owners -mEHAZ
i35} 16 = - - (177,150)  (177,150)
253,486 - - (177,150) 76,336
At 31 March 2018 RZF-NE=A :
=t+—0 2,933,438 194,549 = 10,264 3,138,251
Profit for the year EEEREA = = - 169,924 169,9‘4
Transactions with owners: HEEAZRS !
Contributions and distributions & Rk
— Dividends to owners —M#EEEANZ
5! 16 - - - (193,254)  (193,254)
— Recognition of equity-settled — T R8O HE 5
share-based payment expenses SR DR f
3B X 37 - = 8,776 -
= = 8,776 (193,254)
At 31 March 2019 R=ZZB-NF =
=H=+-H 2,933,438 194,549 8,776
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

46

240

Notes:

(i)  As included in the share premium of the Company, the

transaction costs of the placing were paid to its subsidiary,
Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”) and would be

eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(ii)

At 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$3,114,921,000 (2018: HK$3,138,251,000) which

comprised the share premium, special reserve and retained

earnings.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREM

Get Nice Financial Group
Limited

HHEMERHRAA

Get Nice Incorporated

Get Nice Securities Limited

A A IR

Place of

incorporation

o M A 3

Cayman Islands
HERE
British Virgin

Islands (“BVI")
IR LB

Hong Kong
&

Class of
shares held

i s R A0

Ordinary

Lk

Ordinary
Lk

Non-voting
deferred shares

(note a)
WA

TEIER (W7t

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

Issued
and fully
paid share

capital/
registered capital
ERTRARE
RE/EREE

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000 7C
US$10,000
10,000% 7T
HK$860,000,000
860,000,000 7

HK$40,000,000

40,000,000 7T

45, RPN T 2R RK— &

(i)

5 AN /N S A = SR b BN )
J& 7 B &5 g A RN (4G B R
I5 1) 2 WL 38 5 A A B B

F AP -

MR-E-AFE=ZH=+—H &R

" 2 A Ay UR T O 2 B A
3,114,921,000% J6 (=& — JU4F ¢
3,138,251,000% 5C) > 6145 B4y s 18

o 1 Aok B AR B LA

46. TEMBARFE

ARFEZ EEME AR FEE R

Proportion of

nominal value of issued

share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ARERAZERARE/
HMEXEEED L
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE—
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER  BE| H#  HE
72.99 -1 7299 -
- 7299 - 729
- 729 - 729

Principal

activities

Investment holding
BERER
Investment holding

R

Securities dealing
and broking and
securities margin
financing
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMBLAFIE &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ADAREZERITRE/
WEAREM EMRIBE  FEROER RE/ERER EMERAERD TERE
2019 2018
—E-NE SR
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER  BE| HE  HE
Get Nice Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 7299 = 72.99 Futures and
Company Limited options broking
BIFHRARAT & Lk 20,000,004 7T MERMEEL
5
Get Nice Capital Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 7299 = 72.99  Corporate finance
services
IR EARAF Bk Tk 10,000,000 ¢ EY e ]
Ger Nice Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 -y - 7299 Assets management E
Management Limited (2018 services
HK$2,000,000) =
GEGERBARAR B il 5,000,000 ¢ KESHRE
(CB— A EEN T
2,000,000 7¢) =
Genius Wise BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 729
Holdings Limited [iig
ERELEE  wER %% REER
Get Nice Silk Road BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - -
Investment Limited
AR EEERAR  EEELRE  TER 10,000 7T
Get Nice Currency Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 72.99 - 72.99 Inactive
Exchange Limited
EH A RAR ik Lk 1T Tiak
Quality Champion Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,000 - 100
AR A & Tk 9,0007 7&
Get Nice Finance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100
Company Limited
EHBHEARAR i Lk 2T
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREM

Allex International Limited

LXEBARARA

Prime Pacific

Investments Limited

Steppington
Holdings Limited

Pacific Challenge Futures

Hong Kong Limited

KFFREMEARAA

Pacific Challenge
Management

Services Limited

Grace Field Limited
fEHARA A

Gainventure
Holdings Limited

Clever Switch Limited

Place of

incorporation

B ARIE

Hong Kong
#it
BVI

LR E LR

IR LB
Hong Kong
Fit

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong
i

BV
EBE LS

BVI
Ly Reids

Class of
shares held

i s R 40

Ordinary

Lk

Ordinary

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

Issued
and fully
paid share

capital/
registered capital
BRATRMR
R&/EREE

HK$10,000
10,0009 &
Us$1

IEH
US$10,000
10,0003 7
HK$10,000,000
10,000,000 7C

HK$2

W

HK$2
2T

Uss1
1%

Uss1
IES

46. T EMB A BHFE &

Proportion of

nominal value of issued

share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ARRARAZERIRE/
EMEXEEEA L
2019 2018
- | oxon
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B mE| HE W HE
- 100 N 100
- 100 - 100
- 729 - 729
- 729 - 79
- 100 = 100
- 729 - 729
100 - 100 -
- 100 = 100

Principal

activities

Holding of

motor vehicles
AR
Investment holding
Investment holding
BEER
[nactive

LE-¢d

Inactive

TRax

Property holding
WV

Investment holding
SRR

Investment holding
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of Class of
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held
(i) Nk EMRIEH  AEROES
Get Nice Hong Kong Ordinary
Development Limited
R EA R A ik gl
Joyful Villa Limited BVI Ordinary
RREAHE  TER
Venturecorp BVI Ordinary
Investment Limited
EREAHE  TER
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
BEARAT i gl
NobleNet Limited BVI Ordinary
REEAHE  TER
Get Nice International Hong Kong Ordinary
Limited
A AR PR A IR 7 Fik M
Dragon Rainbow Limited ~ BVI Ordinary
ERELHE Bk
More Profit BVI Ordinary

International Limited

YREARE  TER

Great Right BVI Ordinary
Holdings Limited
R IR RA R EREGHE  Hak

Issued

and fully

paid share
capital/
registered capital
BRATRMR
Rx/aREx

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

US$1
£

Uss1
1E

HKS$1
17T

US$1
1Ex

HK$1,000
1,000% 1T

US$1
£

US$10,000
10,000% 75
US$1

£

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. TEMBRAFE —&

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
share capital/registered capital Principal
held by the Company activities
ADAREZERITRE/
EMERAERD TERE
2019 2018
ZB-NF “F- N\
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B HE| HEK MK
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BEER
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
REER
- 100 - 100 Investment holding
BEER
- 100 - 100 Property holding
wEER

- 72.99 - 72.99 Investment hof(ﬁligx‘:
REHR

—

_ 80 - 80 Inactive

- 100 -

- 100 - 100 Investment holding
&

- 100
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREM

Rise Fortune
Group Limited
ARERARAR

Get Nice
Investment Limited

EHBEARAA

Group Success

International Limited

Get Nice

Entertainment Limited

U REARAR

Peak Prospect Limited

Vast Cheer Limited

Billion Times Limited

Better Dynamic Limited

Treasure Advantage Limited

Place of

incorporation

A M A 3

BVI

=

SR LR
Hong Kong
i

BV

SRR TR
BVI
SRR

BVI
I BB

Hong Kong
ik

BVI
EREAHE
BVI
EREAHE

BVI
L3 Reido

Class of
shares held

i 5 B 40

Ordinary

Ordinary
L

Ordinary
T

Ordinary
Hi

Ordinary
L@

Ordinary
LM

Ordinary
an

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

Issued
and fully
paid share

capital/
registered capital
BERATRMR
RE/EREE

U$$50,000
50,0005 ¢
HK$1

1T

Uss1
IES0

HKS$2
20
USs1
IES

Uss1
£

Us$1
IEH

46. T EMB A BHFE &

Proportion of

nominal value of issued

share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ARABEZERARE/
HMEFEEEDL
2019 2018
“E-0F ZE N
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B mE| HE W HE
- 100 - 100
- 7299 - 729
- 100 - 100
- 100 - 100
- 100 = 100
- 100 = 100
- 100 = 100
- 100 = 100
100 - 100 -

Principal

activities

IREH

Inactive
B3 4
Holding of yacht
A A
[nactive

i g

Investment holding
SRR

Investment holding

R

Property holding
RS

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

B

Investment holding

BB
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BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMBLAFIE &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ADAREZERITRE/
WEAREM EMRIESE  FEROEN RE/EREXR EMERAERD TERE
2019 2018
“E-hE ZE-NE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
B HE| HEK MK
Get Nice Real Hong Kong Ordinary HK$4,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property agency
Estate Limited
BIFERARAT Eib Tk 4,000,000 72 ES IS
Great China Company Macau Quota capital ~ MOP100,000 - 65 - 65 Inactive
Limited
KA R #r REEA 1000008 18 Ry £
Gain Peak Asia Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding -
REEARE  TEK S BEER
Infinite Treasure Group BVI Ordinary Uss$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holcii:n:_g '
Limited ES
KEERaRE  LER S fEER
Profit Union Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100
Corporation fig
KEECEE  BER  1E% BEER
Ace Way Business Limited ~ BVI Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - 100
RRERHE  BER %7
Jumbo Excel Corporation  BVI Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holing .
EEEAnE Rk %7 HE R
Jumbo Excel Group Limited  BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holdi
RRERME B 17t
Trillion Income Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 ; holding
KEELHE  BEk ESH
Trillion Way Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000
EERRAA Eik ik 1,000% 76
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BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. BB A RFIR &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital/ share capital/registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERTRME ARABEZERIRE/
HELRAM EMRIBE  FEROER RE/ERER AMEXEEE DL IREH
2019 2018
“E-hE SN 2
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER MR | HE  HE
Power Success BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - ~ Investment holding
Holdings Incorporated
ERELHE  HER ES R
Power Success BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - ~ Investment holding
Group Incorporated
EEEARE  HEk S TR R
Fairy Gather Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - — Property holding
HEA R & gl 1T UESEL
Bright Rarity Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - - Property holding
i A RAH &it L 17 ESEY
Apex Magic Asia Ltd BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
ERELHE Bk X S £
Access Mission Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
EEEAHE Bk ESTr UESE
Bowell Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
AEARRA Eik L EiL 137 UE S
Ger Nice Property Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Management Limited
EHMEEAARAA  FE gl 17 Lax

246 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #12RH R A &
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

@)

(b)

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by a director
of the Company and a director of Get Nice Securities
Limited, carry practically no rights to dividends nor to
receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general
meeting of Get Nice Securities Limited and on liquidation,
the assets of Get Nice Securities Limited available for
distribution among the holders of ordinary shares and
the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall be applied
first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares the sum of
HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and secondly in
repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred shares the
nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on such
shares, and the balances of the Get Nice Securities Limited’s
assets shall belong to and be distributed among the holders
of ordinary shares in proportion to the amount paid up or

credited as paid up on such ordinary shares respectively.

Except for Great China Company Limited established and
operated in Macau and Access Mission Limited operated
in United Kingdom, all subsidiaries are operating in Hong
Kong.

BHE-_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. TEMBRAFE —&

it -

(a)

(b)

M A2 T — 45 o 2 Kl &S AR R A R
AT — LB 2 R TR A A
E R AR OIS, R A o B
B0 R S A RS RAT ] B R OK i
HE RS BN & FE o R
W > &0 8 25 A BR A 7 Al A4 IR T 3
RO e JE A SRR G R
N 2 E M S DA S AT A R A i
1,000,000,000,000%5 7T 2 #K JH T % 4
BEFREA N BT DL R A B 2
B s BR S 2 S0 1T R
MEAR SE M R N > T &5 U 38 A IR
A 2 B R AR P B R RN
S 3 e A8 S A R A 2 IR 2 A B
A BR B 7 802 BER 2 LA 43 TR ©

I 7 W P RR ST K K8 0 2 K R EE A R
28 ) DA KA BE 8] 4645 2 Access Mission
Limitedh > BT A [ Ji§ 2 7 249 74 7 o 48

o
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Year ended 31 March 2019

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Financial information of a subsidiary with individually
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

46. T EMB LA BHFE &

AEEERERFERERS ([FERE
@m)z—HENEBARZHBER

RS A ORI 5 i AR 2 — [
kA I N w2 Bk o A BB E
P Z AR R A =] H R 8 2 3 -

The following table shows the information relating to a
non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts
before inter-company eliminations.

GNFG
mEEE
HK$’000
FET
At 31 March 2019 R=F-HhF=A=+—H
Proportion of NCI’s ownership interests RS A RSB 27.01%
Non-current assets IE B G A 124,042
Current assets i) B 5,283,929
Current liabilities i B BAR (1,544,643)
Non-current liabilities B AR (3,706)
Net assets & E 3,859,622
Carrying amount of NCI PR HE 2 2 MR THI 1,042,783
HK$’000
FERT
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE-NF=ZA=+—HLFE
Revenue I %5 402,024
Expenses B 7 (269,044)
Profit for the year 4 B Vg ) 132,980
Other comprehensive income At 4 T U A 2,313
Total other comprehensive income for the year AF B HCAth 4 T W 4 KR AE 135,293
Profit attributable to NCI I 12 e HE 2 B A Vi ) 35,921
Other comprehensive income attributable to NCI  JF £ i 1 % B {5 T At 2 18 i 2 625
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI FE ¥ RO HE 2 JE A\ 4 1A s 48 AR B 36,546
Net cash flows from (used in): UTHBNGS () 2B FHE :
Operating activities REEH 668,093
Investing activities TEIEH) (919)
Financing activities il 5 I ) (480,588)
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BHE-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HI&EE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMBARIFE &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Financial information of a subsidiary with individually ERBENERFERER ([FFERE
material NCI — continued Bm)z—ENBAREIZHBEEN &
GNFG
AU 4 1
HK$°000
T
At 31 March 2018 R=ZZF-NF=A=+—H
Proportion of NCI’s ownership interests FEREDR2EEEER LA 27.01%
Non-current assets IF i B A 131,037
Current assets B E 4,778,312
Current liabilities i B A (556,148)
Non-current liabilities IE i B B & (566,602)
Net assets %R E 3,786,599
Carrying amount of NCI FE = 1 HE 2 2 R T 1,022,852
HK$’000
T
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-Z—\S=A=1+—HLEE
Revenue I £5 440,226
Expenses b (163,289)
Profit for the year 4 JE Vi ) 276,937 : i.
Other comprehensive income At 4 T R 55 702 =
Total other comprehensive income for the year A B L Ath A T i 2 AR AR 277,639 I,: '\%,
Profit attributable to NCI IE HE o 2 A %5 A 74,805
Other comprehensive income attributable to NCI I ¥ R 2 B AV At 2 T Wi 2 190
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI I ¥ IO HE 2 B A 4 1T s 48 AR AR 74,995
Net cash flows from (used in): DLRIEH S () 2 34 S A -
Operating activities KA TEE (815,984)
Investing activities BEEH) 18V
—
Financing activities Pl 3 451,467

Annual Report 2019 F3& 249

| —




n & BT SR I R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZTZ—NEF=A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMBARFR &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned R E S E A IE P R 45 2 A 4R 1 O
subsidiaries of the Group that have NCI: EEME AR T

Proportion of ownership

Place of Principal place  interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary incorporation  of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests interests
FERERERL
HELAEE EMpTnY FEERME FAREERREELA  ARTHEREZZEF Lt FERER
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-AE | CEFONE | ZB-RE | DTAE | ZB-NE | ZF0E
HK$000 | HK$000 |  HK$000 |  HK$'000
TiEx Tk TEx Tigx

Get Nice Financial Group Limited Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong 27.01% 27.01% 35,921 74,805 1,042,783 1,022,852
EHEMERFRAR HERL it

Great China Company Limited Macau Macau 35% 35% 1,095 1,052 18,737 30,216
RAEHRAF i i

Immaterial non-controlling interest of Get
Nice International Limited (3) 2)
EHARARATZ
TR TE B et

Immaterial non-controlling interest of
Trillion Way Limited 3) 2)

BEGRAFZ
R &

1,061,514 1,053,064
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Year ended 31 March

BEZA-t-HLFE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
SRR ZE-RE ZEtFE ZF-0AE | ZB-AF
HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T T TR
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
(3D (HfzE1) (BfzED) (f5E2) (H3E2)

RESULTS 4
Continuing operations BEEERE
Revenue g 362,581 581,242 513,600 584,840 561,905
Profit before taxation A 316,824 543,938 488,577 453,364 311,172
Taxation B (47,745) (80,272) (73,291) (80,364) (79,076)
Profit for the year R4 i A 269,079 463,666 415,286 373,000 232,096
As at 31 March
R=p=t-8H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-RE ZE-AE ZF 1% ZF-A\FE | ZB-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 |
T T T T TEn
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
(HsE1) (FzEL) (HED) (tzE2) GES)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets Mg E 5,539,199 6,048,618 6,843,343 7,837,144 8,318,165
Total liabilities Ba (1,703,639)  (1,179,617) (954,968)  (1,155,603) |  (1,685,283)

?ﬁ
X

3,835,560 4,809,001

Total equity 5,888,375

6,081,541 | 6,632,882
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Notes:

(1) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

financial position as set out in the Company’s annual report.

(2) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 have been extracted from the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position which are

set out on pages 95, 96, 97 and 98 respectively.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RER A F

B GE -

(1)

@)

A

A 2 SEA G E R B AT Bk A
A% R AR T A T A S H A A
T A i 2 S AR B B AR DL

AEEMEE T — U R = — 4
“AZ+—HIMEEZ B REE R
BAE TS o Al Bk A AR B 95 - 96
97} 98 H T #k 2 5 A B A KA A
W i 3 T &5 A BAHS IR DL 3 -
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